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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Tenwow International Holdings Limited (the
“Company” or “Tenwow”), | would like to present the
annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (which
are collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

In 2016, the economy of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC" or “China") and overall retail industry continued to
slow down. The country’s gross domestic product (“GDP")
growth rate decelerated to 6.7%. The transformation of the
country’s economy and the restructuring of its retail sector
cast uncertainty over all industries and sectors. Facing the
challenging economic environment, the Group pressed on
with the development of its own brands, and also modified
the product mix of the third-party brands to improve its
overall business.

As a result of the efforts of all its staff and business
partners, the Group’s revenue increased by 6.3% to
RMB5,218.6 million. A breakdown of the revenue shows
that revenue derived from the Group’s own-brand business
rose by 10.1% to RMB2,282.1 million, and revenue derived
from the third-party brand business increased by 3.6% to
RMB2,936.5 million. These results are all the more
encouraging since they were achieved amid an overall
economic downturn and a depressed retail industry.
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TE®RESE
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

The Group is always committed to the strategic expansion
of its own-brand business. For the past three years,
revenue from sales of the Group’s own-brand products
increased from RMB1,426.7 million to RMB2,282.1 million,
representing a compound annual growth rate of 17.0%,
which was remarkable under the current market conditions.
The year 2016 was quite tough. Revenue from sales of the
Group's own-brand alcoholic beverage products increased
by 20.8% to RMB447.5 million, and revenue from sales of its
own-brand food and snacks grew by 15.7% to RMB1,079.8
million. However, revenue from sales of the Group’s own-
brand non-alcoholic beverage products decreased by 2.1%
to RMB712.6 million due to various internal and external
adverse factors, including bad weather and sluggish
consumption. The sales performance of the own-brand
non-alcoholic beverage products failed to meet the
management’s expectations, and this means that the Group
will have to take effort to improve the sales. Revenue
derived from sales of the third-party brand alcoholic
beverage products increased by 13.4% to RMB2,225.7
million, mainly because the sales of wines were very good
and the sales of spirits also stabilized. The Group adjusted
its product mix which included the third-party brand food
and snhacks, non-alcoholic beverages and household care
products, and committed more effort to the brands and
products which had higher profit margins and promising
prospects.

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) for 2016 decreased by 41.6% to RMB204.8
million, and the adjusted recurring profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company for exceptional items such
as donations, gain from the disposal of certain equity
interest in Nanpu Food (Group) Co., Ltd. (FEE R (=B B
R 7)) (“Nanpu”), disposal of a subsidiary and government
subsidies decreased by 28.6% to RMB237.7 million, mainly
because the distribution costs increased by 74.3% to
RMB439.2 million. The investment in a number of television
commercials and marketing promotions by Tenwow Tea in
2016 failed to boost product sales. This, coupled with the
increasing fees for logistics and transportation and rising
labour costs, weighed on the profitability of the Company.
We have recognized the problem in the past year, and
carefully reviewed the situation to identify the causes of
them. We are now working out remedial measures.

2016%%% « AnnualReport2016 05
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In the future, the Group will endeavor to improve its
marketing strategy. Over the past several years, the Group
has invested heavily in television commercials and other
online media to promote its brands for building up
recognition of Tenwow'’s brands and products. The Group
will adjust its investment in online marketing by shifting its
focus from traditional television advertising media to more
diverse media such as new media, offline media and
promotional activities so as to conduct an all-out publicity
campaign.

In 2017, expanding the market for its own-brand products
will remain the key strategy of the Group. The Group will
continue to innovate in its existing products and develop
new ones to meet the market’'s demand. Meanwhile, the
Group will step up the expansion and development of its
network of sales channels nationwide. The Group will
reinforce the cooperation with its existing clients and
distributors, and continue to increase its products’
penetration in the existing markets. It will also seek for
more excellent clients and distributors to further expand its
market shares and sales channels. With the establishment
of its online sales team, the Group will endeavor to
capitalize on the emergence of online sales channels. The
Group will also put greater effort into the development of its
new incentive mechanism so as to inspire our staff to
create value for the Group.

The Group introduced Fosun International Limited (“Fosun”
and together with its subsidiaries, the “Fosun Group”) to
the Company as a strategic investor in 2016. Like Tenwow,
the Fosun Group is a company rooted in Shanghai. Both
parties share the same values in that we are both
committed to offering quality food and beverages to all
households across the country. The powerful combination
of Fosun's rich variety of cross-sector projects and
Tenwow's extensive sales network can make the two
companies’ cooperation very effective in grasping
opportunities in different business areas and in tapping
China's consumer market.
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REEARANR-ZZE—+FEEFNLS - s The year 2017 will mark a new beginning, new development

BAMERAEE - RMERET—BIE WAH and growth spurts for the Company. The Group will carefully

B MR RMEASEME  FRINEE analyse its work, study the problems that the Group has

B BA—FHEE o been facing, and explore new modes of operation with a
view to breaking new ground.

& APPRECIATION

RAZRRESSAEL K ey ¥5%E On behalf of the Board, I would like to extend my sincere

AR DI EBAROHE - &L E gratitude to our clients, distributors, suppliers, business

ZRAIBRHEEETRE—FNER - partners and Shareholders for their unwavering support. |
would also like to thank all the staff for their contributions in
the past year.

MEE Lin Jianhua
E:4 Chairman
—+F=A=+—H 21 March 2017
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ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

In 2016, China’s GDP growth rate further decelerated to
6.7%, while the disposable income of the country’s
residents grew at only 6.3%. The overall economic
transformation and business restructuring had a huge
impact on every industry and casted uncertainty. Coupled
with the ambivalence caused by global political changes,
the economic environment was extremely challenging.

REVIEW OF 2016

In 2016, different challenges continued to hinder growth of
food and beverage market in China. The non-alcoholic
beverage market was affected by the overall weak demand
and rainy weather, while sales from food and snacks market
were also affected by competition from online sales, and
the demand for alcoholic beverages, in particular, the high-
end spirit products, was still weak. In spite of these
challenging market conditions, the Group picked up its
growth momentum in revenue in 2016, representing an
increase of 6.3% to RMB5,218.6 million as compared to that
in 2015 as a result of the collective effort of the staff. Thanks
to the growth in the own brand product business and the
continued optimization of the third-party brand business,
gross profit increased by 11.2% to RMB1,018.2 million, and
gross profit margin increased by 0.8 percentage point year-
on-year to 19.5%. Own brand product business achieved
satisfactory revenue growth of 10.1% year-on-year to
RMB2,282.1 million. The third-party brand product business
picked up its growth and turned around the downtrend in
the first half of 2016, recording an increase of 3.6% to
RMB2,936.5 million in revenue throughout 2016. The Group
has been focusing on developing its own brand product
business. As a result, revenue contribution of own brand
products further increased from 42.2% year-on-year to
43.7%, while revenue contribution of the third-party
products decreased from 57.8% year-on-year to 56.3%.
Gross profit contribution from the own brand product
business accounted for 64.2%, while gross profit
contribution from the third-party brand product business
accounted for 35.8%.



TEENmR DN

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BN AEENE A REEERRANHE S RIE
e AMZEEEHREREHAK EEFRAER
ZHE  HEERWNEE  QIFLHEE HEM:
RQEM—REERATNFETYK  RAFRFE
HFFRLL TEA1.6%EARB2048FET - B
B BREFHERARE16.9D THREFRARES
2o MBRIFEEHEHE MEHBEEENBRFE -
A 9 & & #HAT 7B (TEBITDA)) [ £ R 4
17.6% B AR ¥ES2 2B BT KRB ADRIRRE
EREMFENE L TR28.6%EARKE2377EET
BEREFUHEERBNAARE 11445 -

EEERFUBLERBEE—_T—~"E+-A=1+—
HIEFERABRBERARK0SS - HER0.5775
W ZE—RFERERE  BRARKE2779 - BE
R348 RENBRESRARK 1865 + HER
212BI(Z2—AFHRIKRE  BRARKE0.855 -
BER1.045) - 2FEHREBRAREL66D -
BS540 M (ZE—RF : GFRARMS765 1 7.16
B - AR ENRBBUR AR FFA30% - =
T RNEERELEAES0%(ZF—RHF : 35%) ' 58
N 20% B EEREFRIRE (ZE—AHF  5%) °

Due to (1) the increase in selling expenses of our own brand
non-alcoholic beverages, coupled with unsatisfactory sales
due to overall weak demand for beverages and rainy
weather in the first half of the year; (2) increase in non-
recurring expenses, and (3) decrease in share of profit from
a joint venture, net profit attributable to Shareholders
decreased by 41.6% year-on-year to RMB204.8 million.
Earnings per share decreased from RMB16.9 cents last year
to RMB9.9 cents. Net of the non-recurring items, the
adjusted recurring earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA") decreased by
17.6% year-on-year to RMB522.2 million, while adjusted
recurring net profit attributable to Shareholders decreased
by 28.6% year-on-year to RMB237.7 million, and recurring
basic earnings per share was RMB11.44 cents.

The Board proposed to declare a final dividend of RMBO0.5
cents (equivalent to HK0.57 cents) per share (2015 final
dividend: RMB2.77 cents (equivalent to HK3.41 cents) per
share) and a special dividend of RMB1.86 cents (equivalent
to HK2.12 cents) per share (2015 special dividend: RMB0.85
cents (equivalent to HK1.04 cents) per share) for the year
ended 31 December 2016 in cash. The total dividend
payable for the year amounted to RMB4.65 cents (i.e.
HK5.40 cents) per share (2015: RMB5.76 cents (i.e. HK7.16
cents) per share). The Company has a dividend policy of
distributing 30% of its net profit attributable to the
Shareholders. The dividend payout ratio for 2016 was 50%
(2015: 35%), with additional 20% being proposed as special
dividend (2015: 5%).

2016%%%  AnnualReport2016 09
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REVENUE

The Group produces and distributes a wide range of own
brand products and many well-known international and
domestic third-party brands of food and snacks, non-
alcoholic beverages, alcoholic beverages and other fast
moving consumer goods in China. The Group’s own brand
products and third-party brand products are mutually
complementary.

EXE
AEETHRAERSHTRAEENEEREER
O HEREZRANNENE=F RERER - ~&E
MERANSKEAE  BERMEER - FFBEB
g BRERENEAMER - AEEBEmMEEM
H1%5 = 75 G R E CR AR B ARRK o

The table below sets forth the Group’s revenue contribution
by product segments and main product categories for the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015:

TEREINAEERBEE_T—R"FRZT—HF
T+ A=+—BIEERERD &IEFDDQE)DJ‘J
ElnmIAER -

BEt+t-HA=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

— T =
—E-R

2016

ARMT T
RMB’000

—F—Tf
2015
ARMT T

RMB'000

BEREER own brand products

IEE B R R Non-alcoholic beverages 712,590 13.7% 728,205 14.8%

AR Alcoholic beverages 447,517 8.6% 370,432 7.6%

RmEkER Food and snacks 1,079,812 20.7% 933,160 19.0%

A Others® 42,227 0.7% 41,126 0.8%
2,282,146 43.7% 2,072,923 42.2%

=T REER Third-party brand products

IR FEE Non-alcoholic beverages 39,723 0.8% 47,909 1.0%

SERE AR Alcoholic beverages 2,225,717 42.6% 1,962,807 40.0%

BEnkER Food and snhacks 592,803 11.4% 678,357 13.8%

Hih@ Others®@ 78,260 1.5% 146,026 3.0%
2,936,503 56.3% 2,835,099 57.8%

#ct Total 5,218,649 100% 4,908,022 100%

7 - Notes:

1. HApEZe8E I RRXFR R e - 1. Primarily includes “Chuan Xiang” Chinese seasonings and packaging

materials.
2. HpFZeEREAM - 2. Primarily includes household care products.

10 KEBEBRIZERAER AT o Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN
In 2016, the Group took back the nationwide distribution
right of its own brand non-alcoholic beverage products. As
a result, the gross profit and gross profit margin of own
brand non-alcoholic beverage products increased
significantly. Through continuous optimization of sales
channels and product portfolio, the gross profit and gross
profit margins of third-party brand business improved
across the board. Thanks to these factors, the Group’s
overall gross profit increased by 11.2% year-on-year to
RMB1,018.2 million. Overall gross profit margin further
improved by 0.8 percentage point to 19.5%.

BEt-A=t-HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-RE “EF-R%F
2016 2015
| 1t E ik 7 fhit ek
Gross profit ~ Contribution Margin  Grossprofit  Contribution Margin
ARETT % % ARETR % %
RMB’000 % % RMB'000 % %
BERBER Own brand products

B Non-alcoholic beverages 270,921 26.6% 38.0% 221,804 24.2% 30.5%
BB Alcoholic beverages 93,269 9.1% 20.8% 103,335 11.3% 28.0%
RENER Food and snacks 277,116 27.2% 25.7% 271,790 29.7% 29.1%
Hit Others 12,824 1.3% 30.4% 12,045 1.3% 29.3%
654,130 64.2% 28.7% 609,474 66.5% 29.4%

EZHmEER Third-party brand products
FEREH Non-alcoholic beverages 3,811 0.4% 9.6% 5,408 0.6% 11.3%
EREHE Alcoholic beverages 281,210 27.6% 12.6% 240,848 26.3% 12.3%
RRRER Food and snacks 71,047 7.0% 12.0% 51,049 5.6% 7.5%
Hih Others 8,040 0.8% 10.3% 8,723 1.0% 6.0%
364,108 35.8% 12.4% 306,028 33.5% 10.8%
h Total 1,018,238 100% 19.5% 915,502 100% 18.7%

20164E3%  Annual Report 2016 11
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OWN BRAND PRODUCT BUSINESS

In spite of the challenging market conditions in 2016,
revenue of the Group’s own brand product business
increased by 10.1% year-on-year to RMB2,282.1 million and
costs of sales of own brand products increased by 11.2%
year-on-year to RMB1,628.0 million. Gross profit increased
by 7.3% year-on-year to RMB654.1 million and gross profit
margin decreased by 0.7 percentage point year-on-year to
28.7%. In 2016, own brand product business contributed
64.2% of the Group’s overall gross profit (2015: 66.5%).

For the past three years, revenue of the own brand
products increased from RMB1,426.7 million to RMB2,282.1
million, representing a compound annual growth rate of
17.0%, while gross profit increased from RMB399.1 million
to RMB654.1 million, representing a compound annual
growth rate of 17.9%. Despite the current challenges, the
Group had achieved remarkable results by focusing on the
development of its own brand businesses, significantly
outperforming its peer companies in the industry.

Food and snacks

The Group’s own brand food and snacks mainly
include products (such as roasted nuts and seeds, gift
boxes, preserved fruits and meat snacks) sold under
the Group’s flagship “Tenwow” brand and its sub-
brands (such as “Tenwow Ideas” ("X I8 * &"), and
“Nuts’” Manor” ("E2 R 4 & ") and products sold under
other own brands (such as the “Morning Smile” (" &
F 25" oatmeal series).

In 2016, revenue derived from own brand food and
snacks increased by 15.7% year-on-year to
RMB1,079.8 million, representing a compound annual
growth rate of 15.0% for the past three years. During
the year, sales of Tenwow flagship products, roasted
nuts and seeds and New Year gift boxes, grew
significantly, and the sales of preserved fruits
recorded satisfactory growth, while the sales of meat
snacks and the “Morning Smile” (" & & 2 ") oatmeal
products showed a slight decrease. The Group also
focused on promoting the sales of online food and
snacks such as the new “Tenwow e-ldeas” (“XIEFe")
series for the year, which helped to improve the
overall sales performance despite lower profit margin
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for online sales due to its intense competition.
Affected by the increasing cost of raw material and
the increase in promotional activities and online sales,
gross profit margin decreased by 3.4 percentage
points to 25.7%, while gross profit increased by 2.0%
to RMB277.1 million.

The Group will step up its efforts in developing more
food and snacks products catering to consumers’
need, and plans to launch healthier and more
innovative food and snacks products in the future,
with an aim to expand its business coverage.

L,E_?E‘ E?Z)i}‘
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Alcoholic beverages

The Group’s own brand alcoholic beverages, primarily
targeting the mass market, include imported bottled
wines and cognac brandy from lItaly, France, Chile
marketed under the Group’s own brands, and own-
produced Chinese rice wines. Revenue generated by
the Group's own brand alcoholic beverages increased
by 20.8% year-on-year to RMB447.5 million in 2016,
representing a compound annual growth rate of
23.4% for the past three years, primarily due to the
vigorous marketing efforts for own brand imported
wine (such as “2 # # B " and “#) & & 1= ") which
drove rapid growth in revenue. Due to the increased
effort to strengthen cooperation with an online sales
platform, and promotional activities for the wine sales,
the gross profit margin of the Group’s own brand
alcoholic beverages decreased by 7.2% to 20.8%. The
gross profit decreased by 10.2% year-on-year to
RMB93.3 million.

As to the own brand imported wine business, the
Group will continue to adhere to the strategy of “small
profits but quick returns”, and step up its efforts in
exploring more channels and expanding its market
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shares, with an aim to achieve better economies of
scale. With respect to the Chinese rice wines
business, the Group launched the younger series of
"HBFAEER" at the end of 2016, thus strengthening
its development.

Non-alcoholic beverages

The own brand non-alcoholic beverages comprise
ready-to-drink beverages such as “VitC VitE" series,
"Fruit Tea" series, “Charcoal Roasted” series, “Banuo”
coffee series, "Tenwow Idea” series, coconut water,
pomegranate water and pure tea series, as well as
bottled water series such as “Tribute Spring” (& &
= ") and "Tenwow natural water”.

In 2016, due to the disappointing overall market for
the non-alcoholic beverages and frequent rainy
weather, together with the fact that the relevant
production, logistics and sales teams took time to
adjust since the Group took back the nationwide
distribution right for the own brand non-alcoholic
beverages, the own brand non-alcoholic beverage
revenue decreased by 2.1% year-on-year to RMB712.6
million. The compound annual growth rate of own
brand non-alcoholic beverages for the past three
years was 18.6%. Gross profit margin of the own

2016438 » Annual Report 2016 15
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brand non-alcoholic beverages increased by 7.5
percentage points to 38.0%, while gross profit surged
by 22.1% year-on-year to RMB270.9 million. The gross
profit margin rose significantly mainly because the
Group took back the nationwide distribution right for
the own brand non-alcoholic beverages since 2016.

Revenue derived from “VitC VItE" juice drink series
continued to grow, while the sales of “Fruit Tea” series
remained stable. The change in customers’ tastes led
to substantial decrease in sales of “Charcoal Roasted”
milk tea series. Sales of these three major product
series failed to meet the management’s expectations,
significantly affecting the operational results of the
Group. In response to market demand and consumers'’
changing tastes, the Group proactively seized market
opportunities by launching a range of new products,
including the healthy “Pure & Coco” coconut water,
high-end “Banuo” coffee series and “Tenwow Ideas”
tea series with innovative packages. However, the
sales contribution from these products was minimal as
they were launched to the market for a short period of
time.
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Looking ahead to 2017, the Company will focus on its
core advantage and carry out brand upgrade for the
“Fruit Tea” series. By splitting “Honey Citron Tea" from
the “Fruit Tea" series as a separate operation and
based on the existing Honey Citron Tea (classic
original citron), the Company will release two new
flavours including “Citron White Tea” and “Vintage
Citron Pu'er” with upgraded packaging, improving
visual perception and product quality. Efforts will also
be made to carry out changes and packaging upgrade
for the “VitC VitE" juice drink series, with an aim to
further expand its market shares. In addition, the
Company will upgrade the packaging of the “Tribute
Spring” natural mineral water and also launch the
water brand “/0»7K " targeting the younger market.

— Others

Other own brand products include “Chuan Xiang” (“)1|
¥8") brand sauces and flavorings, groceries and dried
food products as well as ancillary packaging materials.
In 2016, revenue generated by the Group's other
product categories under its own brands increased by
2.7% year-on-year to RMB42.2 million. Gross profit
increased by 6.5% to RMB12.8 million, while gross
profit margin was 30.4%.

THIRD-PARTY BRAND PRODUCT BUSINESS
The Group'’s third-party brand product business achieved a
rebound of 13.9% as compared with that in the second half
of 2015 to RMB1,547.5 million in revenue in the second half
of 2016 and turned around the downtrend in the first half of
2016. The revenue of the third-party brand product business
increased by 3.6% to RMB2,936.5 million for the whole year,
mainly attributable to the robust revenue growth for
alcoholic beverages.

20164E3%  Annual Report 2016 17
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Costs of sales of third-party brand products mainly
comprised the purchase costs paid to brand owners. Costs
of sales increased by 1.7% to RMB2,572.4 million. Overall
gross profit margin increased by 1.6 percentage points to
12.4%, which was mainly attributable to the Group’s
continuous effort in optimizing sales channels and product
portfolio and focusing on higher gross profit margin third-
party brand products. As a result, gross profit from sales of
third-party brand products significantly increased by 19.0%
to RMB364.1 million.

— Alcoholic beverages
The third-party brand alcoholic beverage products
include spirits, wine, Chinese wine and beer. The
Group acts as a distributor for a wide range of
international and domestic brands, including Martell,
Hennessy, Remy Martin, Carlo Rossi, Imperial Court,
Maotai and others.

In response to market conditions, the Group
continued to optimize sales channels and product
portfolio of third-party brand alcoholic beverages to
expand the wine business. Sales of wines grew
satisfactorily, and sales of middle and low-end
imported spirits beverages also bottomed out and
stabilized. Revenue from the sales of third-party brand
alcoholic beverages for the second half of 2016
significantly increased by 24.0% to RMB1,179.2 million
as compared with that in the second half of 2015, and
boosted the revenue for the whole year by 13.4% to
RMB2,225.7 million. Gross profit margin increased by
0.3 percentage point to 12.6%, which was mainly
attributable to the growth in sales of wines, which
generally have higher gross profit margin than other
alcoholic beverages. In addition, the strong demand
for a particular Chinese wine brand helped to lift its
gross profit margin. Gross profit generated from sales
of third-party brand alcoholic beverages increased by
16.8% year-on-year to RMB281.2 million.
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Food and snacks

The third-party brand food and snacks include,
amongst others, Nestle, Dove, Wrigley, Glico and
Kraft. In 2016, revenue derived from third-party brand
food and snacks decreased by 12.6% to RMB592.8
million in 2016 because of the tough overall market
environment, competition from online sales and
reduction in promotion activities from brand owners.
Gross profit increased by 39.2% year-on-year to
RMB71.0 million. Gross profit margin increased by 4.5
percentage points year-on-year to 12.0%. Despite the
decrease in revenue, gross profit and gross profit
margin increased, mainly because the Group took
proactive measures to optimize sales channels and
product mix, and reduce the sales of lower-margin
products and channels.

Non-alcoholic beverages

The third-party brand non-alcoholic beverages, which
account for a relatively small proportion of the
Group’s business, currently include, amongst others,
Saratoga spring water and Red Bull energy drinks. In
2016, sales of third-party brand non-alcoholic
beverages generated revenue of RMB39.7 million and
gross profit of RMB3.8 million with gross profit margin
of 9.6%. The business of third-party brand non-
alcoholic beverages was a non-core operation of the
Group.

Others

The other third-party brand category mainly includes
Unilever household care products and other products.
In 2016, sales of other products under the third-party
brands generated RMB78.3 million in revenue and
RMB8.0 million in gross profit with gross profit margin
of 10.3%. The changes in revenue, gross profit and
gross profit margin were mainly because the Group
took proactive measures to optimize sales channels
and product mix, and reduce the sales of lower-
margin products and channels.
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REVENUE BY SALES CHANNELS

The Group distributed its own brand and third-party brand
products through direct sales which include four main sales
channels, and distributors which comprise Nanpu and third-
party distributors. Despite the fact that Nanpu was still the
largest distributor of the Group, Nanpu’s revenue
contribution has been gradually reduced from 44.8% in
2010 to 21.3% in 2016, which was primarily due to the
expansion of sales channel of the Group.

The table below sets forth the Group’s revenue contribution
by retail channels for the years ended 31 December 2016
and 2015:

BEt+t-HA=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E—RE

—T—hF
2015
AR®ETT
RMB'000

2016

ARMT T
RMB’000

BHiHERE Direct channels

BIERRE ™ On-premise channels®” 711,546 13.6% 599,839 12.2%
HAEF Modern retail channels® 738,298 14.1% 825,793 16.8%
mmEEe Small business channels® 459,755 8.8% 504,685 10.3%
HEfhRE@ Other channels® 243,348 4.7% 197,592 4.0%
N Sub-total 2,152,947 41.2% 2,127 909 43.3%
k-1 Distributors

[ Nanpu® 1,110,557 21.3% 1,441,106 29.4%
BE=FDHEE Third-party distributors 1,955,145 37.5% 1,339,007 27.3%
N Sub-total 3,065,702 58.8% 2,780,113 56.7%
@t Total 5,218,649 100.0% 4,908,022 100.0%
BIEE - Notes:

BEARKENERRRER
LE5FR o

EESERE  BJE RIRRE RIR

) BIEREHAEYS BB REFE

3) BEMEPLEREETES -

(4) FTEAEERAE -

(5) FUHREBEA -

20 KEBEZAR AT  Tenwow International Holdings Limited

(1) Includes chain restaurants, hotels, and leisure and entertainment
locations that provide dine-in services for the Group’s products.
Includes chain hypermarkets, chain supermarkets and chain
convenience stores.

Includes wholesale centres and various retail stores.

©

S

Primarily includes group purchase and online sales.

g

Nanpu and its associates.
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TR AEEARNBE_ZT—RNFEFR_E—RF The table below sets forth the Group’s revenue contribution
+ZA=t+—HLEFERERFSESHRAER by sales in different geographic locations for the years

ended 31 December 2016 and 2015:

BEZ+-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E—XF —T—RF
2016 2015

AR%T R AERETT

RMB’'000 RMB'000
ERH[E Eastern China 3,146,126 60.3% 2,709,559 55.2%
FEH & Central China 1,103,366 21.1% 1,430,170 29.1%
EEE Southern China 419,427 8.0% 504,771 10.3%
ESigau Northern China 331,994 6.4% 120,718 2.5%
P& Western China 217,736 4.2% 142,804 2.9%
#st Total 5,218,649 100.0% 4,908,022 100%

“E-RF ERMRIEEERFZEANBERBRRE The revenue increase in Eastern China in 2016 was mainly

HEEM BB ETEARAEBR - —XF driven by the increasing sales of alcoholic beverages. Other

eI E BB miEIE R 2 BB RIERE - FE changes were mainly because the Group took back the

EREBRATEENEEREIFEBRHEER2EH nationwide distribution right for own brand non-alcoholic

BRER  gEBEARKZMERAEE - beverages in 2016. As in the past, the own brand non-
alcoholic beverages produced by the plants from each
production base were sold to the sole nationwide distributor
and they were directly accounted as sales from the
respective production base region.

20164E3%  Annual Report 2016 21



TEENWR DN

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

7 A

DHEKALTERERDHEHBEENES MEER
X ITEREN BREBELERS - —T—RF K
SENDHKTIRF EFH743% N ARKELN2EE
TT o AEWAK B8A%(—F—HF 1 51%) » D #HK
AEATEARAEER - RFRERERER
ARG - AEER —ZE—RFET [EEHEE
BIRTHEHRE] SZ2REGEE - #HZEM

TREBEE BXARERNINERTE KA
WEBLKIHE - FETAKENEN - 1o - WEE

Em@iPBRas 2 BaREER  HENTER
B EBmBEZGAEMN

ITHRAX
THRAXI2EREREETRABNTERERN
AR BRRITHRAZRNYE  RiENREE BT
B - AEEMNTRAX EFA77% 2 AR 1854
BEL HAEERALERRIH(ZF—HEF:
35%) - THAX LA T ERMNEEHAEURTE
NAgA BT - ARYTERSIEM -

Bt 75 A AR
AEENPBRATER/RTERMNELFEER
RITHEREOFBWA - —FT—XF > MBRANFHE
EF28%EARKBIBETL  TEHNERBEE
ERFBEIEM

22

KIEEEIZERR AR AR * Tenwow International Holdings Limited

DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Distribution costs primarily include advertising and promotion
expenses, wages and benefits, transportation expenses and
travel expenses associated with distribution activities. In
2016, the Group's distribution costs increased by 74.3% year-
on-year to RMB439.2 million, which accounted for 8.4% of
the Group's revenue (2015: 5.1%). The increase in distribution
costs was mainly due to the substantial increase in
advertisement and promotion expenses of the Group in 2016.
The Group sponsored a number of well-known television
programmes such as “Trump Cards” (" f& ¥ T f£") and
“Sing! China” (" B 7 #K & ") in 2016. Although this helped
to enhance brand awareness, it failed to translate the
dynamics into sales which was affected by various internal
and external factors, causing an adverse impact on the
Group's profitability. In addition, the relevant salary and
benefits and transportation expenses increased after the
Group took back the nationwide distribution right for own
brand non-alcoholic beverages.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses consist primarily of wages and
benefits for management and administrative staff, and
depreciation expenses associated with property, facilities
and equipment for administrative purposes. The Group’'s
administrative expenses increased by 7.7% to RMB185.4
million, which accounted for 3.6% of the Group's revenue
(2015: 3.5%). Increase in administrative expenses was
primarily due to an increase in wages and benefits as a
result of the growing number of employees, and increases
in depreciation expenses.

FINANCE COSTS

The Group’s financial costs primarily include bank loan
interests and handling charges less interests income on
bank deposits. In 2016, net finance costs increased by 2.8%
to RMB86.3 million. This was primarily attributable to the
increase in the amount of borrowings as the Group expands
its business.
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SHARE OF PROFIT OF NANPU AND
DISPOSAL OF 2% EQUITY INTEREST OF
NANPU

In 2016, the Group's share of profit of Nanpu decreased by
71.9% to RMB9.0 million, which was mainly due to the
decrease in revenue and gross profit margin of Nanpu as a
result of the tough overall market environment.

In order to help allay concerns from certain investors on the
continuing connected transactions between the Group and
Nanpu, to streamline the corporate structure, and to
improve corporate governance, the Group sold 2% equity
interest in Nanpu to Shanghai Tangjiu (Group) Co. Ltd.
("shanghai Tangjiu") at a consideration of RMB20.0 million
in the first half of 2016. Shanghai Tangjiu is a state-owned
enterprise and a wholly owned subsidiary of Bright Food
(Group) Co., Ltd. This disposal recorded a gain of
approximately RMB4.5 million.

STRATEGIC SHARE HOLDING AND
POTENTIAL COOPERATION WITH FOSUN

On 19 December 2016, the Company allotted and issued a
total of 132,358,000 ordinary shares (the “Subscription
Shares”) to Market Genius Limited, a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
owned by China Momentum Fund, L.P. which is an
investment fund advised and managed by its general
partner Fosun China Momentum Fund GP, Ltd (an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of Fosun, at the subscription price
of HK$2.4137 per share pursuant to the general mandate
granted to the Directors by an ordinary resolution of the
Shareholders passed at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 18 May 2016 (the “General Mandate”)
to issue and allot the Subscription Shares, representing
approximately 6.00% of the total enlarged issued share
capital of the Company. The gross proceeds from the
subscription were approximately HK$319.5 million and the
net proceeds from the subscription, after deduction of the
related expenses, were approximately HK$319.1 million,
representing a net issue price of approximately HK$2.4111
per Subscription Share.
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The subscription was intended to strengthen the
relationship between the Company and Fosun, which
further entered into a strategic cooperation agreement on
19 December 2016, whereby the parties will (i) cooperate
with each other and use their respective competitive
advantages with a view to achieving joint business
development in relation to global premium food and
beverage brands; (i) jointly seek acquisition and integration
opportunities in premium food and beverage brands
globally and introduce such premium brands into China;
and (iii) further explore the opportunity of the acquisition
and joint development of international food and beverage
brands.

The Company believed that such strategic cooperation, if
implemented, should enable the Company and Fosun to
foster synergies and further strengthen each other’s
position in the relevant consumer markets through
resources sharing, the parties’ complementary strategic
advantages and close cooperation.

DONATION

In 2016, the Group donated RMB30.6 million worth of
products in support of charity, which was a major corporate
social responsibility initiative.

EBITDA

EBITDA decreased by 25.8% to RMB488.3 million, which
was mainly attributable to the increase in distribution costs
as the Group took back the nationwide distribution right for
own brand non-alcoholic beverages, and the unsatisfactory
growth in sales of non-alcoholic beverages due to the
overall weak demand and rainy weather, coupled with the
donations, the decrease in share of profit of Nanpu due to
the decrease in its operating results, the loss on the
disposal of a subsidiary, the absence of one-off government
subsidies for 2016. Adjusted recurring EBITDA decreased by
17.6% year-on-year to RMB522.2 million.



TEENmR DN

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RAFEFEFHEABERE

ZE-RF - ARAEEFAEARGINREE TR
MNOBBIARKE2048EFE T SFREXRAFAAR
BOID(ZE—RF : ARK169D) e RAFIKE
EEERABREEENBERARKE 27788 T - &F
TEE28.6% ' S AREEHBREARBFNAETRAR
11445 ©

RBESRERER
AEELERNTES RERRHE EERFR AL
BEENRSRERAREEBERBITRAUNE

REBR -_ZE—XNE+ - A=+—BHORTERR
HeHpBEAARE1671 B8 T(ZE—RE+ A
=+—H: ARK8IB1E&EL)  HFARKMGR
SHT70% - AEER_ZTE—X"F+_A=+—H0H
BIEFBARE2305088L(ZE—HF+=A
=t—H: AR¥1805887T) ° £87.8% &
EEHRIFUAT - AEEEREEEIEZAARY
1583.9%  BHRFEFEENEIEZEFE o

REBR-ZE—RNE+-A=+—BoFER (LML
FRRE MRS EEMRZRHES)AARK 6335
BET(ZE—RAF+-_A=+—8: AR#1,0374
BEL) - ARERZZTE—XR"F+ZA=+—HKE
KEELRE163%(ZE—HEF+-_A=+—8:
26.4%) °

AEERARENREE RRITEERE  sEnEd
REBEEeHFER EEBHLEBREHYRAINIE
BIRREAERBRM B LY SORE -

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
decreased by 41.6% to RMB204.8 million in 2016. Basic
earnings per share was RMB9.9 cents (2015: RMB16.9
cents). Adjusted recurring profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company decreased by 28.6% year-on-year
to RMB237.7 million. The adjusted recurring basic earnings
per share was RMB11.44 cents.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group’s funds and capital required for operations are
primarily sourced from internal resources and loans
provided by the Group's principal banks.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had bank deposits and
cash in the amount of RMB1,671.5 million (31 December
2015: RMB813.1 million). Renminbi accounted for
approximately 77.0% of the Group’s cash. As at 31
December 2016, the Group had total borrowings in the
amount of RMB2,305.0 million (31 December 2015:
RMB1,850.5 million). Approximately 87.8% of these
borrowings were for terms of less than 1 year. The majority
of the Group's borrowings were in Renminbi, which
accounted for 83.9%. The Group’s borrowings were either
obtained at fixed interest rates or variable interest rates.

The net borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2016
(total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash) was RMB633.5 million (31 December 2015:
RMB1,037.4 million). The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31
December 2016 was 16.3% (31 December 2015: 26.4%).

The Group has sufficient cash and bank lines of credit that
can meet future operation needs. Management is also
prepared to make careful arrangements and decisions
based on changes in domestic and international financial
environments.
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CASH FLOW

In 2016, the Group’s net cash inflow from operating
activities amounted to RMB455.2 million (outflow of 2015:
RMB117.9 million). On the other hand, the Group recorded
net free cash inflow of RMB314.0 million (2015: outflow of
RMB410.4 million). Improvement in cash flow was primarily
attributable to the Group's efforts in strict control of working
capital and the reduction in capital expenditures.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL
OFFERING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange on 17 September 2013 with net
proceeds from the global offering of approximately
HK$1,714.2 million (after deducting underwriting
commissions and related expenses). According to the
intended usage as set out in the section headed “Future
Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the prospectus of the
Company dated 5 September 2013 (the "Prospectus”), the
amount utilized as at 31 December 2016 was HK$1,539.2
million. Unutilized portion included HK$133.4 million for
expansion of production capacity of the existing facilities
and construction of new production facilities, and HK$41.6
million for research and development (such as purchasing
research equipment and hiring qualified research and
development personnel). The Company has no intention to
use the remaining net proceeds contrary to the description
as stated in the Prospectus.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENTS

In 2016, the Group had capital expenditures and
investments of RMB155.5 million (2015: RMB377.5 million).
This primarily included the expenditures for equipment of
warehouses and logistics of Putian production base,
logistics centres and production equipment of Chengdu
production base and production equipment of Wuhan
production base. The Group’s fixed-asset investments in
the short term will mainly be the Tianjin production base,
office buildings in Shanghai production base and phase 2 of
Chengdu production base, which are either under
construction or to be constructed. The Group’s capital
commitments relating to building, equipment and land was
RMB203.7 million (2015: RMB189.4 million).
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KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

The following table sets forth the Group's key financial
ratios for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31
December 2015:

BEZ+=-BA=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

ETES Gross profit margin
EBITDA FIjB % EBITDA margin
AArRIERFEAA Margin of profit attributable
FEAL T & to the equity holders
of the Company

mEPLL =K Current ratio
R K Quick ratio
BEXRBELE Gearing ratio
FE

AEBNFEXTZEREND - HARFREMEARE
MER¥K G - BRAEBEINE 8 A G IEEEER
He2BeReER  FEa " —AF+-_A=1+—
HWARKEZ 7TEETEMIEME =T —XRF+=
A=+—HMARKESOAFETL  BRE_ZT—XF
NAZTHEHMARKE11609EGE LHBENE - 78
AEXBABILR(ZE—AF+=_A=+—H:70
K) - FEFH60.0% BERBLEL - BILARKEE
AR%E  ZEYaREHRE -

—EB-RF
(R
REM)
2016
(Adjusted
recurring)

19.5% 19.5% 18.7%

10.0% 9.4% 13.4%

4.6% 3.9% 7.1%

—E—XF —ET—hF

+=HA=t+t—-8 +=ZA=+—H

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

1.48 1.55

1.26 1.27

16.3% 26.4%

INVENTORY

The Group’s inventory primarily includes finished products,
followed by raw materials and packaging materials, as well
as work-in-process products. As the Group took back the
nationwide distribution right for its own brand non-alcoholic
beverage products, inventory slightly increased from
RMB847.7 million as at 31 December 2015 to RMB869.4
million as at 31 December 2016, yet it showed significant
improvement as compared with RMB1,160.9 million as at 30
June 2016, while inventory turnover days were 74 days (31
December 2015: 70 days). Alcoholic beverages, household
care products and accessories have longer shelf lives and
accounted for approximately 60.0% of the inventory.
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TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group's trade receivables refer to the Group’s accounts
receivable balance from its customers. Trade receivables
decreased from RMB2,235.3 million as at 31 December
2015 to RMB2,025.8 million as at 31 December 2016. Trade
receivables turnover days decreased from 154 days at the
end of 2015 to 147 days as at 31 December 2016. The
decreases were primarily attributable to the proactive
efforts by the Group to monitor the credit terms of its
distributors and customers and follow up with the regular
review of the progress of the collection of receivables. The
Group is gradually optimizing the sales channel mix in light
of current market conditions to improve the situation of
trade receivables. As at 10 March 2017, the Group has
received RMB824.4 million of the trade receivables as of 31
December 2016.

TRADE PAYABLES

The Group’s trade payables primarily include payment due
to suppliers of third-party brand products, raw materials
and outsourced products. Trade payables increased from
RMB1,056.4 million as at 31 December 2015 to RMB1,203.7
million as at 31 December 2016. Trade payables turnover
days increased from 92 days at the end of 2015 to 97 days
as at 31 December 2016. Taking into account of the status
of trade receivables, the Group negotiated and obtained
better payment terms from some suppliers in order to
ensure greater flexibility in working capital management.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The majority of the Group’s transactions are settled in
Renminbi, which is not a free-floating currency. The
fluctuation of Renminbi during the year did not have any
material effect on the Group’s performance. The Group will
periodically review its foreign currency risks. Although the
Group is exposed to minimal exchange rate fluctuation
risks, the Group will use foreign exchange forward contracts
for risk management and to control the Group’s assets and
liabilities when interest or exchange rate is uncertain or
fluctuates, or whenever it is suitable. The Group's policy is
not to engage in speculative derivative financial
transactions and not to invest the current capital in financial
products with significant underlying leverage or risk,
including hedge funds or similar instruments.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the Group
was still in the process of renewing certificates for certain
land use rights with net book value amounting to RMB1.0
million and RMB1.1 million, respectively. The Group might
incur certain obligations in connection with such application
of land use rights certificates. Since the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability, no
provision was made in the consolidated financial
Statements.

ASSET PLEDGE

As at 31 December 2016, buildings with net book value of
RMB407.4 million (31 December 2015: RMB393.7 million),
land use rights with net book value of RMB40.5 million (31
December 2015: RMB23.8 million) and machinery and
equipment with net book value of RMB171.1 million (31
December 2015: RMB102.2 million) were pledged for
borrowings.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND STAFF
REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of 3,646
employees in the PRC and Hong Kong (31 December 2015:
3,277 employees). Employee remuneration for the year
ended 31 December 2016 were RMB265.2 million (2015:
RMB215.4 million). The Group’s employees and Directors
are remunerated with reference to their position,
performance, experience and prevailing salary trends in the
market. The Group provides professional management
training to employees, and offers incentives and share
options pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme
based on employee performance and the Group's profits.
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PROSPECTS

2017 will continue to be full of different challenges.
Although the overall economic environment has improved
in the second half of 2016 and certain economic data
stabilized as compared with that in the first half of 2016, the
economies in both the domestic and international levels
faced with increasing issues. The Chinese government has
adopted various policies to ensure steady progress in the
overall economy and to safeguard employment. As
unemployment rate remains at a low level and minimum
wage ordinance is in place, spending power in China is
increasing. This will be able to boost the overall consumer
market. China’s consumer market still has great potential
for growth, especially the market for packaged food and
beverage, even with the uncertainty of the economy in the
short term.

FUTURE STRATEGIES

In order to grasp the opportunities in the PRC's market for
packaged food and beverage, the Group will continue to
leverage its own competitive advantages to accelerate the
development of the businesses. The details of the Group's
development strategy in the future are as follows:

Continue to Strengthen Business of

Own Brand Products

The Group has always focused on the development of its
own brand products. It will continue to enrich the portfolio
of its own brand products while further solidifying the
market position of existing product offerings. For the past
three years, the compound annual growth rate of own
brand products revenue reached 17%, and the revenue
contribution of own brand products increased from 30.2%
to 43.7%. Structural adjustments will be carried out
according to market demands to phase out unsatisfactory
stock keeping units, while efforts will be made to facilitate
continuous innovation and promotion of new, trendy and
healthy products. The Group will strengthen the market
penetration of its products to take the own brand business
to new heights.
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Continue to Optimize Distribution Networks
and Business Presence Nationwide

In order to tap into the end consumers’ increasing demand
for the Group’s products in the PRC, the Group will extend
its market coverage by further expanding its distribution
networks. Tenwow is putting efforts to improve its existing
distribution networks in eastern and central China while
continuing to expand business presence into new markets
in southwestern and northern China. The Group will
strategically establish production bases in various regions
across China for the production and sale of its own brand
non-alcoholic beverages, foods and snacks locally. Such
business model will bring a number of benefits to the
Group. For instance, the Group will reduce transportation
costs and improve its inventory management. Moreover, it
enables the Group to make flexible adjustment to its
production capacity according to changes in the market
and meet demands promptly. The Group will also establish
a fast-moving product platform by improving the special
sales channels, on-premise channels, modern retail
channels and small business channels to promote sales of
the Group's products.

Marketing Strategy Diversification

The Group's marketing strategy was mainly comprised of
online marketing and offline activities. Over the past years,
the Group put significant effort in television commercial
programmes and other online media to build up brand
recognition of Tenwow products. In the future, the Group
will adjust its marketing strategy by shifting its focus from
traditional television commercial programmes to diversified
offline and new media to build direct contact with
consumers.

Strengthen Internal Incentive Mechanism

In order to attract experienced talents to cope with
increasingly intensified market competition, Tenwow will
further enhance its internal incentive mechanism to align
profit targets with income of sales staff. Extra earnings
beyond profit targets set by the Group will be shared with
the contributing sales team. In addition, the Group will
develop various internal incentive mechanisms to recognize
and reward employees for outstanding performance, so as
to inspire them to create greater value for the Group.
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Expand Online Market to Boost Online Sales
With more and more consumers getting used to online
consumption, the fast-growing online channels boost the
potential for huge growth. In light of this, the Group has
established a dedicated online sales team by recruiting
experienced talent and making strenuous efforts to build
online channels. Meanwhile, the Group developed special
product lines which cater to the online market for food and
snacks, and will launch a variety of online promotional
activities in different seasons to expand market share.
Online sales have become an important sales channel, the
Group will act rationally and develop online sales channels
in an orderly manner, so that online and offline sales
channels will compliment each other to promote high-
quality Tenwow products. In order to accommodate the
needs of the Group’s online businesses, apart from the
existing sub-warehouse in Shanghai, the Group will
establish sub-warehouses in every production base across
the country to save logistics costs, enhance profitability of
the Company and improve gross profit margin of the
Group's products.

Look for Opportunities for Business Expansion
To expand its business further, the Group will continue to
seek opportunities for acquisitions and cooperation
according to criteria such as the brand recognition of the
potential acquisition target or business partner, business
prospects, compatibility with the Group’s existing products,
sales channel coverage, management team and transaction
price. The Group believes that suitable acquisitions or
cooperation can further improve the value chain of the
Group, help to explore more distribution channels and bring
in new products, new experiences and expertise.
Acquisitions and cooperation will also provide a springboard
for the Group's diversification into different product
categories in the future. This will help to enhance the
Group’s market position and enlarge its market share. The
Company introduced Fosun as a strategic investor in 2016,
with an aim to explore opportunities in different business
areas.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Board of the Company is committed to achieving high
corporate governance standards.

The Board believes that good corporate governance
standards are essential in providing a framework for the
Company to safeguard the interests of Shareholders, to
enhance corporate value, to formulate its business
strategies and policies, and to enhance its transparency
and accountability.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on the principles and code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (the “Listing Rules”).

The Board is of the view that throughout the year under
review, the Company has complied with all the code
provisions as set out in the CG Code, except for code
provision E.1.2 which states that the Chairman of the Board
should attend the annual general meeting of the Company.
Related details are set out in the paragraph headed
“Communication with Shareholders and Investor Relations”
below.

The Company will continue to review and enhance its
corporate governance practices to ensure that these will
continue to meet the requirements of the CG Code and the
rising expectations of the Shareholders and investors.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Company has also established written guidelines of no
less exacting terms than the Model Code for securities
transactions by employees (the "Employees Written
Guidelines”) who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company.
No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written
Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises nine Directors, consisting of
five executive Directors, one non-executive Director and
three independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lin Jianhua, Chairman of the Board and Chairman of the
Nomination Committee

Mr. Wang Juewei, Chief Executive Officer and member of
the Remuneration Committee

Mr. Lam Hang Boris, Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary

Mr. Yeung Yue Ming

Ms. Au Lai Hang

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Liu Zhao
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Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong, member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee

Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren, Chairman of the Audit
Committee

Mr. Wang Longgen, Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and member of the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee

* With effect from 22 March 2017, Mr. Wang Juewei will resign as
executive Director, Chief Executive Officer and member of the
Remuneration Committee, Mr. Lin Jianhua will be appointed as the
Chief Executive Officer and member of the Remuneration Committee,
Mr. Lin Qi will be appointed as executive Director, Mr. Yan Zhixiong
will be appointed as non-executive Director, and Mr. Shen Yalong will
be appointed as independent non-executive Director.

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 126 to 133 of this annual report.

None of the members of the Board is related to one
another.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the positions of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr. Lin
Jianhua and Mr. Wang Juewei respectively. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning and leadership of the Board. The Chief Executive
Officer focuses on the Company’s business development
and daily management and operations generally.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors representing one-third of the Board
with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.
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The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive Directors in
respect of his independence in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) of the Company are appointed for a
specific term of 3 years, subject to renewal after the expiry
of the then current term.

The Company’s articles of association (“Articles of
Association”) provides that all Directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy shall be subject to election by Shareholders
at the first general meeting after appointment.

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being, or if their number is not three of a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. The retiring Directors shall be
eligible for re-election.

Responsibilities of the Directors

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and overseeing the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performance and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees,
leads and provides direction to management by laying
down strategies and overseeing their implementation,
monitors the Group’s operational and financial
performance, and ensures that sound internal control and
risk management systems are in place.
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All Directors, including non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible
for ensuring a high standard of regulatory reporting of the
Company and providing a balance in the Board for bringing
effective independent judgement on corporate actions and
operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the
information of the Company and may, upon request, seek
independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company'’s expenses for discharging
their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other
offices held by them and the Board regularly reviews the
contribution required from each Director to perform his/her
responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant
operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities
relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing
and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage
on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal
actions taken against Directors and senior management
arising out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage
would be reviewed on an annual basis.
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Continuous Professional Development of
Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments
and changes in order to effectively perform their
responsibilities and to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements. Such induction shall be
supplemented by visits to the Company’s key plant sites
and meetings with senior management of the Company.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. Internally-facilitated briefings for
Directors would be arranged and reading material on
relevant topics would be provided to Directors where
appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
organized training sessions conducted by qualified
professionals for all Directors. Such training sessions cover
a wide range of relevant topics including directors’ duties
and responsibilities, corporate governance and update on
Listing Rule amendments, etc. In addition, relevant reading
materials including directors’ manual, legal and regulatory
update, seminar handouts and business development have
been provided to the Directors for their reference and
studying.



AW st 3/
JL%E/I:I %

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

REBEE-_ZE—XRNF+_A=1+—HILFE E£#& The record of continuous professional development relating
SHEHEERENEENER RN BT EY to director’s duties and regulatory and business

REVECEEBEDIAT - development that have been received by the Directors for
the year ended 31 December 2016 are summarized as
follows:

3 B FE R
BEx Directors Type of Training Nete
BTES Executive Directors
MEBESE Mr. Lin Jianhua A B
TERIESLE Mr. Wang Juewei A B
MRS A Mr. Lam Hang Boris A B
BHsh L Mr. Yeung Yue Ming A B
EEEZL Ms. Au Lai Hang A B
FHTES Non-Executive Directors
g E Mr. Liu Zhao* A B
S i Ms. Chen Shirley Shiyou** B
BIFHTES Independent Non-Executive Directors
RE R & Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong A B
RE(ESLAE Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren A B
FEBRLEAE Mr. Wang Longgen A B
* 21815 —A"FRATN\RERIAFHITES * Mr. Liu Zhao was appointed as non-executive Director on 18 May
2016
*E BRERZTR T "FRATN\BREFNTES *x Ms. Chen Shirley Shiyou retired as non-executive Director on 18 May
2016

B3 Note:

b= illp ity Types of Training

A 2E IR BFEETRAMNE e €2kES A Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings,

TE seminars, conferences and workshops
B: BIEAENEIER  RE BT #ZREHETY B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and

relevant publications
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REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees
are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website and are available to the Shareholders
upon request.

Audit Committee

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit
Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren, Mr. Liu
Chang-Tzong and Mr. Wang Longgen. Mr. Cheung Yui Kai
Warren is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no
less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the
Board in reviewing the financial information and reporting
process, risk management and internal control systems,
effectiveness of the internal audit function, scope of audit
and appointment of external auditor, and arrangements to
enable employees of the Company to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
or other matters of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit
Committee held three meetings to review the interim and
annual financial results and reports and significant issues
on the financial reporting, operational and compliance
controls, the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit function,
appointment of external auditor and relevant scope of
works and, connected transactions and arrangements for
employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditor twice
without the presence of the executive Directors.
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Remuneration Committee

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Wang Longgen, independent non-executive
Director, Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong, independent non-executive
Director, and Mr. Wang Juewei, executive Director. Mr.
Wang Longgen is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
of no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee
include reviewing and making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, the remuneration policy
and structure for all Directors and senior management; and
establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no
Director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Remuneration Committee met once to review and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy
and structure of the Company, and the remuneration
packages of the executive Directors and senior
management and other related matters.

The remuneration of Directors is determined with reference
to their experience, qualifications, responsibilities involved in
the Company and the prevailing market conditions. Details of
emoluments of Directors for the year under review are set
out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. The
emoluments paid to senior management by band for the
year ended 31 December 2016 is set out below:

BREEEAR

Number of
Senior Management

Tz AR 500,000 7T Nil to RMB500,000
AR #500,001 7T E A K # 1,000,000 7T RMB500,001 to RMB1,000,000 3
AR5 1,000,000 7T A £ Over RMB1,000,000 2
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Nomination Committee

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination
Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Lin
Jianhua, executive Director, Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong and Mr.
Wang Longgen, independent non-executive Directors. Mr.
Lin Jianhua is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of
no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, developing and
formulating relevant procedures for the nomination and
appointment of Directors, making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and succession planning of
Directors, and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee would take into account various aspects as well
as factors concerning Board diversity as set out in the
Company's Board diversity policy , including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry
and regional experience etc. The Nomination Committee
would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and
recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for
directorships, the Nomination Committee would consider
the candidate’s character, qualifications, experience,
independence and other relevant criteria necessary to
complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board
diversity, where appropriate, before making
recommendation to the Board.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination
Committee met once to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors, to consider the
qualifications of the retiring directors standing for re-
election at the annual general meeting and to consider and
recommend to the Board on the appointment of Mr. Liu
Zhao as non-executive Director. The Nomination Committee
considered an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives
of the Board is maintained.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set
out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the
Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model
Code and Employees Written Guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report.
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MiEE Lin Jianhua
THE wang Juewei
e Lam Hang Boris
158k Yeung Yue Ming
REE Au Lai Hang
B (R=F—"%  Chen Shirley Shiyou
IA +/\ AR{E) (Retired on 18 May 2016)
(R =_ZT—RF Liu Zhao
AATN\BEBAE) (Appointed on 18 May 2016)
22 R Liu Chang-Tzong
RERE Cheung Yui Kai Warren
TR Wang Longgen
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and
Board Committee meetings and the general meetings of the
Company held during the year ended 31 December 2016 is
set out in the table below:

HE/EEAH

Attendance/Number of Meetings
RRAFAE
REZES HHEES ERZEE Annual
Nomination Remuneration Audit General
Committee Committee Committee Meeting
4/4 Al N/A N/A 01
4/4 N/A 11 N/A 0N
4/4 N/A N/A N/A 11
4/4 N/A N/A N/A 0N
4/4 N/A N/A N/A 11
11 N/A N/A N/A on
2/3 N/A N/A N/A 01
3/4 Al Ul 3/3 01
3/4 N/A N/A 3/3 il
3/4 Al Ul 3/3 01

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with the non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) without the presence
of executive Directors during the year.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or l0ss.

The Board regularly reviews and makes improvements to
the risk management and internal control systems. Major
risk areas are identified, assessed and monitored and risk
mitigation plans are formulated and corrective measures
implemented.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to
take in achieving the Company's strategic objectives, and
ensuring that the Company establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the
management and overseeing their design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems.

Various risk management procedures and guidelines with
defined authority for implementation by key business
processes and office functions have been developed and
adopted by the Company.
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All divisions conducted internal control assessment
regularly to identify risks that potentially impact the
business of the Group and various aspects including key
operational and financial processes, project management,
sales and leasing, human resources, information technology
and security and regulatory compliance are covered.
Evaluation has been conducted to confirm that control
policies are properly complied with by each division.

The management, in coordination with division heads,
assessed the likelihood of risk occurrence, provide
treatment plans, and monitor the risk management
progress.

Risk management reports on all findings and the
effectiveness of the systems are collated and reported to
the Audit Committee and the Board. The management has
confirmed to the Board and the Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Internal Audit Department is responsible for providing
the internal audit function and performing independent
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems. The Internal
Audit Department examined key issues in relation to the
accounting practices and all material controls and provided
its findings and recommendations for improvement to the
Audit Committee.
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The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as
the management report and the internal audit findings,
oversees the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems on an ongoing basis, and has reviewed the
risk management and internal control systems, including
the financial, operational and compliance controls, for the
year ended 31 December 2016, and considered that such
systems are effective and adequate. The annual review also
covered the financial reporting and internal audit function
and staff qualifications, experiences and relevant resources.

Arrangements are in place to facilitate employees of the
Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters of the Company.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which
provides a general guideline to the Company’s Directors,
officers, senior management and relevant employees in
handling and disseminating inside information, monitoring
information disclosure and responding to enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that

unauthorized access and use of inside information are
strictly prohibited.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2016.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company'’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
from pages 134 to 141.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company's external auditor of
the Company in respect of audit services for the year ended
31 December 2016 amounted to RMB3,580,000. Non-audit
service fee of RMB80,000 was also paid to the external
auditor in relation to the provision of advisory service for
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2016.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Board appointed Mr. Lam Hang Boris as its Company
Secretary in accordance with the Articles of Association
and in compliance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2016, Mr. Lam
complied with the professional training requirement of
taking no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training as set out in Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary on corporate governance and board
practices and matters.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company engages with Shareholders through various
communication channels and a shareholders’
communication policy is in place to ensure that
Shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its
effectiveness.

To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights,
separate resolution should be proposed for each
substantially separate issue at general meetings, including
the election of individual Director. All resolutions put
forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange
after each general meeting.

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING BY SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association,
extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on the
requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date
of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing
to the Board or the Secretary for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2 months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
company.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings
Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association, any
member who wishes to propose a person other than a
retiring director at a general meeting for election as director
of the Company may lodge a notice in writing of the
intention to propose that person for election as director and
a notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be
elected at the Head Office at Suite 1101, 11th Floor, 28
Hennessy Road, Hong Kong or at the Registration Office of
the Company at Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The
period for lodgment of the notices will commence no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
7 days prior to the date of such general meeting and the
minimum length of the period during which such notices to
the Company may be given will be at least 7 days.

Shareholders who wish to put forward other proposals at
general meetings may follow the procedures set out above
to request the Company to convene an extraordinary
general meeting for the transaction of business specified in
the requisition.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the
Company, Shareholders may send written enquiries to the
Company. The Company will not normally deal with verbal
Or anonymous enquiries.
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Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as
mentioned above to the following:

Address:  Suite 1101, 11th Floor, 28 Hennessy Road,
Hong Kong
For the attention of the Company Secretary
Fax: (852) 2808 1721
Email: enquiry@tenwowfood.com

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit
and send the original duly signed written requisition, notice
or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above
address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

Shareholders may call the Company at (852) 2808 1972 for
assistance if required.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investor understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to
maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and in
particular, through annual general meetings and other
general meetings. At the annual general meeting, Directors
(or their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet
Shareholders and answer their enquiries.
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According to CG Code Provision E.1.2, the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Lin
Jianhua, Chairman of the Board was unable to attend the
2016 annual general meeting held on 18 May 2016 due to
business engagement. Mr. Lin Jianhua has appointed Mr.
Lam Hang Boris, executive Director, to attend and answer
questions on his behalf at the annual general meeting. Mr.
Lin Jianhua will use his best endeavours to attend all future
Shareholders’ meetings of the Company.

During the year under review, the Company has not made
any changes to its Articles of Association. An up to date
version of the Articles of Association is available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange's website.
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Always taking social responsibility as part of its corporate
culture, Tenwow promotes behavior norms such as energy
conservation and emission reduction, integrity and
commitment as well as poverty relief, making its
contribution to the construction of a harmonious enterprise
and harmonious society. Within the Company, we focus on
cultivation of corporate culture by upholding the “people-
oriented” principle, which respects individual value and taps
employee potential, so as to build up our core enterprise
competitiveness. We also take the health of the customers
as our top priority, and constantly strive to provide them
with outstanding products and services.

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2016 (the
"ESG Report”), which was prepared by the Company in
accordance with the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (the "ESG Guide”) set out in Appendix 27
of the Listing Rules, covers the reporting period from 1
January 2016 to 31 December 2016, and outlines our
philosophy and practice for sustainable development and
social responsibility from both environmental and social
perspectives.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

The Company formulated the Environmental
Protection Manual (3% 3% 4R # Ffft )) in accordance
with the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China ({ R ZE A R £ FE IR IFRE X))
and other laws and regulations to provide guidance
on the prevention and treatment of six kinds of
pollutants within the industrial parks (or business
units) of the Group and to facilitate environmental
protection and pollution prevention and treatment
within the industrial parks of the Group and the places
where the Company operates business, so as to
effectively reduce discharge of pollutants, promote
continuous improvement and development and
ensure a healthy working environment for our
employees. The six kinds of pollutants include "W”
(waste), “S” (sewage), "A" (air pollution), “T" (toxic
substances), “N” (noise) and “R" (radioactive
substances):
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Necessary measures (such as waste classification, segregation and volume compression) should be taken
to prevent or reduce solid waste pollution when any solid wastes are generated. Unauthorized discharge
and misplacement should be prohibited so as to prevent the environmental pollution from solid wastes.
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The Group should make gradual improvement to techniques and equipments that produce waste water.
The environmental protection personnel should record the category, quantity and concentration of
discharged pollutants as required and provide technical information on prevention and treatment of water
pollution. Such information should be updated in a timely manner when there is material change thereof.

BB NERBERSEIARENIETETRENNREENIRIRERMAT - DAER - EBNESE -
All departments should ensure the smooth operation of air pollution prevention and treatment facilities
and that the emissions meet the requirements of relevant environmental protection laws and regulations.
Efforts should be made to prevent exhaust gas, smoke and dust pollution.

BUASED  BEHEERDARK  BRERZINGERE -
A list has been created to include all toxic drugs and agentia and an accounting has been maintained to
record their utilization. Residues should be transported by external parties for handling on a regular basis.
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When planning for any new construction, expansion or reconstruction projects, the Group should give
priority to select sound insulation materials as much as possible so as to reduce and isolate noise.
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The acquisition of radioactive equipment or instruments should be filed with and approved by the
competent department. Brand-new equipment and instruments should be subject to safety inspection, so
as to prevent unnecessary irregularities.

INIE TR
Six Kinds of Pollutants
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An environmental protection management committee
has also been established and the respective general
manager of each industrial park has been appointed
as chairman member in order to facilitate and
supervise the environmental protection activities of
the Company.

An environmental impact assessment shall be
conducted for any new construction, expansion and
reconstruction projects of the Company prior to
commencement of construction in accordance with
the environmental impact assessment regulations
implemented by the government. The Company shall
make prior investigation into, prediction and
assessment of the location and design of any
construction projects and their potential adverse
impacts on environment after being put into
operation, and shall also put forward prevention and
treatment measures. The environmental management
department shall be responsible for the supervision of
the implementation of the prevention and treatment
measures suggested in the environmental impact
assessment during the construction process. When
assessing any project, the construction department
shall take into consideration the prevention and
treatment measures suggested in the environmental
impact assessment, and shall adopt these measures
or such techniques superior than those as suggested.
The Company shall also strictly implement the “three
simultaneity” system for environmental protection
purpose, namely the environmental protection
facilities of all newly-built, rebuilt and expanded
capital construction projects and technological
transformation projects shall be designed,
constructed and put into operation simultaneously
with the main works.
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Sewage discharge

The Company has set up sewage treatment
stations to dispose and discharge wastewater in
strict compliance with the Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China ((fE AR HMEIK)5 2058
7% ) and other laws and regulations as well as
local wastewater quality standards. Sewage was
treated to reach the discharge standard and
then discharged into urban sewage pipe
network. For example, sewage discharged from
the sewage treatment station in Shanghai
Industrial Park shall meet the requirements of
the Wastewater Quality Standards for Discharge
to Municipal Sewers ()5 7K ¥ A 3 $8 T 7K 38 7K
EIZAE)) (DB31-445-2009).

The Company has formulated and strictly abided
by the Introduction and Working Process of
Sewage Treatment Station Facilities (57K Bz 38
uh % M T 4B & T E R R D) in facilities
maintenance and troubleshooting for sewage
treatment stations, so as to ensure that all
facilities are in sound operating condition and
the discharged sewage meets the sewage
treatment requirements. The person-in-charge
should keep records of the operation of sewage
treatment station, prepare water quality test
report and receive inspection from the
government and the relevant department of the
Company. The Company should provide training
for the staff in charge of sewage treatment, so
that the employees are not only familiar with
the working principle, operation, fault diagnosis
and troubleshooting, but also are able to carry
out regular maintenance and management
works, so as to ensure the effect of sewage
treatment.
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In Shanghai and Wuhan Industrial Parks, the
Company has entrusted qualified third parties to
carry out operation and maintenance works
(such as operation of processing equipment,
equipment repair and maintenance and water
quality monitoring and analysis) for industrial
and sanitary wastewater generated from
sewage treatment stations, so as to ensure that
the treated sewage meets the required
standards.

Air emission

The Company strictly abides by the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Atmospheric Pollution (€ & # A
RHEMEIRRI520778%)) and other laws and
regulations, and takes measures to prevent and
control exhaust gas pollution in accordance with
the Environmental Protection Manual of
Tenwow Foods (Group) Co., Lid. (( XIBR 5 (%
) BR A ERERETFM)), which include:

. The Company shall manage the emission
of pollutants in accordance with the
discharge capacity stipulated by the
government;

. Each unit should ensure the smooth
operation of air pollution prevention and
controlling facilities, and emissions shall
meet the requirements of the
environmental protection regulations; and

. Each unit should take relevant measures
to collect and dispose fugitive emission of
exhaust gas during the production process
to ensure such emissions meet the
environmental protection requirements in
the PRC.
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In addition, the Company has formulated the
Management System for Gas-fired Boilers (€ #&
1B E 12 )), Operating Instructions for
Boilers (€ %7 %& # £ #] 72 )) and Boiler Safety
Operation Regulation ((HR1EZ 2R 1ERIE)) to
ensure the smooth operation of boilers.

Waste discharge

The Company strictly abides by with the
requirements of the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste (€ &
ZEARANBIEBEZEY TRARENRE))
and Standards for Pollution Control on
Hazardous Waste Storage (GB18597-2001), and
has formulated the Waste Control and
Management System to dispose solid wastes.
The Company has taken necessary measures
for solid wastes generated during the course of
production to prevent or mitigate environmental
pollution caused by solid wastes, taken
proactive measures to collect and recycle
industrial solid wastes in light of the economic
and technical conditions of the Company, and
engaged lawful contractors to dispose (solid)
wastes generated by the Company.

In order to strengthen effective control and
management of hazardous wastes and prevent
environmental pollution caused by them, the
Company has formulated the Management
System for Hazardous Wastes to regulate the
classified storage and labeling of hazardous
wastes as well as liaison with hazardous waste
disposal companies for daily transfer, in order to
ensure proper disposal of hazardous wastes
and not imposing extra burdens on the
environment.

The wastes produced by the Company (including
household garbage, kitchen waste oil, general
industrial solid wastes and hazardous industrial
wastes) were all collected by qualified third
parties for disposal.
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A2 Use of Resources

Energy conservation

The Company strictly implements the Energy
Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of
China ({7 ZE A R £ F1 B & 49 88 )R /% ») and
other policies, regulations and standards issued
by the competent national, local and industrial
authorities, making constant efforts to improve
energy efficiency and performance and
encouraging its staff to participate in energy
conservation and carbon reduction. Each
industrial park of the Company is required to
formulate its own energy conservation and
emission reduction system in light of its energy
consumption status.

Taking Shanghai Tenwow Tea Co., Ltd. as an
example, it has formulated its own Energy
Conservation and Emission Reduction System
(€ &7 8E SR BE % £ )), which designates the
steering group as the energy conservation body
for the Group and specifies its duties and
responsibilities, including:

. proactively organizing promotion,
education and trainings in relation to
energy conservation;

. making plans for energy conservation
technological transformation and
technology research as well as annual
energy conservation plans,

. reviewing and approving various annual
energy consumption indicators and
energy conservation targets;

. reviewing and approving the company’s
major achievements in energy
conservation and major rewards and
punishments,
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. conducting inspection on various energy
conservation activities carried out by the
Company; and

. convening energy conservation meetings
on a regular basis to plan, arrange,
examine and summarize its energy
conservation activities.

As the steering group for energy conservation,
each competent energy conservation
department of Shanghai Tenwow Tea Co., Ltd.
should coordinate and manage the energy
conservation tasks, and carry out supervision
and inspection on various energy conservation
works of the company under the leadership of
the steering group for energy conservation.

In addition, Shanghai Tenwow Tea Co., Ltd. has
formulated the Fuel Management System (£ 1
¥ WK B IR # E )), Management System for
Rational Electricity Utilization and Power
Conservation K ¥ AR EMEHOREEIE
% /£ ), Quota-based Management System for
Energy Consumption K > aEFEE SR E R HIE)),
Reward and Punishment System for Energy
Conservation and Rational Heat Usage ({ > ¥£0
PR EE XA IEMAH)), Energy
Measurement and Statistics Management
System (R EEERTE - B HIE)) and
other systems to strengthen management of
energy usage, reduce loss and waste of energy
and water resources in every aspect of the
production, so as to ensure resources are
utilized more efficiently and rationally, provide
institutional assurance for energy conservation
and consumption reduction, with aim to develop
the Company into a resource-conserving and
environment-friendly enterprise.
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The Company has implemented a quota-based
management system for energy consumption.
Working together with the production
technology management department and
equipment management department, the
competent energy conservation department
leads in determining the energy consumption
quota of the Company. The Company continues
to improve the supporting quota-based energy
supply system, quota-based energy
consumption stratified management and reward
and punishment system, to promote quota-
based management production, guide and
monitor production, so as to minimize energy
consumption.

Water conservation

The Company strictly abides by the Water Law
of the People’s Republic of China ({(F#E A R #
MEA7K%D) and other laws and regulations, and
takes measure to strengthen management of
water conservation and ensure rational
utilization of water resources, in an effort to
develop into a green and resource-saving
enterprise. In order to make rational use of
water resources, the Company has taken the
following measures:

. The water supply and usage system
should be designed, constructed,
inspected and put into operation
simultaneously with the main production
system. The equipment used in the water
supply and usage device system, such as
pipelines, pumps, cooling equipments,
storage equipments, meters and
treatment facilities, should be designed,
manufactured and installed according to
the relevant PRC regulations and product
standards. All water supply and usage
devices should be inspected and
maintained regularly, so as to maintain a
good condition and to prevent leakage.
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Metering devices shall be installed in
accordance with the provisions of
Metrology Law of the People’s Republic of
China ({1 #E AR HFBIFH2%)) and the
Guideline on Provision and Management
of Energy Metering Instruments in
Enterprise (tentative) ((>EERTE8RA
Be s F1 & @A) (R 17)) when taking
water from water source. Water sub-
meters should be installed for all water
usage systems and should be checked
and calibrated on a regular basis. Efforts
should be made to strengthen
measurement and record of internal
supply and water use.

In light of its production equipment, water
usage and water resources, the Company
should develop water consumption gquota
for main products and recycle rate of
water for different products respectively.

The washing mode and water recycle rate
have been improved through water-saving
technology transformation of the technical
system, including adopting production
technique using less water or not using
water at all.

Water-saving equipments and fixtures,
circulating cooling devices, air-cooled air-
conditioning devices and water-saving
toilets should be installed. Water-saving
equipments and fixtures should be
selected according to the characteristics
of water use technology, ensuring water
use technology matching with water-
saving equipments and fixtures.
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Each industrial park is required to develop its
own water-saving system in light of its water
consumption status. Taking Shanghai Tenwow
Tea Co., Ltd. as an example, it has formulated
the Water Conservation System (€ &5 7K &l & )
and the Management System for Rational Heat
and Water Usage ({4 EAH - A/KERES
£ ), which provide that all water-using points
within the plant should implement two-level
management and install meters for
measurement, and efforts should be made to
supervise and monitor water usage at various
water-using points; Accountability system
should be implemented for water-saving
management, and each key water-using
department should appoint one person to be
the officer-in-charge for achieving the water-
saving target of the department.

Case study:

Shanghai Tenwow Tea Co., Ltd. achieved
rational water usage and greatly reduced
consumption of fresh water by several water-
saving means such as water treatment
technology transformation, recycle of water
used to wash bottles and caps, recycle of steam
condensate for reuse, reduction of bottle-
cooling machines, reduction of cleaning in place
washing frequency and change of lubricating
mode of conveyer belt.

Paper saving

Tenwow (Wuhan) Food Co., Ltd. has formulated
the Management Measures for Energy
Conservation and Consumption Reduction of
Wuhan Tenwow (EUE K IE A 7] 80 8L P& FE B 1
# & )) to strengthen management, so as to
achieve scientific and rational utilization of
resources and reduce waste. The Measures
advocates paperless office practice and requires
using electronic means for document
transmission as much as possible. When printed
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A3

B1

copy is required, efforts must be made to avoid
error printing and paper waste, and double-
sided printing should be adopted for documents
comprising more than three pages (if
applicable). In case of error printing, the paper
may be used for receiving fax. The
Administration and Human Resources
Department should supervise and monitor the
implementation of the Measures by each
department, the result of which will be taken
into consideration for performance appraisal of
each department.

Environment and Natural Resources
The Company is principally engaged in the
production and sales of snack food, and it is not
a high-energy-consumption and heavy-pollution
enterprise. The major resources consumed by
the Company are electricity and water, which
have been discussed in A2 Use of Resources.
Apart from these, no other major environment
and natural resources are used by the
Company, therefore A3 Environment and
Natural Resources is not applicable.

B SOCIAL

Employment

In order to further regulate the recruitment and
employment management of the Company,
efficiently deploy suitable talents, optimize
internal talent structure and satisfy the demand
for human resources of the Company and
business development, the Company strictly
abides by the Labor Law of the People’s
Republic of China ((H ZE A R H MBI 25 8))%))
and Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic
of China ({ZE AR LFMBIZBE & R %)) and
other laws and regulations, and has formulated
the Recruitment Management System ((BE2%&
EHZ)) to stipulate the fundamental works for
talent recruitment and outline recruitment
process.
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Employment

Upholding the principle of “morality first and
merit based fairness, impartiality and openness;
selection by talent, engagement by posts and
internal promotion first”, the Company carries
out open recruitment through all kinds of
channels and evaluates and hires the most
suitable candidates through the interview
procedures of the Company. Meanwhile,
adhering to the principle of “talent reserve and
talent recommendation”, employees are
encouraged to recommend talents for the
Company and awards will be granted for every
successful case.

Protection of employees’ interests

The Company signs labor contract with each
employee in accordance with national and local
laws and regulations, performs its due
obligations under such contracts and protects
the legitimate interests of its employees. The
Company also provides social insurance for its
employees in accordance with national and
local laws and regulations. The Company
provides remuneration package based on salary
rate of the peer companies and position rank of
the individual employee, which is competitive as
compared to that of other peer companies and
fair as compared with other peer employees
within the Company. The remuneration is
determined by the Company after performance
assessment with reference to the position,
production skill, professional skill, length of
service and performance of each individual
employee. Overtime practice is based on a
voluntary and approval basis, so as to ensure
that overtime practice is exercised by the
employees voluntarily, and payment for
overtime work will be made as agreed in the
employment contract.
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The Company respects employees’ rights for
breaks and holidays: employees are entitled to
the statutory holidays, annual leave, marriage
leave, bereavement leave, work-related injury
leave, maternity leave, paternity leave, etc.
Except for the employees working on flexible
working hour system, all the employees of the
Company work for eight hours a day and five
days a week as standard working hours, and
any extra working hours will be accounted as
overtime hours. The Company makes sure that
all employees deserve at least a clean day of
break for each week except for special
situations.

Employee benefits

Besides salary and wages, the Company also
offers performance-linked bonus to employees
on a quarterly basis according to the operating
results of the Company and individual
performance of the employees, extends gifts in
kind to the employees on Chinese major
traditional festivals such as the Dragon Boat
Festival, Mid-autumn Festival and Spring
Festival, provides traffic allowances and meal
allowances and provides communication
allowances based on the needs of different
posts. In addition, the Company has established
activity rooms for the employees, and
accommodation is available on demand by
employees who are single, with aim to provide
convenient living conditions for the employees
and enrich their spare time life.
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BI%RE Employee development

NEHIE T REPMROBMIE R - SR The Company has established a sophisticated
BT F L EETTRE - §F - AF and well-defined position system to regulate
SEHHEIMNITHERREMERE H#E position name and function category. Each year,
TS - W ASM B TIREARMTEZEN the Company conducts assessment on the
FHIREAKE  EEBUERR - BT performance and development potential of
HEMS REE MR - individual employee, and provides open and

equal training and promotion opportunities for
every employee. When a position vacancy
opens up, all employees have the opportunity to
apply for it.

** P3-BART2AM senior engineer

< P2-Tigffengineer e O5-EREME workshop director s
M4-4§32 manager ... PI-BYEI2AM assistantengineer ...l 04-ERJ&IEE deputy workshop director - - - - S5-4&32 manager
SA-[RIAF3E regional manager
Ve el N R 03-E% head <. S3-E% head
M2-BB coOrdinator e 02-#f& T mechanic ©e S)-#7£B salesman
MIB Gtk e S1-$5E 5052 sales assistant

O1-#2ET operator

EEF BEFI BRI EHF5
Management function Professional function Operation function Marketing function
HET
New employees

REETIHEZHRE
Occupational development path of Tenwow employees
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ETIZILETE Employees’ diversified life
AE@FE T T EAENEXK - EIRAH The Company cares about the employees’
EELEMNEE  mEERBENARE various needs and proactively organizes rich
NE o and colorful activities, so as to create a friendly
and harmonious atmosphere like a big warm
family.
fﬁ/'tim/ f Annual grand ceremony
7t$%B§$#b#¢Fm/\ 20164 The Company holds annual grand ceremony
ERM - REBEREXFTIE  HIE each year. At the 2016 annual ceremony,
FIFEIZ - AR L T2 EREE - MNERE leaders of the Company delivered speeches
B IS B RRRAMERT - about performance during the past year and

targets for the coming year. This event offered
an opportunity for all the staff in the Company
to have a good time together and to enhance
understanding for and communication with
each other, which could help to improve goal
commitment and team cohesion.

e
20'6$E. 501

& M 4
201 6XI0E - ik % i

E B LW

2016 XE &R EREAREM HHIENERELRTT
2016 Tenwow&Nanpu annual grand ceremony held at Tenwow
Research and Development and Quality Control Building
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Employee birthday party

In order to promote our corporate culture, offer
care for employees and reward employees for
their longtime hard work, Tenwow Group held a
birthday party for several staff at its
headquarters in July 2016, creating a lively and
happy family moment for everyone.

Hiking

In order to enrich the employees’ cultural life,
encourage all staff to actively participate in
sports, promote the concept of and participation
in physical exercises, advocate for green travel
and pursue civilized and healthy lifestyle, the
Company held the 2016 TenwoweNanpu hiking
at Houguanhu National Wetland Park in Caidian
District, Wuhan City on 16 May 2016 despite the
light spring shower.
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TAEFIREE b Living and recreational facilities for employees
RABINREBETEEE RE EEI The Company has provided the employees with
B ENMEE S AR IRERE various living and recreational facilities including

\
A

IﬂIE 3

Eﬂ} it D)

TEIMEE- dormitory building, staff canteen, table tennis
room, audiovisual room and reading room, so
as to enrich their life.

i

ERIRE
Table tennis room

B& :—H

HE
Reading room

=470
A=

Audiovisual room

B2 REHEZ2 B2 Health and Safety
NEIEIGE TR EARKEMBELB)ZE) The Company strictly abides by the Labour Law
(EIJ?E}\E BT 2EEE) - (PEA of the People’s Republic of China ((FR#E A R
HAMBEBERGAE)SEHBEERE M & B 3L )), Law of the People’s Republic of
%E BORBETRMHER &2 B China on Work Safety ({ F #E AR EFE % &
B LIEIRIE - 4 E % )), Law on Prevention and Control of

Occupational Diseases of the People’s Republic
of China ({1 #E A R FEMBIBEZmTA7%)) and
other relevant laws and regulations, and is
committed to creating a healthy, safe and
comfortable working environment for its
employees.
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Based on the current condition of production
safety management, the Company has
established a set of safety management
systems in respect of safety production targets,
management organisation and personnel
staffing, safety education and training, major
hazardous sources management, hazardous
chemicals management, occupational health
management, safety inspection, fire control
safety and emergency rescue, covering 30
management systems and 21 safety operation
regulations such as the Work Safety Goal
Management System K Z & £ E B 1Z & 12
HIE)), the Management System on Work Safety
Accountability System & & 4% E & 1
& 18 &) £ )), the Management System of Laws
and Regulations and Other Requirements on
Work Safety (&2 & EEEEREEMERE
& 12 %] E )) the Management System on
Operation, Overhaul, Repairs and Maintenance
of Equipment and Facilities (5% & 5% i & 17
BiE - E - REEESE)) and the Major
Hazardous Sources Management System ({E X
&k R & B §l E )). Meanwhile, constant
efforts have been made by the Company to
systematise and standardise safety
management, with an aim to protect its
employees from any occupational hazards.

Safety officer and management by
objectives

The Company has developed a well-established
safety management network, appointing its
general manager as the officer-in-charge for
production safety and setting up safety
management department with one full-time
safety management officer under its operation
department. The Work Safety Accountability
System, the Management System on Work
Safety Accountability System and other systems
of the Company have expressly defined the
safety management responsibility and
accountability, and also regulated the
formulation, communication, review, revision
and assessment of the accountability system.
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At the beginning of every year, the Company
developed its safety management goal,
indicators and management solutions, and
signed the “"Responsibility Commitment on
Safety Goal for the Year (FEZ 2 BIZHEETE)"
with each department. The Company continued
to specify such goal and indicators for each
workshop and shift group, and signed the
"Responsibility Commitment for Safety Goal for
the Year” with the heads of each workshop and
shift group, so as to facilitate, examine and
assess the implementation process.

Safety on firefighting and fire related
operation

Adhering to the firefighting guideline of “putting
prevention first and combining prevention with
fire control”, the Company is well equipped with
firefighting facilities and devices, and conducts
inspection on such equipments on a regular
basis and sets up firefighting warning signs as
well. Meanwhile, the Company carries out
promotion and education on firefighting safety
and conducts emergency evacuation drills in
light of its production and operation.

The Company has developed the Management
System on Fire Related Operation (€ &) A 1 %
EIBH|Z)) , which provides that any fire related
operation within the premise shall be subject to
the Permit for Fire Related Operation (& A &
¥ FF 7] 7% )) issued by the relevant officer-in-
charge after onsite inspection and
implementation of fire prevention measures.



RE #HEREARSE
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

NRABREBMERETRAKLZERE
BE) HRELETHE-EE  XHEERA
FRE  FEeRE  HRERE - HER
ENEHEREEUERSE - BERE
REBAFITN - LEHIE R R ESET
2 MEERRERE  WRBEIZZ2MEZ

NAEEBREBMEIZRA T EHEH
RERGIEMRE  MREXER  HBR
E2RRTEREHBEREET R i
ERSHMWE  DILFHEX  BRE
MR S IR - AR R AT EEE
RETRESHR  BGERRERIEER  UE
EEERFERAREBFTHE BEEAER
RIS  BUEIERAZETHBME
BABRZIHBE TR [T RGE ]
RIERA - MiF ABZE2HBENEBRN
R

Safety inspection and emergency
management

The Company has required that each unit shall
strictly comply with the Safety Inspection
System ({ & & #& & &l € )) of the Company,
implementing unified management of the
equipments and conducting daily inspection,
comprehensive inspection, holiday and festival
inspection, special inspection and seasonal
inspection to eliminate potential risks and
troubles. In case of any irregularities identified
in the inspection, a corresponding rectification
plan should be made immediately to eliminate
the potential risk in a timely manner, so as to
ensure the employees’ safety and health.

All units are required to, in accordance with the
requirements of the Accident Emergency
Rescue Management System ({ =& & & & & 12
& B #l E ), (1) strengthen emergency
management to ensure timely implementation
of emergency solutions and provision of
emergency rescue facilities and materials, so as
to minimize the impact of the accident; (2)
proactively conduct special emergency
trainings, conduct emergency drills and
assessment activities; and (3) make statistical
analysis on the accident and, based on the
accident indicators of the Company, effectively
implement the principle of “Four Never” (never
letting go of an accident without finding out the
cause, without punishment for the responsible
person, without taking remedial measures or
without giving a good lesson to the parties
involved), so as to instill its staff with safety
knowledge and to implement remedial
measures.
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Occupational health management system
The Company has developed certain systems
and policies relating to provision of a safe
working environment and protection for the
employees from occupational hazards, and has
adopted a series of measures to ensure its
employees’ occupational health and safety.

In accordance with the requirements of the
Occupational Health Management System (£ B
¥ FE%E 2§ E)), the Hazardous Chemicals
Safety Management System /&t B Mm% 2
EIRHE)) and other rules of the Company, the
Company shall (1) conduct assessment on the
identification, distribution and monitoring of
occupational hazardous factors, and replace,
inspect, repair and maintain protective
equipment on a regular basis; (2) adopt the
annual checkup system on occupational safety
and physical health, and establish and maintain
employees’ occupational safety and health
records; (3) implement the accountability
system on occupational safety, health and
hygiene for hazardous positions; (4) conduct
inspection to analyze the production workspace
and put forward improvement measures on a
regular basis, for instance, adopting dust
prevention measures to minimise dust pollution,
reducing employees’ exposure to benzene
homologs and derivates, setting the high
temperature zone in the workshop, controlling
the operating hours and conducting physical
examinations for its employees with exposure
to hazardous factors on a regular basis.

In accordance with the Labour Protective
Equipment Distribution Standard of Tenwow
Foods (Group) Co., Ltd. K KB R M (£E) Q7]
25 8 [y 7& A @ B BUE 28 )), the Company has
expressly specified the requirements of labour
protective equipment for various posts.
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Production safety education and training

In order to strengthen safety education and
training and management of safety certificate in
accordance with the law, and in accordance
with the Safety Education and Training System
(&2 A &I E D) of the Company, the
Company has proactively carried out production
safety trainings involving safety regulations,
management system, goal accountability
system, hazard identification skills, three-level
safety education for new employees and
emergency plan training, and has reviewed the
relevant process in respect of “system and
regulations, operation environment and staff
education”, so as to improve the employees’
safety awareness and implementation of
standardized operations. In accordance with the
above training system, new members are
required to attend pre-work safety education at
the company, department and group level
respectively for a specified period of time, and
only those who pass the relevant examination
should be qualified for the job under the
coaching model and should be able to do the
job independently if reassessed to be qualified.

Case study:

BTz 25E

Staff Safety Training

& =i AL Bl
Emergency Evacuation Training
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B3

Development and Training

In accordance with the Employee Manual, the
Company provides equal and fair training
opportunities for each employee. The Company
attaches great emphasis on establishment of
internal management and development system,
and proactively organizes all kinds of internal
trainings, external study and development
programs such as induction training, pre-work
training, quality development and management
trainee programs, so as to improve employees’
skills, cultivate quality talents for the industry,
and promote sustainable development of the
Company.

Induction training

The HR Department gives induction for the new
members on their first day in the office, and
provides induction trainings on an irregular
basis according to the number of new
employees.

76
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Case study: induction training at Wuhan Nanpu Food

Wuhan Nanpu Food Co., Ltd. provided induction trainings for the
new employees during the year, covering corporate culture,
Employee Manual, on-line exam system, organization structure,
operation process and reimbursement standards for travel
expenses, etc. These trainings instill the employees with our
corporate culture and value, employee behavior standards, daily
operation and management system through many different ways,
with an aim to help them to get to know the Company as soon as

possible and make themselves useful on their posts.

KEBBIEA AR AR o Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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= BT Pre-work training

MEFTEINBEEMRESE - XU R These trainings are designed to introduce the
PENER  HWETZXIIEMMBEN regulations, rules and systems, corporate
HIF TN BE o culture and businesses of the Company, and to

teach the new employees the knowledge and
skills required for their work.

EERETH Quality development activities

AEEEGGE  EERFER  BRAS In order to improve team spirit, strengthen
BRED  RAN2016FHRET ZEE sense of competition and promote team
AHEERREE o cohesion, the Company held a variety of quality

development activities in 2016.

=0 - Case Study:
20165E7 8 - AR AMBIEET —X  Inluly 2016, the Company organized an experiential outbound
e AEE - ZEIEEMRE T training for the Finance Department, which aimed to enhance

R BEEBORE S ERERES communication among the employees, promote team cohesion,
BEYHERMCXEE - AfMEERMBE instill successful concepts and establish common company
DB BR E R T E S A R E B UL - mission, so as to cultivate high-performance team culture and
IRFRK B (DL E RN ETE o improve sense of collective honour and commitment of the

members under an active and pleasant team atmosphere.

201644  Annual Report 2016 77



RE  #HBRERRS
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

78

EREEEIE

EHPPIET B TR H KA RELIE
BBAEHHOT AL B TH#ETTIERE
o FEmiT Al - MTEBEFEETRER
MEGNEN - BIRZHEE TERERBE
T88  UHREHFIREATEHRNT

E:

EEEIEEE
RETEEIBXREBENMTRERA
TREES - BB TRHESEEHRRT
B RRAEBREHAREHESESEER
B WHET 2016 KEEE — EHF
EIEERTE) c ZFTEIN=F AR
NEETSH AR UMBEHE - &
HE . EHSEEEEEN2016EERE
ERIBBHR  BEEE HABEEE
NEFAT - REFT - REEEE—#
BEAESOMENMEEIIEIEEHNES
B2 4CTE A o

2016 BEIFETAE
2016 Management Trainee Program

KEBBIEA AR AR o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

On-the-job instruction and training

Each department provides on-the-job training
according to the requirements of the position,
and provide instruction for the new members
through sharing of experience by the existing
employees. For the posts in QC and DC
Departments that require credentials and
qualification, the departments should arrange
the employees to attend programs provided by
the specified organizations, so as to build up
talent reserve for its future development.

Management trainee program

In order to improve staff career development
and development system for different types of
talents, and also to provide a diversified
development platform for staff, the Company
continued to push forward the management
trainee program during the reporting period,
and have developed the Tenwow Group —
Management Trainee Training Program ( X &
£ B — B 4| &G &l ))in2016. The
program, taking the Marketing Department of
the Group as a pilot project and targeting at
students who graduated in 2016 majoring in
marketing, advertisement and journalism, lasts
for a period of three years and aims to cultivate
a flock of quality talents with leadership
potential, so as to provide quality professional
managers with super analysis and
comprehensive control capability for both the
department and the Group.
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Labour Standards

The Company strictly complies with the
provisions of the laws and regulations such as
the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of
China ({2 AR FEME & &%k )) , the Labor
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China
(hZEARALMBE L E S FE)) and the
Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child
Labour (%% 1+ FZ T # 7 ), and eliminates
the use of child labour and forced labour, so as
to protect the legitimate rights and interests of
the employees, in an effort to create a
harmonious working environment.

In accordance with the Employee Manual ({ &
T F1#)), no individual under the age of 18 shall
be employed. Overtime practice is based on a
voluntary and approval basis, i.e. any
arrangement of overtime practice by the
Company should be agreed by the relevant staff
and should be approved by the officer-in-
charge. No overtime practice should be
exercised without authorization by the officer-
in-charge.

During the reporting period, no use of child
labour and forced labour was reported.

Supply Chain Management

In order to regulate the engagement of
suppliers, control provided products/service
and related process, and to ensure that the
products or service provided are in conformity
with the requirements, the Company has
formulated the Supplier Management System
(4 B 75 & 3 %) E )), pursuant to which the
Company carried out supplier gualification
assessment, annual rating and on-site
assessment, so as to effectively manage
suppliers.
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Assessment of suppliers

The Company follows a set of stringent selection
process including supplier gqualification
confirmation, product sample test and on-site
assessment, which ensure that the products or
service provided are in conformity with the
requirements, so as to continuously improve
product quality. Meanwhile, the Company
conducted annual review on the companies
listed on the List of Qualified Suppliers based on
the purchase record for the year, on-site
assessment report, raw material inspection and
acceptance record and record of remedial and
preventive measures for substandard products.

Suppliers are required to meet the following
requirements or standards:

. Production premises shall possess
business license, hygiene license and food
production license issued by relevant
regulatory authorities;

. A valid quality management system
certificate is available;,

. Factories has established and effectively
implemented quality assurance
procedures, cleaning system, personal
hygiene operating procedures, pest
control procedures and food additives
control procedures;

. Factory buildings are well maintained with
waste quarantine zone and no source of
pollution in the surrounding areas;

. Workshop layout is well designed and
there is no cracks or falling paint, so as to
prevent contamination in food production;

. Quality management system training is
provided for employees;
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. Hygienic inspection is carried out on an
irregular basis and periodic water
sampling test is conducted to detect
pathogenic bacteria and other
contaminants,

. The plan for food safety management
procedure HACCP (Hazard Analysis and
Critical Control Point) is being effectively
implemented; and

. Laboratory staff is required to be trained
and obtain qualification certificate for their
jobs, etc.

Supplier meeting

The Company convenes a supplier meeting in
the first quarter of each year to strengthen
communication and promote the critical
management and control points. At the meeting,
the Company conducted annual rating on the
qualified suppliers of last year, which comprises
four categories including outstanding, good,
ordinary and disqualified. Outstanding suppliers
were awarded, while disqualified suppliers were
disqualified, so as to constantly improve their
service attitude and the quality of products and
services rendered.

Training for suppliers

The Company provided training for suppliers by
ways such as seminar, when necessary, to help
improve their service quality, so as to further
improve the product quality of the Company
while maintaining a good and reciprocal
collaboration relationship between the suppliers
and the Company.
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Bé6

Strengthening the responsibilities of
suppliers in respect of food safety and
environmental protection

Suppliers are required to sign a purchase
contract attached with a Product Warranty (<&
Gh'E & R E)) to provide their guarantee on
product quality, i.e. the suppliers should
guarantee to provide consistent quality for all
raw materials, and conduct inspection on all
raw materials in accordance with the above-
mentioned quality specification before delivery
to the Company and submit these written
inspection reports to the Company together
with the raw materials.

Product Responsibility

Upholding the principle of “Quality First”, the
Company strictly abides by the Product Quality
Law of the People’s Republic of China ((FFEAR
H A E & E 2 %)), Food Safety Law of the
People’s Republic of China ({FFEARKFIEE
ShZZ &)%), Regulations for the Implementation of
the Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China (F#EARAFE R BREEEHBIEG))
and other laws and regulations, and has
established a set of product quality control
system with an aim to strengthen product
quality inspection and control. The Company
also strictly complies with the above-mentioned
laws and regulations. The Company has also
established physical and chemical laboratories,
microbiological laboratories, product research
and development laboratories and product
quality control department with technology
support by the central laboratory and product
research and development department.
Besides, the Company is equipped with a
dedicated team of quality inspection staff and
sets up a product quality accountability system
with the leaders of the Company as main
responsible persons and the heads of respective
departments as relevant responsible persons
for product quality, so as to ensure product
quality in every aspect and process covering
from incoming material (raw and supplementary
materials) quality control (IQC), in-process
quality control (IPQC), strict final quality control
(FQC) to tracking of products on market
(identification and tracking).
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Research and development of health care
products
. Low-sugar and low-additive products
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Case study 1:
Pure & Coco (#£ & 7] 7] ) coconut water: all-natural and additive-
free; fat-free and low-calorie

Case study 2:

Banuo (2 5) coffee: no additives, preservative or artificial color;
no creamer; no trans fatty acid

o Organic food
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Organic Product Certification
Certificate

Case study:

“Morning Smile” (£ & %) organic oatmeal, the raw materials of
which are imported from UK, has a history of over ten years so far.
“Morning Smile” has obtained certification from Hangzhou WIT
Certification Co. Ltd. (f1M & 2= & & R 2 &), which comprises
two parts: the certification of the production process including
production and packaging and the certification of the farm for
oatmeal plantation. The oatmeal produced by the Company and
its processing procedures have been certified as in compliance
with the requirements of the Implementation Rules for Organic
Product Certification (5 #/ZE m 78 =5 E K35 Al)).
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Continuous efforts are made to strengthen
control over procurement, inspection and
acceptance and other processes of raw
materials, supplementary materials and
packing materials, so as to prevent
adverse impact on food safety. A qualified
supplier (i) must have Business License,
Production License (for products required
for production license) and Certificate of
Organization Code, all of which should
have passed annual inspection and are
valid; and (ii) must conform to product
quality requirements and, if necessary, is
able to provide samples and quality
evidence including quality certificate,
hygiene examination report, type test
report, etc.

Enterprise quality control

J Quality control system
To enhance quality control and
improve enterprise efficiency, the
Company and all industrial parks
have introduced the international
standardized quality systems that
have been strictly verified to control
product quality, such as 1SO9001
quality control system, HACCP
system and 1S022000 food safety
management system, so as to
implement its quality and food safety
policy of “pursuit for excellence,
quality, customer satisfaction and
market share”.
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AR ETE BUBRER R B
Company nhame Name of system established Time for certification
SEBE g EEEE XK I1S09001 2005 F
Headguarters of the Group ISO9001 quality control system 2005
HACCP 2005 4
HACCP 2005
EHREMRE(ER) 2005 F
Organic Product Certification (oatmeal) 2005
BEXERE B2 E IR R 1S09001 20144
Fujian Tenwow industrial park  1ISO9001 quality control system 2014
Rim% 2 E 258 15022000 2014 F
ISO22000 food safety management 2014
system
WIS EIREE R QB/TA1 20154F
QB/T4111 integrity management 2015
system
REXEEE Rz 2B B X15022000 2014 F
Wuhan Tenwow industrial 1IS022000 food safety management 2014
park system
. A EEEEHE e Internal quality control system
NERELTAFEEE RS The Company has also established
E ULEBRALEEE ?E 8 internal quality control system to
N REEREERTE - 7 effectively improve production

RE(RERMEEERES control capacity and maintain

MR IEIEEME)HEmME
EREETOEMFA - YR
BERASEFELRE  AF
RRCRMNIMBEIERHEZ) -
REBERRMMNEIRALER

consistent product quality. The
Company classifies and describes
the defects in product quality and
specifies the handling principles or
procedures in accordance with the

mEE - F K LA IEBE Guidance on Product Quality Issues
BEMBEEFEH RERRE of Tenwow Food Group ( X'B & &

2% SEERNEEMEREEEHRE)).
The Company uses food additives to
improve the appearance, flavor and
taste of the food in accordance with
the Food Additives Management
System ((B R I A E 2§ E )), so
as to prevent extensive or excessive
use and to safeguard food safety
and so on.
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External inspection

The Company delivers its products
in batches monthly to external
inspection institutions for hygiene
examination, so as to make sure
each test indicator meets the
relevant national standard
requirements. The Company
accumulatively delivers over 800
batches of products for test each
year.

ABER2016FERRMEEEER

0 (E8) Rl s

The photo on the left is the
Examination Report issued by the
National Food Quality Supervision and
Inspection Center (Shanghai) in 2016

Product quality control training

The QC Department of the Company
provides product quality control
training on a regular basis, which
includes the quality objective and
breakdown of the Group, the
Group's quality inspection and
assessment standards, and the laws
and regulations regarding food
safety, food production and
management, etc.
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Production hygiene

The Company has formulated the Guidelines on
Hygiene Requirements and Cleaning Standards
for Food Production Units of the Group ({ &
BEmAEESBMEEERRBRZESHE)) o
provide guidelines on hygiene management
during the food production progress for all food
production units. The Guidelines outlines the
hygiene requirements and recommended
cleaning methods during the production
progress for staff (including external personnel),
environment, equipment and instruments in
various cleaning areas, and specifies the
relevant hygiene operating requirements and
cleaning procedures, so as to guarantee product
quality.

Labeling management

The Company has formulated the Review
Procedure for Label Revision ({1Z%5 ti i 4% %
{E 12 ¥ )) to regulate the review procedure for
all product labels of the Group (including
factories in other cities),so as to strengthen
control over the content of product labels. This
procedure document requires all the
departments of the Company to review the
labels in accordance with GB7718 National Food
Safety Standard — General Rules for Labeling of
Prepackaged Foods (RmEZ 2 EKIZETREBE
RmiZ%@AI)), GB28050 National Food Safety
Standard — General Rules for Nutrition Labeling
of Prepackaged Foods { R mEZ 2B RIZ#EIE
BERMEEZFMA) and the requirements
of relevant product standards.
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Product identification, tracking and recall
The Company’s Product Identification, Tracking
and Recall Procedure ((ZE miRq » B E G [E
7 & 72 7 )) provides that QC Department is in
charge of product identification, and the Food
Safety Group should verify the effectiveness of
the recall scheme by conducting comparison
tests, simulating product recall or actual product
recall, while the Production Department is
responsible for the implementation of product
recall if there exists serious hygiene problem,
and the management representatives should
lead the relevant department in analyzing the
causes to prevent such problem. The Company
strictly complies with this procedure to
effectively manage product identification,
tracking and recall, doing our best to protect the
health of the customers.

Intellectual property

The Company has established the standard
Trademark Management System to improve
trademark reputation value through using
appropriate trademark strategies and tactics
and to take full advantage of trademark
recognition to explore market, compete for and
develop businesses, thus improving the
profitability of the Company. The system
expressly sets out the trademark management
functions of each department, and outlines the
approval procedures for application,
registration, renewal, transfer, assessment and
licensing of the trademarks, which regulate the
use of trademarks in business operation and
strengthen maintenance and protection of the
Company's trademarks.

The Company has obtained 284 trademark

certificates, 17 design patents and 10 copyrights
as at 31 December 2016.
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BEEREE Customer satisfaction
’“ﬂ%*@éﬁ?@ﬂi&/\ﬁ#\ﬂiﬁg%% The Company strictly abides by the Law of the
WIREEVEEBRERNATE - B TCEE People’s Republic of China on the Protection of
EmEEEHREFI(BEERER « BAHN Consumer Rights and Interests ({FPZE A R HF0
WFRREZEGEFIRFAE - WEBE % BB & # = (R # )% )) and other laws and
B TREERE fJEE%Tﬁﬁ/&aﬁ regulations, and has formulated the Control
XE - BEMEE  HSRNEEM Ei& Procedures for Customer Satisfaction ((E& & %
FIHT I%IJEiUfIETEKﬂa i ZE#H 3R FF)) and the Customer Complaint

Handling Procedure (AR & 5. « MR
12 2 ) 2 7 ), with an aim to investigate and
collect satisfaction or dissatisfaction information
from the customers so as to receive, record and
reply suggestions or complaints from the
customers, to analyze the related quality
problems and to develop remedial and
preventive measures.

REBHEAT Honors and recognition

2016 EBRIESEME 10054FE e Certificate of Top 100 Shanghai
Manufacturing Enterprises 2016

o 2016 B 10058FE e Certificate of Top 100 Shanghai Enterprises
2016
e EEMERMEIZ(2015-2017) e Shanghai Famous Trademark (2015-2017)
o FRE(2014-2016) . Shanghai Famous Brand (2014-2016)
e MIBEMWEFE EEELED e Executive Vice President Unit of the 1st
BlgREMN Executive Committee of the Food

Association of Songjiang District
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B7 Anti-Corruption

The Company strictly complies with the
provisions of the laws and regulations such as
the Company Law of the People’s Republic of
China ({(fZE A R EFB QA RE)), Tender and
Bidding Law of the People’s Republic of China
(HZE AR HMERZIZAEZE)), Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the People’s Republic of
China ({#ZE A R AME R T EEHFE)) and
Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial
Bribery (KB ZE IL X EIRITANEITIRED),
and always devotes much attention to anti-
corruption works, promoting the probity
principle, banning commercial bribery and
encouraging whistle-blowing of illegal activities
relating to the Company, with an aim to advance
transparent and fair practice in the Company
and the society.

Supervisory system

The Company has established the supervisory
system, and sets up hotlines and mailbox to
receive complains from all departments and
branches under the Group. The Supervision
Department of the Company will launch
investigation after the complaints are verified.

External contracts attached with probity
clauses

Suppliers are required to sign the probity clauses
which are attached to the external contracts,
such as the Code of Conduct for Suppliers (&
7T A%ER1)) and Anti-Commercial Bribery ({=
EEBARK)), and to comply with the principles of
integrity and probity.

Internal standardization inspection

The Company undergoes daily inspection on
internal standardization and conducts special
investigation into the major problems identified,
and will report to the judicial authority in respect
of any illegal activities.
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B8

Promoting probity culture

The Company constantly perfects its internal
system of probity, and strengthens the concept
of standardized operation by enhancing anti-
corruption education, so as to promote the
probity culture.

Case study:

The Company held a series of anti-corruption
training programs during the reporting period to
strengthen anti-corruption education for the
employees and enhance their awareness
against unfair competition activities such as
commercial bribery, and also encouraged our
employees to take proactive measures against
such activities.

Community Investment

The Company has developed the Charitable and
Public Welfare Activity Management System of
Tenwow Group K K EE B Z S EH N5 8
EEHIEZ)) (the “System”) in order to regulate
its charitable and public welfare activities and
make greater contribution to the community .
The System provides that the Company should,
based on the business characteristics of
Tenwow and its products, initiate various self-
featured charitable activities for the community
including support for cultural and sports
undertakings, charitable donations, volunteer
activities, care for the elders and promotion of
environmental protection, etc.
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The Company has participated into numbers of
public welfare activities such as support for
education and relief donation to give back to the
community and perform its corporate social
responsibility. During 2016, the Company carried
out a variety of community activities, including
bringing care and warmth for the elderly who
have lost their only child, left-behind children
and other vulnerable groups; investing lots of
manpower and material resources for the
rescue and relief of people in disaster areas;
cooperating with colleges and universities to
offer internship opportunities for students;
sponsoring cultural and sports activities to
support the development of cultural and sports
undertakings. According to the statistics, the
Company conducted over 20 community
activities during 2016 with 356 participants and
an aggregate donation amount of approximately
RMB30,612,000 (cash and materials), receiving
recognition and appreciation from the
community and government for our charitable
practice and social responsibility.

Educational cooperation

Cooperating with the School of Environmental
and Biological Engineering and School of
Environmental and Life Science of Putian
University, Wuhan University of Technology and
other colleges and universities, the Company
has established the Industry-University-
Research Teaching Base to offer internship
opportunities for students.

=2 HHEEEN
Industry-University-Research
Teaching Base
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Volunteer care

On 1 February 2016, the Company presented
gift and materials to the ten households of
elderly alone at Wansong Street, Jianghan
District, Wuhan during the spring festival, and
received high praise and a flag as a token of
appreciation from the neighbourhood
committee of Wansong Street.

On 3 July 2016, the Company promptly provided
relief and materials to the disaster areas such
as Longchi Industrial Park, Baiguo Town, Fuzihe
Town in Macheng City, Hubei Province, receiving
appreciation from the local Bureau of Civil
Affairs.

On 9 July 2016, as an effort to give back to the
community, the Company cooperated with the
Bureau of Civil Affairs of Minging County to
provide free bottles of mineral water with an
aggregate value of RMB80,000 to the local
vulnerable groups on extremely hot days.
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KB Relief donation

20162818 » Ra12M7TREAHENE On 1 February 2016, the Company participated
TRz - ARM] &ZES - AEEM into the charitable activity “Love in Linkong and
REME0FETREREXETHEE - Care for Youngsters (& 1f (& 2= - B) 1 /R )"
ANEKGSR AL EEML IR - B held in Dongxihu District to reach out to the left-
HMEZEE  RANRRRE -  BE=8gAR behind children from 20 families in Dongxihu
NAEEETRE - District, Wuhan, so as to provide support to the

vulnerable groups and pass on positive social
forces. The Committee of Dongxihu District, the
Bureau of Civil Affairs of Dongxihu District and
the Charity Federation awarded the Company
with a plague as a token of appreciation.
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2016F7H6B 7878 RAaWELEM On 6 and 7 July 2016, the Company extended its
FUEME R /KEERI, - 311 2B compassion to the water monitoring station of
R RO RERFDR T EIRAT - TR Dongxihu District (32 78 4 [& 7K ¥ B 8 3f), the
Rub - FEBURBGAT - BRERM - R flood relief centre at Dongshan Farm (R 1L 235
MR L NEMEEEERPTR KRB - It e S & ) and the embankment

administration station at Dongxihu (32 Fa #3285
EI2FF), the pumping station at Lijiadun (=R
Zuh), the embankment station at Lijiadun (=K
12 B FT), the pumping station at Taertou (3
M 58 2R uh), the Dongshan Primary School at
Dongxihu (3 7@ 8 3R L4 /v £)and the
embankment brigade at Cihuiyumen (Z&2 49
S ABK) , Wuhan City with relief items.

201697 A108 + & 7 A R ¥ 48,800 On 10 July 2016, the Company distributed relief
TELYEFINEARER/)E  BE%Y materials with a value of RMB48,800 to the Fifth
BIE/NERTEE o NEIHERETT Primary School in Caidian District and expressed
ZEARERIPEENETE ° care and compassion to the people who were

afflicted by the disasters and temporarily
accommodated there, receiving recognition
from leaders of the Bureau of Civil Affairs of
Caidian District for its charitable practice.

XEBEEN R Sponsorships for cultural and sports
activities

™
¥

: pane
TS - AD1E107 AT T (L0 TR AM

NEEY206FFHFEFUNE
The Company sponsored the 2016 Qingpu Half Marathon

96 RIBBIFR IR AR AR o Tenwow International Holdings Limited



RE #HBRERRS
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BEREE Promotion for low-carbon consumption

201628268 ARIAERTRMSRE On 26 February 2016, the Company initiated
TEE) (BN AEZE T2MNERENS hiking trips around Meizhou Island, with an aim
TEED - EREMRBR T o to call on more employees to participate into

healthy hiking activities and promote low-
carbon transportation.
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The Board is pleased to present the report of the Directors
along with the audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Currently,
the Company, through its subsidiaries, associated
companies and joint venture company primarily produces
and distributes its “Tenwow” own brand products. It also
distributes well-known third-party brand products. Primary
products include alcoholic beverages, food and snacks,
non-alcoholic beverages, and other fast moving consumer
goods.

Segment analysis of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2016 is set out in Note 5 to the financial
Statements.

RESULTS

The overall performance of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 is set out on pages 144 and 145 in the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 is set out in this section and in the sections
headed "Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 8
to 32 and “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
on pages 53 to 97 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of the movements of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment, and investment property for the year ended
31 December 2016 are set out in Note 6 to the financial
Statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on pages 259 and
260 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company during the year are set out in Note 15 to the
financial statements.
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SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES

On 19 December 2016, the Company allotted and issued a
total of 132,358,000 Subscription Shares to Market Genius
Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability owned by China Momentum Fund, L.P., which
is an investment fund advised and managed by its general
partner Fosun China Momentum Fund GP, Ltd (an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of Fosun), at the subscription price
of HK$2.4137 per share pursuant to the General Mandate.
The net proceeds, after deduction of the related expenses, of
approximately HK$319.1 million raised from the subscription
was intended to be utilized for general capital purposes. The
net proceeds were not utilized as at 31 December 2016. The
Company has no intention to use the net proceeds contrary
to the description as disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 19 December 2016. For details regarding the
subscription, please refer to the paragraph “Strategic Share
Holding and Potential Cooperation with Fosun” under the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in Notes 16 to 17
to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company's distributable reserves comprise the share
premium, other reserves and retained earnings. As at 31
December 2016, the Company had distributable reserves of
RMB2,124,565,000. Movements in the Company’s reserves
during the year is set out in Notes 15 and 37 to the financial
statements.

DIVIDEND

The Board proposes to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK0.57 cents per share (2015: HK3.41 cents per
share) and a special dividend of HK2.12 cents per share
(2015: HK1.04 cents per share) in cash to the Shareholders
for the year ended 31 December 2016. Together with the
interim dividend of HK2.71 cents per share paid in
September 2016 (2015 interim dividend: HK2.71 cents per
share), the total dividend for the year amounted to HK5.40
cents per share (2015: HK7.16 cents per share). Dividend
payout ratio increased from 35% to 50%, with the additional
15% being the proposed special dividend.
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The proposed final dividend and proposed special dividend
are subject to approval by the Shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM") to be held on
Friday, 19 May 2017. Upon Shareholders’ approval to be
obtained at the AGM, the proposed final dividend and
proposed special dividend will be payable on or before
Tuesday, 6 June 2017 to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on
Monday, 29 May 2017.

Details of the dividend are set out in Note 30 to the financial
statements.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 15 May 2017 to Friday, 19 May 2017, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of
the Company will be registered, for the purpose of
ascertaining Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote
at the AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the
AGM, all transfers of shares of the Company accompanied
by the relevant share certificates and appropriate transfer
forms must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 12 May 2017.

In addition, in order to determine the entitlement of the
Shareholders to receive the proposed final dividend and
proposed special dividend, if approved, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 25
May 2017 to Monday, 29 May 2017 (both days inclusive),
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to be eligible to receive the
proposed final dividend and proposed special dividend, all
transfers of shares of the Company accompanied by the
relevant share certificates and appropriate transfer forms
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 24 May 2017.
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DIRECTORS
During the financial year and up to the date of this annual
report, the Board was made up of the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lin Jianhua (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Juewei (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lam Hang Boris (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Yeung Yue Ming

Ms. Au Lai Hang

Non-Executive Directors
Ms. Chen Shirley Shiyou (Retired on 18 May 2016)
Mr. Liu Zhao (Appointed on 18 May 2016)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Longgen

Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong

Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren

* With effect from 22 March 2017, Mr. Wang Juewei will resign as
executive Director, Chief Executive Officer and member of the
Remuneration Committee, Mr. Lin Jianhua will be appointed as the
Chief Executive Officer and member of the Remuneration Committee,
Mr. Lin Qi will be appointed as executive Director, Mr. Yan Zhixiong
will be appointed as non-executive Director, and Mr. Shen Yalong will
be appointed as independent non-executive Director.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors a written annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company is satisfied that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent as defined under the
Listing Rules.

In accordance with Article 108 of the Articles of Association,
Mr. Lin Jianhua, Mr. Yeung Yue Ming and Mr. Liu Chang-
Tzong will retire from their offices as executive Directors
and independent non-executive Director respectively at the
AGM 1o be held on Friday, 19 May 2017. Mr. Lin Jianhua, Mr.
Yeung Yue Ming and Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.
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In addition, as Mr. Li Qi, Mr. Yan Zhixiong and Mr. Shen
Yalong who have been appointed by the Board as executive
Director, non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Director respectively with effect from 22 March
2017 will hold office only until the AGM, proposal will be
made for their re-election at the AGM in accordance with
Article 112 of the Articles of Association.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical information of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 126
to 133 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the AGM
has entered into a service contract with the Group which is
not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTOR REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration shall be determined based on
recommendations from the Remuneration Committee,
while also making reference to the complexity of the
Director’s work, workload, responsibilities, as well as the
Company's remuneration policies. Details of the Directors'
remuneration and the five highest-paid individuals of the
Group are set out in Note 35 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS' PERMITTED INDEMNITY
PROVISION

Under the Company's Articles of Association, every Director
or officer of the Company acting in relation to any of the
affairs of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs and damages which he may
incur or sustain in or about the execution of the duties of
his office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group.
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the "SFO")), which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO)
or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

(i) Interests in shares of the Company

BREE0.10EB THEER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
BRERA DT
FriERaEE
Number of
shares held

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

1,417,324,000 (L) 64.25%

2,030,000 (L) 0.09%

(L) — Long position

Note:

Mr. Lin Jianhua owns Zhi Qun Enterprises Limited as to 100%, which
in turn owns 1,417,324,000 shares of the Company. Mr. Lin is

therefore deemed to be interested in 1,417,324,000 shares of the
Company held by Zhi Qun Enterprises Limited.
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(i) RAEATHEHBRGOHNER (ii) Interests in underlying shares of the
Company
BREE0.10B TNEER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
BEBERARBEA
BRETEREN
BRERT R
HERGHE
Number of underlying
shares held pursuant
to share options BOFERB DT
granted under the Approximate
EEgE EatE Pre-IPO Share percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest Option Scheme shareholding
ERfE L HEARA 1,666,667 () 0.08%
Ms. Au Lai Hang Beneficial owner
PERE . HEAA 4,166,664 (1) 0.19%
Mr. Lam Hang Boris Beneficial owner
ERRRE HaiEAA 1,666,667 (1 0.08%
Mr. Wang Juewei Beneficial owner
Mg HHEARA 1,666,667 (1) 0.08%
Mr. Yeung Yue Ming Beneficial owner
L—FE (L) — Long position
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(i) REBZEER

(iii) Interests in associated corporations

RIEBEE A
R/ RELHE
BAt
BEREZNZS Approximate
YESRESH percentage of
Number of shareholding/
securities investment
interested or amount
ESHE HEEE AR BEME investment in the associated
Name of Director Name of associated corporation Nature of interest amount corporation
WEELE SHOEERAA ERBEA 1B () 100%
Mr. Lin Jianhua Zhi Qun Enterprises Limited Beneficial owner 1share (L) ’
MREELE PERERREEBRAF iRttt ARE50,0007T(L) 59
0

Mr. Lin Jianhua Shanghai Tenwow Food Production Co., Ltd. Interest of spouse™” RMB50,000 (L)
THEBRLE HERRERGABRAA ERBAA AR 130,0007T (L) 0.89%2

. .0/0

Mr. Wang Juewei Shanghai Mornflake Food Co., Ltd. Beneficial owner RMB130,000 (L)
THERAE LER EREMHBRAR ERBEAA AR 875,0007T(L) 359
D70

Mr. Wang Juewei Shanghai Dingshang Packing Material Co., Ltd.  Beneficial owner RMB875,000 (L)

L—wFa (L) — Long position
B 3E Notes:

() MREXEORBREELTR HERERMEER
PRARFEA#ZE (RELEAARKS50,0007T) @ #AK
FERERNZ AR EA R

@  LERRERAREBAFN-ZE-RFNA+/\BHE
MTEMEAR  TEBREENFHRE DM 1.0%H#
SHE0.8% °

BREXWEEN R-F-—RET-_A=1+—
B BEAEFHIARAESTHRABMRA
A BMEEEIARAKRETRAERARF
HEEMAEEE(EERLES MERDIE
XVED) BRI ~ MR KERETHEA
RIBEEF L BAEGROIEXVEBET R8D HIKX
ARAREREXECRIRIEE S MR E D)
EIGREFENERLM - HRBEFETH
RIEAME NN B KB R PIOIMERIOAR -

()] Ms. Yan Yuzhen, the spouse of Mr. Lin Jianhua, is interested
in Shanghai Tenwow Food Production Co., Ltd. as to an
investment amount of RMB50,000, and Mr. Lin is therefore
deemed to be interested in the same.

2) The registered capital of Shanghai Tenwow Food Production
Co., Ltd. was increased on 18 August 2016, Mr. Wang Juewei’s
shareholding was diluted from 1.0% to 0.8%.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, SO
far as was known to any Director or chief executive of
the Company, neither the Directors nor the chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO or as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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EFERRRAD AR RAABERD N EDS
15879}

RIE-RE+-A=+—8 BEFEEFRHEAR
FIRBITRABMAE  BRR(EXRE#RNES
FARBRSITHRABRIN FEERIEZ S LB KE
BIEXVERSE 2 & 3 BBARA R R BERCEHEN AR

AIRIEE 5 N A B 16015 336 (R RTF E M E LM NE)
AR BB HABREAD R FOR BN

RADQTRAD BV S

FTERRERB A
Name of substantial
shareholder

EEME
Nature of interest

EmEA A
Beneficial owner

EHEEBERAF
Zhi Qun Enterprises Limited

o BEnlE
Market Genius Limited ® - %EA
Beneficial owner

i MR EEE R S
China Momentum Fund, L.P.® s e

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2016, so far as was known to any
Director or chief executive of the Company, Shareholders
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company
whose interests were disclosed above) who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which shall be disclosed to the Company
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Interests in shares of the Company

BREE0.10EBTHERER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

RESNB DL
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

iR HE R
Number of
shares held

Interest of controlled corporation

Fosun China Momentum R LB ER

Fund GP, Ltd.®
Fosun Momentum Holdings R LB S
Limited @
Fosun Financial Holdings R LB S
Limited @

. e R EBREZR
Fosun International Limited @ e

Interest of controlled corporation

Interest of controlled corporation

Interest of controlled corporation

1,417,324,000 (L) 64.25%
132,358,000 (L) 6.00%
132,358,000 (L) 6.00%
132,358,000 (L) 6.00%
132,358,000 (L) 6.00%
132,358,000 (L) 6.00%
132,358,000 (L) 6.00%

Interest of controlled corporation
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BREHEO0.10EBTNERER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

REMVEDIL

FERRER HH
Name of substantial
shareholder

Fosun Holdings Limited @ ) 132,358,000 (L) 6.00%
Interest of controlled corporation
. . REEEE R S
Fosun International Holdings Ltd. ™ S = . 132,358,000 (L) 6.00%
Interest of controlled corporation
BEZO R LB S
e SRR , 132,358,000 (L) 6.00%
Guo Guangchang ™ Interest of controlled corporation
China FNB Investment Holdings ~ Ez#A A
- g EmiE 116,178,000 (1) 5.27%
Limited @ Beneficial owner
Carlyle Asia Growth Partners IV, RS IEEBE R #EZE
/ SRR . 116,178,000 (L) 5.27%
LP.@ Interest of controlled corporation
REZ LB R R
CAGP IV General Partner L.P. @ . # ) 116,178,000 (L) 5.27%
Interest of controlled corporation
REZ LB R R
CAGP IV, Ltd. @ S n ) 116,178,000 (L) 5.27%
Interest of controlled corporation
TC Group Cayman Investment R LB RS
UpLay SRR , 116,178,000 (1) 5.27%
Holdings Sub, L.p. @ Interest of controlled corporation
TC Group Cayman Investment R LB RS
UpLay SRR , 116,178,000 (1) 5.27%
Holdings, L.P. @ Interest of controlled corporation
. REZ LB RS
Carlyle Holdings Il L.P.@ e n ) 116,178,000 (L) 5.27%
Interest of controlled corporation
. REZ LB R RS
Carlyle Holdings Il GP L.L.C.2 e n ) 116,178,000 (L) 5.27%
Interest of controlled corporation
REZ LB R RS
The Carlyle Group LP.2 e n , 116,178,000 (L) 5.27%
Interest of controlled corporation
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fiaE

(1) 22 1% 15 B Market Genius Limited 5 75 - IRIEE 5 & S E
Il + fF China Momentum Fund, L.P. 4 Market Genius Limited
B - BER AR Z SR PGS - M Fosun China
Momentum Fund GP, Ltd. A& China Momentum Fund, L.P. &)
THEBA MERANZEFRM B % AF # Fosun
Momentum Holdings Limited Bl #3727 Fosun China Momentum
Fund GP, Ltd. W) i & - MU R AN Z SR P HE s
Fosun Financial Holdings Limited 1| F5 7 # 7 Fosun Momentum
Holdings Limited Mz « MR R AR ZER D P H A #Z
Fosun International Limited RIJ g5 7 # /& Fosun Financial Holdings
Limited M4 25 - MUOE R AR Z S RMD P # A% : Fosun
Holdings Limited Bl 5 7 # A Fosun International Limited Ay #
@ MR ARZERG %A &%  Fosun International
Holdings Ltd. B f1 7 # 4 Fosun Holdings Limited ##%5 + K
WERRZERDTHEAEER BEEXEABRES
Fosun International Holdings Ltd. fy#%5 « BUHAE AR LS
DHREERER o

2 ZZ M7 B China FNB Investment Holdings Limited#%4& © 48
BEFHFREEEM - B Carlyle Asia Growth Partners 1V,
L.P.# % China FNB Investment Holdings Limited & # 25 » #
AR ARZERMD B M CAGP IV General Partner
L.P. Bl g8 A% B Carlyle Asia Growth Partners IV, L.P. #9425
MR AREZERGO R HEAEZ - CAGP IV, Lid. Bl #ES
CAGP IV General Partner L.P. )1 55 « MU R RN ZERH
s ¥ 4 # 25 ¢ TC Group Cayman Investment Holdings Sub,
LP. AR A HEAR CAGP IV, Ltd. Wi - B IR AR ZERH
FR A £ 25 0 TC Group Cayman Investment Holdings L.P. &
f A A& TC Group Cayman Investment Holdings Sub, L.P.#9
o MR ARZERMD R EA®Z  Carlyle Holdings Il
L.P. B 7 #A TC Group Cayman Investment Holdings L.P. &9
e MR BRZERMN R #EA R  Carlyle Holdings 1l
GP L.L.C. B f 7 # A Carlyle Holdings Il LP. #9425 » d448
ABNZERMD P AR : The Carlyle Group L.P. I R #E

A Carlyle Holdings Il GP LL.C. K942 - BURR AR ZERG
PHEE RS ©
BrEXHEEN RZE—XRE+_A=+—8"

ARBAEBENGTAAL(EZRARFRSTH
ANBRRIMN BBERBEES RMEGROIEXVEBE 2R3
D EB IR X AR AR BB RN AR BRIRE 5
KB GG 336 R AT ENELMAN AR E RN
SRR MR SRR e
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Notes:

M

Save

These Shares are held by Market Genius Limited. Mr. Guo
Guangchang is deemed to be interested in these Shares under the
SFO by virtue of his interest in Fosun International Holdings Ltd.,
which in turn is deemed to be interested in these Shares by virtue of
its interest in Fosun Holdings Limited, which in turn is deemed to be
interested in these Shares by virtue of its interest in Fosun
International Limited, which in turn is deemed to be interested in
these Shares by virtue of its interest in Fosun Financial Holdings
Limited, which in turn is deemed to be interested in these Shares by
virtue of its interest in Fosun Momentum Holdings Limited, which in
turn is deemed to be interested in these Shares by virtue of its
interest in Fosun China Momentum Fund GP, Ltd.. Fosun China
Momentum Fund GP, Ltd. is the general partner of China Momentum
Fund, L.P. and is deemed to be interested in these Shares by virtue of
its interest in China Momentum Fund, L.P., which in turn is deemed
to be interested in these Shares by virtue of its interest in Market
Genius Limited.

These Shares are held by China FNB Investment Holdings Limited.
The Carlyle Group L.P. is deemed to be interested in these Shares
under the SFO by virtue of its interest in Carlyle Holdings Il GP L.L.C.,
which in turn is deemed to be interested in these Shares by virtue of
its interest in Carlyle Holdings Il L.P., which in turn is deemed to be
interested in these Shares by virtue of its interest in TC Group
Cayman Investment Holdings L.P., which in turn is deemed to be
interested in these Shares by virtue of its interest in TC Group
Cayman Investment Holdings Sub, L.P., which in turn is deemed to be
interested in these Shares by virtue of its interest in CAGP IV, Ltd.,
which in turn is deemed to be interested in these Shares by virtue of
its interest in CAGP IV General Partner L.P., which in turn is deemed
t0 be interested in these Shares by virtue of its interest in Carlyle Asia
Growth Partners IV, L.P., which in turn is deemed to be interested in
these Shares by virtue of its interest in China FNB Investment
Holdings Limited.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the

Company has not been notified by any person (other than
the Director or chief executive of the Company) who had
any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.
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DIRECTORS'/CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” below and in Note 34 to the
financial statements, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance (as defined in Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules) in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of 2016, and there
was no contract of significance between the Company or
any subsidiary of the Company with the controlling
Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the year under
review.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Set out below are interests of the Group's Directors in a
business which competes or is likely to compete with the
Group's business for the purpose of Rule 8.10(2) of the
Listing Rules as at 31 December 2016:

EEHA

AR ERE
Name of company

ERME
Nature of business

EEME
Nature of interest

Name of Director

FHELA 2Rl
Mr. Wang Juewei Nanpu

FREBER DMK EY o
Packaged food and beverage  Directorship

RIZE-—RE+-A=+—"B BEHHAEEZEH
RE(RB)EMARAAR LEREBEXARAF
(MEG/ARBRNEZEZENBRR) B 49% M
RN EEHE RS 51% © B AMERR AR
BERAAR -HEE EEMSHEHME  BH
REWB ARG IR SR KB ERAF

distributor in the PRC

As at 31 December 2016, Nanpu is owned by the Group as
to 49% through Tenwow (Fujian) Food Co., Ltd. and
Shanghai Tiansheng Wines and Spirits Co., Ltd. (_E/8RKE&H
¥ B[R 2 al), both of which are indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, and by Shanghai Tangjiu as to
51%. Nanpu is accounted for as a joint venture of the
Company. Nanpu and its subsidiaries are not being
considered as subsidiaries of the Group from an
operational, management and accounting perspective.
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MRNERBAR —EADRAMBIMNERELE
ITHEAENEFTRGREMBESEEANARAE
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Nanpu and its subsidiaries have been operating under
separate and independent management. The directorship
of Mr. Wang Juewei is for the purpose of representing the
Group's interest on the board level of Nanpu. The board of
directors of Nanpu consists of seven directors, four of
which (including the chairman) were appointed by Shanghai
Tangjiu and three of which were appointed by Tenwow
(Fujian) Food Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Tiansheng Wines and
Spirits Co., Ltd., collectively. Decisions in general require
approval from holders of more than two-thirds of the equity
interests in Nanpu. The Group does not therefore control
Nanpu at the board level.

Nanpu is a packaged food and beverage distributor in China
and Nanpu is one of the Group's distributors. Its distribution
channels primarily focus on the modern channels in eastern
China, which is complementary to the Group’s own
distribution channels, and there is little competition
between the distribution business of the Company and
Nanpu.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of
the Directors or any of their respective associates had any
interests in the businesses, apart from the Group’s
businesses, which compete or are likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Company
and its subsidiaries as required to be disclosed pursuant to
the Listing Rules.

The controlling Shareholder of the Company and the
executive director and chairman of the Company, Mr. Lin
Jianhua, resigned as a director of Nanpu in May 2016. As at
31 December 2016, Mr. Lin Jianhua did not hold any interest
in Nanpu (other than the indirect interest in Nanpu through
his interest in the Company as the controlling Shareholder).
Save as disclosed above, Mr. Lin Jianhua does not hold
interest in any businesses which compete or are likely to
compete with the businesses of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016.
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In order to protect the Group’s interests and its current
business activities, the controlling Shareholders of the
Company, namely, Zhi Qun Enterprises Limited and Mr. Lin
Jianhua, entered into a non-competition deed on 31 August
2013 (the "Non-competition Deed") in favour of the
Company, under which zhi Qun Enterprises Limited and Mr.
Lin Jianhua have undertaken and covenanted with the
Company that they shall not and shall procure their
respective associates not to directly or indirectly participate
in, or hold any right or interest in, or otherwise be involved
in any business that may be carried out by the Group from
time to time subject to the terms and conditions of the Non-
competition Deed. The Company has received a
confirmation from Zhi Qun Enterprises Limited and Mr. Lin
Jianhua in respect of their compliance with the terms of the
Non-competition Deed for the year ended 31 December
2016.

The independent non-executive Directors have also
reviewed and confirmed the compliance with, and the
enforcement of, the Non-competition Deed by Zhi Qun
Enterprises Limited and Mr. Lin Jianhua for the year ended
31 December 2016.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than a contract of service with a
Director or any person engaged in the full-time employment
of the Company, concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 21 June 2016, the Group completed disposal of 2%
equity interest in Nanpu to Shanghai Tangjiu at
consideration of RMB20.0 million. Shanghai Tangjiu is a
connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules by virtue of Shanghai Tangjiu being a
substantial shareholder of Nanpu, which is and remains to
be deemed as a connected person of the Company by the
Stock Exchange under Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules.
Selling Nanpu's equity interests to Shanghai Tangjiu, a state-
owned enterprise, would also help allay concerns from
certain investors on the connected transactions between
Tenwow Group and Nanpu. This disposal will also enhance
the cash flow of the Group. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 15 April 2016 for

further information.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the following
transactions are continuing connected transactions as
defined in the Listing Rules which are subject to the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Certain of these continuing connected transactions
which also constitute related party transactions are set out
in Note 34 to the financial statements.

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The Group sells or purchases goods from connected
persons in the ordinary course of its business. On 13
November 2015, each of the Company and Nanpu and
together with its subsidiaries (“Nanpu Group”) entered into
new framework agreements with each relevant connected
person in respect of the sales or purchase of goods on
normal commercial terms, to replace the old framework
agreements that were entered into on 1 August 2013 and
terminated on 1 January 2016, for a period of three years
commencing from 1 January 2016 and ending on 31
December 2018. Payment will be made by wire transfer
upon delivery of the goods or on monthly basis.
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Bz T ARF+_A=1+—"HILFE " BEER For the year ended 31 December 2016, the annual caps and
BE HEEERZETHTERCEERERS the actual amounts paid for the non-exempted continuing
FELFRREREMNSEAT

BEAL
Connected person

HENBEREERAAR
HB2 A LBERSLE
BRAR

Shanghai Shaowansheng
Commerce & Food Ltd. and its
associate, Shanghai
Huanglongtai Tea
Company Limited ®

LBEEREORABEA
Shanghai Tangjiu @and its
associates

TENBEHEARARRA
BEALSBELRRAFY
Shanghai Shaowansheng
Commerce & Food Ltd.
and its associate, Shanghai
Shaowansheng Food
Company @

TEREEBOREBEA
Shanghai Tangjiu @ and its
associates

BEXZNE
Nature of connected
transaction

MBEATEERM
Purchase of goods from
connected persons

MEBEATEERM
Purchase of goods from
connected persons

MEEATHERR
Sales of goods to
connected persons

MBEALHERR
Sales of goods to
connected persons

connected transactions in respect of the purchase or sales
of goods under the framework agreements are as follows:

BE-Z-"Et-A=t-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2016
REEE(RRAFRH
WEAR  FEEEHEE)
Tenwow Group (on behalf of AR (REEREE)
itself and its subsidiaries, Nanpu (on behalf of the &3

excluding the Nanpu Group) Nanpu Group) Total
EREHeE EREfeE EBREHeR

Actual FELR Actual FELR Actual FELR
amount paid  Annual Cap amount paid  Annual Cap amount paid  Annual Cap

ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR  ARETx
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000

0 43,437 151,479 176,635 161,479 220,072
29,559 57,990 233910 328,165 263,469 386,155
28,079 33,125 144,427 172,831 172,506 205,956

0 173,050 373,351 645,017 373,351 818,067
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HE-E-AET-A=T-BLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

REEE(RRAFRHE
WEAR  FEFEEHEE)
Tenwow Group (on behalf of
itself and its subsidiaries,

A (RREHEE)
Nanpu (on behalf of the )
excluding the Nanpu Group) Nanpu Group) Total
ERCHeE ERCHEH ERCHeH
Actual EELR Actual EELR Actual EELR
amount paid  Annual Cap amount paid  Annual Cap amountpaid  Annual Cap

ARBTR ARETR ARMTRT ARETR AR%TR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

BERZNA
BEAL Nature of connected
Connected person transaction

ElGe AEEATHERD 1,237,484 1,375,934 - - 1,237,484 1,375,934
Nanpu (on behalf of the Sales of goods to

Nanpu Group) ® connected persons
mERREREE)Y nBEATEERR 1,120,424 1,173,587 - - 1,120,424 1,173,587
Nanpu (on behalf of the Purchase of goods from

Nanpu Group) * connected persons

B LERNBEMBEARAR A LEIENRAERATR L
BIARRARDBNEZRR - MMEHRAREHHTE
XA B EEREEREERARNALRANEEAL -
HR EEEREFRAEXERARZ DENEEHEARRFN
ZEMBRA - BRIELETRAUE 1A & - Lt ERER
ZEEHEE o

2 PEREEEERBEN TR - MR h AL EREE
H49%  RELTRUB/ADANAERE EMALKAT
MREAL -

s LERBEREARAR R LA RAERATR L
BIRRRAERDRNEZRRR - MMEHSRERBNHE
RFE) . E LSRMELAREERATDALRRTNEEAL -
HRLEEHMELEREARRLGHELREERATANEE
MEBAR  RELTHRIEUASE  DHFERERFE
BHFETE -

“ FBARRRIERRE (BRR)RBERAR R LEREAER
BRATLRAEE A% Wi DEREEEEHER %A E
AT o RIF_EWRAE 14A.07(6) 15 R 14A19 5 FRIRIE R
R AREAL -
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Shanghai Shaowansheng Commerce & Food Ltd. is a substantial
shareholder of Shanghai Chuanxiang Flavouring and Food Co., Ltd.,
and Shanghai Chuanxiang Food Factory, both of which are
subsidiaries of the Company. Shanghai Shaowansheng Commerce &
Food Ltd. is therefore a connected person of the Company. Shanghai
Huanglongtai Tea Company Limited is wholly-owned by Shanghai
Shaowansheng Commerce & Food Ltd., a connected person of the
Company, and is therefore its associate and a connected person of
the Company. The above continuing connected transactions have
been aggregated pursuant to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules.

Shanghai Tangjiu is a substantial shareholder of Nanpu, which is
indirectly owned by the Group as to 49% and a joint venture of the
Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules, and is therefore a
connected person of the Company.

Shanghai Shaowansheng Commerce & Food Ltd. is a substantial
shareholder of Shanghai Chuanxiang Flavouring and Food Co., Ltd.,
and Shanghai Chuanxiang Food Factory, both of which are
subsidiaries of the Company. Shanghai Shaowansheng Commerce &
Food Ltd. is therefore a connected person of the Company. Shanghai
Shaowansheng Food Company is wholly-owned by Shanghai
Shaowansheng Commerce & Food Ltd., a connected person of the
Company, and is therefore its associate and a connected person of
the Company. The above continuing connected transactions have
been aggregated pursuant to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules.

Nanpu is a joint venture owned by the Company as to 49% through
Tenwow (Fujian) Food Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Tiansheng Wines and
Spirits Co., Ltd. collectively, and as to 51% by Shanghai Tangjiu.
Nanpu is deemed by the Stock Exchange as a connected person
pursuant to Rules 14A.07(6) and 14A.19 of the Listing Rules.
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For further information relating to the above transactions,
please refer to the Prospectus, the announcements dated
18 November 2013, 30 December 2013 and 16 November
2015 and the circulars despatched on 14 December 2013
and 10 December 2015 of the Company.

PARTIALLY-EXEMPT CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Set out below is a summary of the continuing connected
transactions for the Group, which are exempt, under Rule
14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules, from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements, but are subject to the
reporting, annual review and announcement requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

HE-E-AET-A=T-HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

RESE(RREFRE
WEAR FEEDREE)
Tenwow Group (on behalf of

itself and its subsidiaries,
excluding the Nanpu Group)

BERZNA
BEAL Nature of connected
Connected person transaction
ERCHEH
Actual
amount paid
ARBTT
RMB'000
MEELERABEA LS MBEALHENE 840
REERERARO Leasing of properties from
Mr. Lin Jianhua and his associate,  connected persons

Shanghai Tiansheng
Warehouse Co., Ltd.®

MEELEERARRRRBRFES  BMALR A EEE
AL EERERRERATLAER (BB REFRATN
TEMBRR - MEM(EE)REERARAANRELE
BEHB30% o Et - LIBERERFEERRRRMEETED
BEA  TARATNEEAL R EERERRERD
AEMEERRE M EASEREXSERELTRAE
MUABVIEEHIETE - BERMEEANNE—SER - F2HX
AEABEBRER —E-MFLA-ANRAER-_Z—HF
T—A+RBEHRE -

Bl (RREHRE)
Nanpu (on behalf of the &
Nanpu Group) Total
ERCHEH ERE[EH
Actual EELR Actual
amount paid  Annual Cap amount paid

ARETRE AREMTRT AR®TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

EELR
Annual Cap

ARBTR
RMB'000

FELR
Annual Cap

ARBTR
RMB'000

13 454 17,886 28,289 18,726 4,743

T Mr. Lin Jianhua is a controlling Shareholder and a Director of the
Company and hence a connected person of the Company. Shanghai
Tiansheng Warehouse Co., Ltd. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nan
Pu (Hong Kong) Investments Limited, which is in turn owned by Mr.
Lin Jianhua as to more than 30%. Therefore, Shanghai Tiansheng
Warehouse Co., Ltd. is an associate of Mr. Lin Jianhua and a
connected person of the Company. As Shanghai Tiansheng
Warehouse Co., Ltd. is connected with Mr. Lin, the continuing
connected transactions under the above tenancy agreements have
been aggregated pursuant to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules. For
further information relating to the tenancy agreements, please refer
to the Prospectus and the announcements dated 2 July 2014 and 16
November 2015 of the Company.
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Confirmation from the Auditor and
Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company in relation to the Continuing
Connected Transactions

The Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, was
engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2016 in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of
continuing connected transactions set out above in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions
have been entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

2. onnormal commercial terms or better; and
3. according to the agreement governing them on terms

that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken
by the Group in the normal course of business are set out
in Note 34 to the financial statements. Those related party
transactions which constituted continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, are set out in the
section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”
above, and the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
during the year, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group believes that employees are important and
valuable assets and thus we provide competitive and
attractive remuneration packages to retain the employees.
The management reviews annually the remuneration to its
employees of the Group. The Group values long standing
relationships with its suppliers and customers. The Group
aims at delivering high quality services to its customers and
developing mutual trust and enhancing communication and
commitment between the Group and its suppliers.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the percentages
of purchases from the Group’s largest supplier and the five
largest suppliers were 21.1% and 51.2%, respectively. The
percentages of sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers were 21.3% and
38.6%, respectively. During the year ended 31 December
2016, none of the Directors or any of their close associates,
or any Shareholders of the Company (which to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital) had any interest in any of
the Group's five largest suppliers or customers.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 1 August 2013, the Company adopted the Pre-IPO share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”).
The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to give
the participants an opportunity to acquire a personal stake
in the Company and to help motivate such participants to
optimize their performance and efficiency. It also helps to
retain the participants whose contributions are important to
the long-term growth and profitability of the Group.

As at 31 December 2016, the maximum number of shares
of the Company available for issue in respect of which
options were granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme was 17,916,667 shares for Pool A and 19,166,667
shares for Pool B, representing approximately 0.81% and
0.87% respectively of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of the annual report.

A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 was paid by the
grantees upon acceptance of the grant of option by the
Company under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. The
exercise price per share under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is HK$1.80. Each option was subject to a vesting
scale and exercise period as detailed in the note to the
movement of outstanding share options of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme during the year set out in the table
below.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, no share option
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was exercised.
Save for the options which have been granted as described
below, no further options will be offered or granted by the
Company pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

The following table discloses details of the Company’s
outstanding share options held by the Directors and certain
employees of the Company under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and its movement during the year ended 31
December 2016:

BREHE
Number of Share Options
Bz
—E-RE ®
T=A=t-A =

ILFE t=A=t+-H

BAX LEE
Exercised Cancelled Lapsed wEsn SREG
during the during the during the Balance fTEE®ET
yearended  yearended  yearended asat  Exercise e
31December 31December 31December 31December price per  Exercise
2016 2016 2016 2016 share period

8z
—B-KE
+=A=t-H
® LEE
—E-RE BRH
—-A-H Granted
& eh during the
ARARERER Balanceas  yearended
Name or category  # i A at 1January 31 December
of grantees Date of Grant 2016 2016
ER(24)
Directors (Pool B)
THEEE —T-=fNA-H 1,666,667 0
Mr. Wang Juewei 1 August 2013
WL “Z-=57\A—H 4,166,664 0
Mr. Lam Hang Boris 1 August 2013
L E —Z-=4\A—H 1,666,667 0
Mr. Yeung Yue Ming 1 August 2013
EEELT —Z2-ZF/\A—-H 1,666,667 0
Ms. Au Lai Hang 1 August 2013
SREEERAM —T-=FfNA-H 17,916,667 0
B (F4R)(85) 1 August 2013
Senior Management
and other
employees (Pool A)
(in aggregate)
ERERERAM —Z-Z5\A—H 10,000,002 0
EE (Z48)(#5) 1 August 2013
Senior Management
and other employees
(Pool B)
(in aggregate)
it —Z-=5/\A-H 37,083,334 0
Total 1 August 2013

0 0 0 1,666,667 1.80BTT FifzE
HK$1.80 Note 1

0 0 0 4,166,664 1.80%7T LIl
HK$1.80 Note 1

0 0 0 1,666,667 1.80/87T FitEE
HK$1.80 Note 1

0 0 0 1,666,667 1.80787T Bz
HK$1.80 Note 1

0 0 0 17916667 1.807%TT MiEE2
HK$1.80 Note 2

0 0 0 10,000,002 1.807 7T LIl
HK$1.80 Note 1

0 0 0 37083334 1.80%TT
HK$1.80
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] B-ZE-—WFAATNBEZ—RFAATLHTA
THEERBBRESRS 0% M TEBRERE

@) BE-Z-—RAFAA+NBEZZE—R"FAATLEA
TEE R HERERZ 50% RETEBAREHRE

@) B RFAATNBEZZ—+tFNAA+LEA
TEERHERESRS 70%REITERBREHRE

®) B-Z—tFNATN\BEEERERL AR E
WIF (RERARMBERBRME BIIRF &L
SCRARIR) (E BAR AT 70 B4R BB AR R B 1T R BB AR
HEHELE o

RBEARBERARE SR RIET S EREREN S FA
AN ARIRIAT T R R AHE

(1) B =FAA+LEEZT—MFAATLET
TR B R KRR 10%;

@ B-ZE-—WFAATNBEZE—RFAATHHT
THEEREBRESRS 5% METEBRERE

@) BE-Z-AFAA+NBEZZE-—R"FAA+TLBEA
TEE R HERERZ 5% RETEBREHRE

@ B-Z-A"FAATN\BEEEBER L AREE
WM8F (R ERAMBER BT B P L LK
SRR (E R AT T B R BB AR B 1T e B A%
HEREE o

Notes:

Grantees who fall under Pool B with share options granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme of the Company will be entitled to
exercise their options in the following manner:

0]

up to 10% of the share options granted are exercisable from
17 September 2013 to 17 September 2014;

up to 30% of the share options granted less the number of
share options exercised are exercisable from 18 September
2014 t0 17 September 2015;

up to 50% of the share options granted less the number of
share options exercised are exercisable from 18 September
2015 to 17 September 2016;

up to 70% of the share options granted less the number of
share options exercised are exercisable from 18 September
2016 to 17 September 2017,

such number of share options granted less the number of
share options exercised are exercisable from 18 September
2017 and ending on the expiration of 9 years from the date of
grant of the option (subject to the provisions for early
termination under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme).

Each grantee who falls under Pool A with share options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme of the Company will be
entitled to exercise his/her options in the following manner:

M

up to 10% of the share options granted are exercisable from
17 September 2013 to 17 September 2014;

up to 35% of the share options granted less the number of
share options exercised are exercisable from 18 September
2014 to 17 September 2015;

up to 65% of the share options granted less the number of
share options exercised are exercisable from 18 September
2015 t0 17 September 2016;

such number of share options granted less the number of
share options exercised are exercisable from 18 September
2016 and ending on the expiration of 8 years from the date of
grant of the option (subject to the provisions for early
termination under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme).
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Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 19 August
2013 (the “Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”), which
became effective on the listing date on 17 September 2013.
The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
enable the Group to grant options to selected participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group.
The Directors consider that the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme, with its broadened basis of participation, will
enable the Group to reward its employees, Directors and
other selected participants for their contributions to the
Group and to encourage them to give their best
performance and efficiency to the Group in future. It is also
designed to attract and retain or utilize other means to
maintain good relations with qualified individuals who are
or will be beneficial to the Company’s development or
success. The Directors may, at their absolute discretion,
invite any directors and employees of any member of the
Group (including the Nanpu Group), any advisers,
consultants, distributors, contractors, customers, suppliers,
agents, business partners, joint venture business partners,
and service providers of any member of the Group to take
up options to subscribe for shares of the Company. The
options may be granted to any company wholly owned by
one or more persons belonging to any of the above classes
of participants. The eligibility of any of these classes of
participants shall be determined by the Directors on the
basis of the Directors’ opinion as to the participant’s
contribution to the development and growth of the Group.

The maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.
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S

The total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the shares in issue on the day on which trading of the
shares of the Company commenced on the SEHK and any
shares issued upon the exercise of the over-allotment
option during the listing of the Company’s share on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 17 September 2013
(the “Listing"), which were 207,361,200 shares representing
9.4% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of this annual report.

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company (including both exercised and
outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

As at 31 December 2016, no share options had been
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.

The share options to be granted under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme are exercisable within a period of 10 years
after the date of grant. The Directors are entitled to
determine the performance targets to be achieved as well
as the minimum period that an option must be held before
an option can be exercised at the time of offer of the
Options to the participants. The subscription price per share
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will be a price
determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the SEHK's daily quotations sheet on the date
of the offer of grant, which must be a business day; (i) the
average closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the SEHK's daily quotations for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant;
and (jii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on the
date of grant. The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will
remain in force for a period of 10 years commencing on 17
September 2013. A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is
payable upon acceptance of the grant of an option.

For further information relating to the scheme, please refer
to the Prospectus of the Company.
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DIRECTORS' RIGHT TO PURCHASE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended
31 December 2016 was the Company or any of its holding
company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements that would enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme of the Company as
disclosed on pages 118 to 122, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Group, or existed during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the relevant laws of the Cayman
Islands where the Company is incorporated which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to its existing Shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Saved as those disclosed under the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, the Group did not
have any significant investment during the year under
review.

PURCHASE, SALE, OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2016, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company.

TAXATION
Details of the taxation of the Group are set out in Note 28 to
the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the level of public float as required under the
Listing Rules as at the date of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of
the environment and communities in which it operates.
Acting in an environmentally responsible manner, the
Group endeavours to comply with laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection and to adopt effective
measures to achieve efficient use of resources, energy
saving and waste reduction.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations in the amount of approximately RMB30.6 million.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Due to change of job assignments, Mr. Wang Juewei will
resign as executive Director, Chief Executive Officer and
member of the Remuneration Committee, with effect from
22 March 2017. Mr. Wang will fully devote and focus on the
day-to-day management and operations of Nanpu. The
Board would like to thank Mr. Wang for his contributions to
the Company during his tenure of office as executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer. In addition, with effect
from 22 March 2017, Mr. Lin Qi will be appointed as
executive Director; Mr. Yan Zhixiong will be appointed as
non-executive Director; Mr. Shen Yalong will be appointed
as independent non-executive Director; and Mr. Lin Jianhua
will be appointed as the Chief Executive Officer and a
member of the Remuneration Committee. Please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 21 March 2017
for further information.

Save as disclosed in other parts of this annual report, no
events occurred between the balance sheet date (i.e. 31
December 2016) and the date of this annual report that
would cause material impact on the Group.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2016 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will
retire at the conclusion of the AGM. PricewaterhouseCoopers,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers
as the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Lin Jianhua
Chairman

Hong Kong
21 March 2017
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIN Jianhua (M%), aged 58, is the founder and
chairman of the Group and was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company in August 2011. He is also the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Lin is
responsible for the overall strategic planning and business
direction of the Group. Mr. Lin has more than 23 years of
experience in the food and beverage distribution industry.
Mr. Lin worked at Putian Huanan Food Co., Ltd. (5 AT
BIRMmAR AT as a manager from September 1985 to
September 1992. In October 1992, Mr. Lin founded Nanpu
Food (Group) Co., Ltd. (FER MmERE)BR A7) (previously
known as Shanghai Nanpu Food Co., Ltd. (-8 HE M
AR A7R)), and was the general manager until May 2016. In
December 1999, Mr. Lin founded Tenwow Food (Group) Co.,
Ltd. (RERB(EE)BR AR (previously known as
Shanghai Tenwow Food Co., Ltd. (B8 KB R FAER A R)),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and has since
served as the chairman. Mr. Lin is also a director of Praise
Sheen Limited (2 EAPFR 7)) and Nan Pu International
Limited (FAHBIBRABR A 7)), wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Lin was appointed as the chairman and
authorized representative of Tenwow (Chengdu) Food Co.,
Ltd. (RIB(AKER)R s A R A R]) and Tenwow (Tianjin) Food
Co., Ltd. (REE(RE)R@mBERKR A A, wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company in June 2013 and December
2013, respectively. Mr. Lin was appointed as the chairman,
general manager and authorized representative of Tenwow
Food Group (Shanghai) Sales Co., Ltd. (KIER A& B(EH)
BEBR AR in March 2014, a director of Tenwow
Beverages International Company Limited (KUBZSHE #1
BABR A7) in July 2014, the chairman and authorized
representative of Tenwow (Chongging) Food Co., Ltd. (BB
MAEBRMAERZAT) in December 2014 and a director of
Nanpu Fine Wine & Spirits International Company Limited
(EHEBBEHBEEAR AR in July 2015. Mr. Lin was
appointed as a director of Redew Bio-Technology
International Company Limited (4T & & EHEBIFR B PR A 7))
in June 2016 and was appointed as the chairman and
authorized representative of Shanghai Redew Bio-
Technology Co., Ltd. (E/BABEEMEEAER AR in
September 2016. Mr. Lin has been a director of Zhi Qun
Enterprises Limited (FR¥(REBRR A A, the controlling
Shareholder of the Company.
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Mr. WANG Juewei (EX3#), aged 47, is the chief
executive officer of the Group and was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company in May 2012. He is also a
member of the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Wang
oversees the day-to-day business and the general
management of the Group. Mr. Wang graduated from East
China Normal University (ZESREI# AZ) in 1991 with a
bachelor’s degree in English literature. From October 1991
to March 1997, Mr. Wang worked as a teacher at Shanghai
Medical Workers' College (_E/&8 TEEp5x) and later from
March 1997 to May 2003 at the School of Foreign Languages
at East China Normal University (ZEER AT A 25N EEPT).
Mr. Wang joined Nanpu Food (Group) Co., Ltd. (R &R (5
E)BBR27F]) in June 2003 and served as a brand manager
until June 2006, where he was in charge of managing the
distribution of products from several brands, including
“Changyu” (“3R#8"), “Great Wall" ("EE &) and “Cook’s
Choice” ("EFi#"). From July 2006 to June 2007, Mr. Wang
was in charge of the human resource department of Nanpu
Food (Group) Co., Ltd. (/BB mEE)BR A7) and was
appointed as vice chairman and general manager in May
2016. Mr. Wang joined the Group as the general manager of
Tenwow Food (Group) Co., Ltd. (RIERF(EE)BRAR), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in October 2007.

Mr. LAM Hang Boris (#K$), aged 46, is the chief financial
officer and company secretary of the Group and was
appointed as an executive Director of the Company in May
2012. Mr. Lam is responsible for the overall financial
operation of the Group, investor relations related matters
and overall secretarial matters of the Company. He is also
in charge of communications with the Stock Exchange and
other regulatory authorities. Mr. Lam graduated from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor’s degree in
accountancy in 1996. Mr. Lam has more than 20 years of
audit and finance-related experience. He joined KPMG (£55
B2 ETEIER5FT) in September 1996 and resigned in March
2011. Mr. Lam has been an associate of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January 1999,
and a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants since November 2000.
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Mr. YEUNG Yue Ming (5#188), aged 51, is a vice
president of the Group and was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company in May 2012. Mr. Yeung is
responsible for the Group’s overall sales. Mr. Yeung
received his bachelor’s degree in social sciences
(journalism and communications) from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1988. After graduation until
March 1994, Mr. Yeung worked at Nestlé (China) Ltd. (£ £
(BB AR, Mr. Yeung then worked as the senior
regional manager in charge of the Beijing Region for
Maxxium Shanghai Limited (BEFBE 5 (AR A F)
from March 1994 to June 2006. From June 2006 to April
2012, Mr. Yeung worked at Nanpu Food (Group) Co., Ltd. (7
HREMEB)BRAR) as a vice general manager,
overseeing Nanpu Food (Group) Co., Ltd.'s (BB R R (EE)
BBR AR marketing and sales activities. Mr. Yeung joined
the Group as a vice general manager of Tenwow Food
(Group) Co., Ltd. (REERm(EE)BR A F]), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in May 2012.

Ms. AU Lai Hang (E&18), aged 48, is a vice president of
the Group and was appointed as an executive Director of
the Company in May 2012. Ms. Au is responsible for the
overall sales and marketing and promotions of the Group.
Ms. Au graduated from the University of Hong Kong in 1989
with a bachelor’s degree in social work. Ms. Au worked at
Nestlé (China) Ltd. (2 & (+ Bl)A R~ 7)) after graduation to
May 1995, starting as a marketing executive trainee and
was promoted to the position of senior product manager.
Ms. Au then worked at A.S. Watson Group (fEE K%£E)
from May 1995 to August 2011 where she was the
marketing director for water & beverages for Mainland
China when she departed. During her employment, Ms. Au
continued her education and obtained a master’s degree in
business administration from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong in 1997. Ms. Au joined the Group in May 2012 as
a vice president of Nan Pu International Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. She was appointed as a
director and general manager of Nanpu Fine Wine & Spirits
International Company Limited (FEE& B BIFR AR A R)),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in August 2014
and July 2015 respectively, and was appointed as a director
of Redew Bio-Technology International Company Limited (4T
BEAEYRERBBR AR 2 F) in June 2016.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LIU Zhao (2I#l), aged 44, was appointed as a non-
executive Director of the Company on 18 May 2016. Mr Liu
received a bachelor's degree and a master’s degree in
finance from Tsinghua University in 1996 and 1998,
respectively. Mr. Liu has been serving as a managing
director of CICC Jia Cheng Investment Management Co.,
Ltd. (“CICC Jia Cheng"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
China International Capital Corporation Limited (“CICC") (the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 3908)), and is mainly responsible for
investments and post-investment management. Mr. Liu
possesses 19 years of experience in private equity
investment and investment banking. From 1998 to 2002,
Mr. Liu worked in the investment banking division of CICC.
From 2002 to 2004, Mr. Liu founded Beijing Dynamic Space
Information Technology Co, Ltd., where he served as the
chief executive officer. From 2004 to 2006, he was a vice
president in the investment banking division of CICC and
was mainly responsible for handling and has accomplished
several major initial public offerings and mergers and
acquisitions. From 2006 to 2007, he was an associate
director of Standard Chartered Private Equity. Mr. Liu joined
CICC Jia Cheng in May 2007 and has led several investments
in various industries including consumer, clean-technology
and industrial.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. LIU Chang-Tzong (£1#°R), aged 61, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
since 17 September 2013. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. Mr. Liu graduated from Chien-Hsing Industrial
College (now known as Chien-Hsing University of Science
and Technology) in 1975. Mr. Liu served as a distribution
manager at Taiwan Coca-Cola Ltd. (& /&7 O] 24/ (n B R
~\]) from May 1988 to July 1990, and then as a national
sales manager at Taiwan Nestlé Ltd. (/&L ERMDBRA
a]) from August 1990 to October 1995. Mr. Liu subsequently
worked at Nestlé China Ltd. (& (FE)AR Q7)) as the
director of national sales from November 1995 to June 2002,
and then at Nestlé Purina (Shanghai) Ltd (/8% & E IRk
BABMR AR as executive general manager and director
from July 2002 to May 2006. Mr. Liu was last employed by
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corporation from July 2006
to February 2012, and served as executive vice president of
the convenient food division and was chairman of North

China before departure.

Mr. CHEUNG Yui Kai Warren (3R&1{E), aged 49, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company since 17 September 2013. He is also the Chairman
of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Cheung
graduated from the University of Southern Queensland of
Australia with a bachelor’s degree in business and has
more than 22 years of corporate finance experience. Mr.
Cheung held management positions of corporate finance in
several financial corporations such as Standard Chartered
Asia Limited, Standard Chartered Australia Limited, ABN
AMRO Asia Corporate Finance Limited, SMBC Nikko
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited, Ping An of China Capital
(Hong Kong) Company Limited and Great Wall International
Corporate Finance Limited. Mr. Cheung has been serving as
the Managing Director and Head of M&A of First Capital
International Finance Limited since May 2016. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Cheung was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Food Wise Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 01632)
on 8 November 2016.
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Mr. WANG Longgen (E#E4R), aged 64, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company
since 17 September 2013. He is also the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr. Wang was
qualified as a senior economist by the Shanghai Economics
(Circulation) Senior Professional and Technical Title
Qualification Evaluation Committee in 1995. Mr. Wang
graduated from Air Force Political College of the People’s
Liberation Army of China in economics and management in
1999. Mr. Wang also received a master’s degree in
economics from Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics in 1999. From May 1979 to June 1989, Mr. Wang
worked at Huangpu District Tobacco & Wine Co., Ltd. (EJ#
[& %)%/~ 7)) and Huangpu District Commerce Commission
(BEHEEEZEE). From June 1989 to March 1991, Mr.
Wang served as the deputy director-general of Huangpu
District Industrial and Commercial Administration Bureau (&
SHETEITHEIRR). Subsequently, from March 1991 to
October 1996, Mr. Wang served as the director-general and
then deputy secretary of the Chinese Communist Party
Committee of Huangpu District Industrial and Commercial
Administration Bureau (Z2'#& THE{THEREME). From
October 1996 to June 1999, Mr. Wang was the director-
general and then deputy secretary of the Chinese
Communist Party Committee of Huangpu District Economic
and Trade Commission (FREAEE 5Z ). From June
1999 to April 2011, Mr. Wang served as vice chairman,
president and deputy secretary of the party committee in
Shanghai New World (Group) Co., Ltd. (E/&#tt REBMAR
A 7)), and chairman and secretary of the party committee
from April 2011 to January 2013.

20164E3% « AnnualReport2016 131



EENSNEERE

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SREERE

RELLE B85 AKEBAEY BEAKENTT
BEANER - REEAR-—NNAFEBINEWE
BEXEBER N _TZFEENLEIEEKRE
REREZEFEXEEL8U  R_FTTHFIE
EEBERE NGRS RS E RS2 A M
THERBRTIRENIHERBRLIEM - RELER

—NWAAFEtASERLSEB(EE)ARTN
TETFRAMAREE  TALEDE - REER
TETAFE-ZAEEAAEBENBIALE  BEA

NEREBRRATTHRER - RAER T —=F—7
EAEBEZEREEER -

Bt /x AEEBEER TEREAKHE
MMEES - BRI - NNOFEFREREHE S
e ;Hrﬁﬁﬁﬂfjl_* cEZER—NNNFE
AHENER KRR ZTTNFRALEEM ST
SIAFEEE - N — h)\ﬂitﬁé_iiiiii—i—:
A BEZEREREMEIRHERAB G
BEBAI BT AERTEE - 5?Eﬁliilzﬁﬂ_ﬁ/\_ﬁ;ﬁ; =
T AE_EE _F-AHETEAHER(C TS
HEARRRWMBEE - BELXIN _TT=F—
AZ-ZZ)\F+ARHEEETLEYLAXERERA
FAEERE  AEMBRITRIE BRtR-F
ENF+—ANMAREE  EARBREEZENE
RAREBESENMBHAE BN _ZT-—FTFN\A%
RAEEERS -

/8 &
'f:fEl

&8 o
=8

132 XxEEERERERAR  Tenwow International Holdings Limited

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHEN Lei (FR#), aged 43, is a vice president of the
Group and is in charge of the Group’s administration and
human resources. Mr. Chen received a certificate in foreign
affairs secretary in 1995 and graduated from Shanghai
International Studies University (/8538 KX E8) in 2001
with a bachelor’s degree in English language and literature.
Mr. Chen received a master degree in Business
Administration in 2004 from the MBA program jointly
organized by the Shanghai Maritime University (/882X
£ and the Maastricht School of Management of the
Netherlands (55 HTF @ kS E IR £057T). Mr. Chen worked for
Shanghai Huili Group Company Limited ( = /8ERE(EE) A 7))
from July 1995 and joined Nanpu as an assistant to the
general manager in May 2000. Mr. Chen was promoted to
the position of deputy general manager of Nanpu in March
2009 in charge of human resources and office
administration matters. Mr. Chen was appointed to his
current position in the Group in January 2013.

Ms. LU Ying (B£E%), aged 47, is a vice president of the
Group and is primarily responsible for the Group’s financial
operations. Ms. Lu received a bachelor’s degree in
accounting in 1994 from Changchun Taxation College (K&
FRISEBR). Ms. Lu received her accountant qualifications in
1996 and became a non-practising member of the Shanghai
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 2009. From July
1989 to December 2000, Ms. Lu worked at Jilin Chemical
Industrial Co. Ltd. (FM{E Tk AR A7) in the accounts
department, and was promoted to the position of chief
accountant before her departure. Ms. Lu then served as the
financial manager at Petro China East China Refining &
Marketing Taicang Company (R B4 mEERL TERHE KA
‘2 7)) from December 2000 to March 2002. Ms. Lu served as
a deputy general manager in charge of finance and
administration at Shanghai Miaoshi Dairy Co., Ltd. (E/&%+
ZLE B A 7)) from January 2003 to October 2008. Ms. Lu
joined the Group in November 2008 as the financial
controller for Tenwow Group, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. She was appointed to her
current position in August 2010.
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Mr. ZHOU Yanwen (B X), aged 41, is a vice president
of the Group and is primarily responsible for the marketing
and sales of the Group’s food and snacks. Mr. Zhou
graduated from the Wuhan University of Technology (&%
T ZKE) (now known as Wuhan University of Technology
(F 232 T K&)) with a bachelor’s degree in management
engineering in 1999. Mr. Zhou received an executive MBA
degree from Wuhan University (#0/ZA£2) in 2008. Mr. Zhou
joined the Group in March 2000 as the general manager of
Wuhan Nanpu. Mr. Zhou also serves as the general
manager of several other jointly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company, including the general manager of Tenwow
(Wuhan) Food Co., Ltd. (KIE(EU£)R A R 2 7)) since June
2009, the general manager of Wuhan Tenwow Drinks Co.,
Ltd. (BUEREZREEERAQF]) since August 2010, the
general manager of Tenwow (Chongging) Food Co., Ltd. (&2
EmXRERMARAR]) from December 2010 to December
2014 and the general manager of Xiangyang Nanpu Food
LLC (EEmRARMARE A7) since November 2011,
overseeing the operations and management of each
company. Mr. Zhou was appointed to his present position in
January 2013.

Ms. YANG Xuyi (#1818), aged 36, is a vice president of
the Group and is primarily responsible for the Group's legal
and compliance and investment matters. Ms. Yang received
her bachelor’s degree in law from the East China Institute of
Politics and Law EERBUEZPT) (now known as the East
China University of Political Science and Law EERBUAKR
£)) in 2003, obtained the PRC legal practicing certificate in
2006 and received her master’'s degree in civil and
commercial law from Koguan Law School of Shanghai Jiao
Tong University in June 2013. Ms. Yang worked from July
2003 to February 2004 as a legal assistant at Shanghai Tong
He Law Offices ()& @ANEEMBEISFT) (now known as
Shanghai Jiuzhou Tong He Law Offices (& S @ F172 T
EF). Ms. Yang then worked as a special assistant to the
chief operating officer of Project Solutions International
Group (Shanghai) Ltd. (f8§EE%1E B BB A (B RAF)
from February 2004 to July 2005. Ms. Yang joined Nanpu in
April 2006 as a legal manager, overseeing legal and
compliance and investment matters. Ms. Yang was
appointed to her current position in the Group in January
2013.
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BERAE

To the shareholders of Tenwow International
Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Tenwow
International Holdings Limited (the “"Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 142 to 258,
which comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2016;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSS") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

 EERBATAEL S

A +852 2289 8888  {HH: +852 2810 9888
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“"HKSASs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are the matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. The
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on the matters.
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Revenue recognition is identified as a key audit matter in
our audit, and is summarised as follows:

EANETNNEERRETSEH

Key Audit Matter

WA TER
Revenue recognition

DR G TSR EMIEE2.25
Refer to note 2.25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

WA TR B & T DGR 15 B T DA BERR. - I AEY & BE AN AE
BRI ABE MR SEMET R MmABR LENEZRR
MR LEE T

Revenue is recognised when the amount and the
related costs are reliably measured, and the risks and
rewards of the underlying products have been
transferred to the customers.

LM ZEEETEHNEENRGHREEKXN BE
TR AR B R R Z R B - AMBEE AW
F e R B BRI S M A MR R B 2 B R B '
KEZE EMZERXSeEEEE @S HERER
A BB TR BT SR ¥R

We focused on this area due to the huge volume of
sales transactions mainly with numerous distributors in
many different locations and there may be time lapse
between the timing of the goods received by the
customers and the recognition of revenue.
Accordingly, there could be potential misstatements in
relation to whether these transactions are recognised
in the proper reporting periods.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BEBEZHEESR  HESENRABRRBRETT
R AR RN R4 o

We understood and evaluated the revenue recognition
policy of the Group by reviewing the contracts with
customers.

BB - STATRETEEEOHE ERNRETIHE
WA GEERRAZHPES] o pEAN - TPVAIR T E £ E K AN
HRR— MR (= ERMESIRE B B bS] o

We understood, evaluated and validated management'’s
controls in respect of the Group's sales transactions from
customer order’s approval to sales recording. In addition,
we tested the general information technology control
environment and the related automated controls of the
Group's revenue related systems.

BMEAMERN - RRBRESHBIFEG  BEHE
ERMERRMERZ G - HERE BEBEBUREFHN
FE  HEERARMENTRE P WA ET T8
o lbih BREPHME RS  BMYRFHRERE
A FREE— R BRANHETT BB AR o

We conducted testing of revenue recorded covering
different locations and customers, using sampling
techniques, by examining the relevant supporting
documents including risks and rewards terms of the sales
contracts, customer orders, goods delivery notes and
customer’s receipt notes. In addition, we confirmed
customers' balances and transactions on a targeted basis,
considering the nature and characteristics of those
customers.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Brib 2 9N BB TIEE S 2 — 23 1B A =
BEEBEHIELHENEERA  TEEEREEREKP
R SRR E - LA EHE A RS ERER RS B R -
Furthermore, one of our focused audit efforts was testing
sales transactions recorded before and after the balance
sheet date, using sampling techniques, by tracing to the
goods delivery notes and customers’ receipt notes, to
assess whether revenue was recognised in the correct
reporting periods.

BTV R ARI B BRIRAFZBRIZFEIER -

We also tested journal entries posted to revenue accounts
to identify any unusual or irregular items.
ERBAIFTMAIE - RIVRAH#HFE & HERE M BHRE
EESEAXENEIE -

Based on our work performed, we did not note any
significant issues which would impact the consolidated
financial statements.

ils)3

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the audit committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’'s report is Mang Kwong Fung,
Frederick.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 March 2017
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R-ZE—RF+-A=+—HLFE
As at 31 December 2016

R+=BA=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E—RF —E—ARF
2016 2015
AR¥TR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
FREBEE Non-current assets
ME - WENMRE Property, plant and equipment 6 1,036,846 1,008,556
b s A Land use rights 7 140,229 141,418
EILEE Intangible assets 8 90,576 60,757
REEE R AR E Investments in associates 9 2,764 1,036
R—REERAIMEE Investment in a joint venture 10 424,422 434,084
RIEFTISTEE Deferred income tax assets 21 20,042 13,368
1,714,879 1,659,219
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 12 869,402 847,702
B 5 M E MR FIE Trade and other receivables 13 3,167,830 2,963,182
ZRHHEE Restricted cash 14 702,362 364,411
Be RS EEY Cash and cash equivalents 14 969,158 448,653
5,708,752 4,623,948
BEAE Total assets 7,423,631 6,283,167
B EQUITY
%N Share capital 15 176,448 164,634
&A@ (E Share premium 15 1,293,887 1,149,151
HE Other reserves 17 258,966 234,246
REB & FI Retained earnings 16 1,461,549 1,275,982
3,190,850 2,824,013
FEIER S Non-controlling interests 59,972 75,555
EEBE Total equity 3,250,822 2,899,568
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REZE—ARF+A=+—HLEEE
As at 31 December 2016

7

R+=A=+-—H
As at 31 December
—B-AE —THF

2016 2015
AR%T T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
af& LIABILITIES
FRBAE Non-current liabilities
B Borrowings 20 280,380 358,885
BREFTSTR AR Deferred income tax liabilities 21 27,386 26,690
IR 78 B A L A Deferred income on government grants 18 19,712 21,137
327,478 406,712
REBAE Current liabilities
B 5 N E M EARIE Trade and other payables 19 1,746,142 1,397,599
EHIMEHAaE Current income tax liabilities 71,964 84,761
B Borrowings 20 2,024,650 1,491,612
BT BB IE W AR B B Current portion of deferred income
onh government grants 18 2,575 2,915
3,845,331 2,976,887
BEH8E Total liabilities 4,172,809 3,383,599
ExkBEEHE Total equity and liabilities 7,423,631 6,283,167

The notes on pages 150 to 258 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

5 150 £ 258 HHIMIFE AR B M MR MR D -

FIRE1OENUBRREBETEN - —CF
At Biltk IRKREFERE -

The financial statements on pages 142 to 149 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2017 and
were signed on its behalf.

2 EZE
Director Director
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HE-_T—"E+-_A=t—HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

BEt-A=1T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—E—XE —E—FhF

2016 2015
B sE AR¥TR ARET T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
A Revenue 5 5,218,649 4,908,022
SHE RN Cost of sales 23 (4,200,411) (3,992,520)
EF Gross profit 1,018,238 915,502
S A Distribution costs 23 (439,154) (251,990)
THHEX Administrative expenses 23 (185,363) (172,148)
E A Other income 22 19,069 52,141
Hib (BB), W — 38 Other (losses)/gains- net 24 (37,459) 842
KR F Operating profit 375,331 544,347
EUR TN Finance income 7,967 15,090
ARG R R Finance expenses (94,263) (99,039)
BERA — BE Finance expenses — net 26 (86,296) (83,949)
FE(EEE 2 AR (B1R), & Share of (losses)/profit of associates 9 (22) 3
EE—REe& R am Share of profit of a joint venture 27 9,023 32,083
MRETEBH ANRER Profit before income tax 298,036 492,484
FERiEx Income tax expense 28 (84,091) (126,176)
FERER Profit for the year 213,945 366,308
Hit2EUWA Other comprehensive income

HnseEHEEERAEHR  Items that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or l0Ss

— NI E =R — Currency translation differences 3,238 1,198
FELENZBE Total comprehensive income
for the year 217,183 367,506

144 xEEERZERARAR » Tenwow International Holdings Limited



e EHERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

BEt-A=1+T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—B-AF —FTIF

2016 2015
Tak AR%T T ARBTT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
BANEER Total profit attributable to:
AAFAIERFEAA Equity holders of the Company 204,834 350,809
FEVERR Non-controlling interests 9,111 15,499
213,945 366,308
2EWEEEBR : Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
RARIERETEA Equity holders of the Company 207,888 352,007
EE2 Non-controlling interests 9,295 15,499
217,183 367,506
AT EREFE AEEEF Earnings per share for profit
NEREF attributable to equity holders
of the Company
— FRREAREF — Basic earnings per share
(ABBRARESFIER) (expressed in RMB cents per share) 29 9.86 16.92
—EETRAT — Diluted earnings per share
(AEFBRARBLTIER) (expressed in RMB cents per share) 29 9.81 16.85
25150 E= 258 B WMtk RAr & IS RER MW EE LD - The notes on pages 150 to 258 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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HE-_T—"E+-_A=t—HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

GRRANAEGREA
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

e AR A BEA SRR
Non-
Share Share Other Retained controlling
capital premium TBServes eamings Total interests Equity
ARETT  ARBTT  ARMTT ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B3k 15) (FizE15) (R3x17) (Pzk16)
(Note 15) (Note 15) (Note 17) (Note 16)
“Z-1%-F-H Balance at 1 January 2015
ek 164,634 1,263,332 201,293 955,507 2,584,766 49,160 2633926
SAUWA Comprehensive income
EERA Profit for the year = = = 350,809 350,809 15499 366,308
EREMZERA Other comprehensive
income for the year = = 1,198 = 1,198 = 1,198
BABNA Total comprehensive income = = 1,198 350,809 352,007 15499 367,506
HEENRS Transactions with owners
& Dividends = (114,181) = = (114,181) (9,104) (123,285)
BRDRERNRGZE  Pre-PO share award scheme
2 —EAES —Value of current
RH{EE employee services - - 1421 - 1421 - 140
MEATSEERIES  Capital contribution from
EREA non-controling
interests of subsidiaries - - - - - 20,000 20,000
#fiEENRS Total transaction with owners,
recognised directly in equity = (114,181) 1421 (112,760) 10,89% (101,864)
BRETTRE Appropriation to statutory reserve - - 30,334 (30,334) - - -
ZE-RFTZA=1-H Balance at 31 December 2015
feh 164,634 1,149,151 234,246 1,275,982 2,824,013 75,55 2,899,568
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BE-_ZT—F+=-A=1T—HLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

BRRFAAREREA
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
e RARE At REEF FERER
Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controlling
capital premium reserves earnings Total interests  Total Equity
AEMTR  ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(&t 15) (&t 15) (W 17) (Rt 16)
(Note 15) (Note 15) (Note 17) (Note 16)
ZZ-E-f-R Balance at 1 January 2016
b33 164,634 1,149,151 234,246 1,275,982 2,824,013 75,985 2,899,568
SAUWA Comprehensive income
EERA Profit for the year - - - 204,834 204,834 9,111 213,945
FEEp2ARA Other comprehensive income
for the year - - 3,054 - 3,054 184 3,238
SAENA Total comprehensive income - - 3,054 204,834 207,888 9,295 217,183
HEENRS Transactions with owners
BERR (1) Issue of ordinary shares (Note 15) 11814 273,335 - - 285,149 - 285,149
g Dividends - (128,599) - - (128,599) (9,878) (138,477)
ERABENRAHEE  PrelPOshare award scheme
iE—EAES —Value of current
REER employee services - - 2,399 - 2,399 - 2,399
HENBAT Disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - (20,000) (20,000)
HEAFHERIERES  Capital contribution from
BEARA non-controling
interests of subsidiaries - - - - - 5,000 5,000
AFEENRS Total transaction with owners,
recognised directly in equity 11,814 144,736 2,399 - 158,949 (24,878) 134,071
ERTLERE Appropriation to statutory reserve - - 19,267 (19,267) - - -
ZE-R"E+ZA=t-R Balance at 31 December 2016
e 176,448 1,293,887 258,966 1,461,549 3,190,850 59,972 3,250,822

55150 £ 258 HHIMI i AR A BTG RN ERL D

The notes on pages 150 to 258 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HE-_T—"E+-_A=t—HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

BEt+t-A=1+—HILESF
Year ended 31 December
—B-AF —FTIF

2016 2015
FiEE AR%T T ARBT T
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
RETEHNRERE cash flows from operating activities
wEmE/ (FrR)BEE Cash generated/(used) in operations 31 555,654 (23,741)
B FE Interest received 7,602 18,712
B TSR Income tax paid (108,092) (112,830)
KEZBRERA Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
(i) /588 operating activities 455,164 (117,859)
RETHNRESRE cash flows from investing activities
BB A RRES Deposit for acquisition of a subsidiary - (31,518)
B E N A Investment in an associate 9 (1,750) =
BE i R Purchase of land use rights - (50,368)
BEYX  BEREE Purchase of property,
plant and equipment (141,708) (241,942)
HEWE  BEMREFSFK  Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 1,359 896
BEETLEE Purchase of intangible assets (814) (1,148)
HEAZNAEBMHEERTSE  Proceeds from disposal of partial
shares in a joint venture 10 20,000 -
HEWB ARSI Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries 6,553 -
HEBE QR FTER Proceeds from disposal of an associate 9 - 14,500
WE RIS R ERE Net cash outflow from investing activities (116,360) (309,580)
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mEEERER
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE+t-A=1+—HILESF
Year ended 31 December
—B-AF —FTIF

2016 2015
AR¥BTRT ARETE
RMB’'000 RMB'000
MEITHNESRE cash flows from financing activities
BATHIRPTE K Proceeds from issuance of new shares 15 285,149 -
ME AR ER T E Capital contribution from non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries 5,000 20,000
RITERETER Proceeds from bank borrowings 2,226,844 2,205,024
EBIRITIERK Repayment of bank borrowings (1,772,313) (1,924,669)
2 A Interest paid (92,029) (98,822)
() FEZRHES (Payments of)/proceeds from
restricted cash (337,951) 104,007
S A TR R A ARRR S Dividends paid to equity holders
of the Company (128,599) (114,181)
S A4S IEE R R e AR B Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests (9,878) (9,104)
BEEHIE S TA Net cash inflow from financing activities 176,223 182,255

BA4RBSEEYHNTEM - Netincrease/(decrease) in cash and

(RA) cash equivalents 515,027 (245,184)
R e KR FEY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 448,653 693,013
EXFHHIReRREF Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
EMH e on cash and cash equivalents 5,478 824
HRASRBESEZEY Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year 14 969,158 448,653
150 2 258 AWM Rir A MERENER IS - The notes on pages 150 to 258 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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BE-T—AF+-A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016
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KIEEFEIZER AR AR * Tenwow International Holdings Limited

GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP
Tenwow International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated by Mr. Lin Jianhua (the
“Controlling Shareholder”) in the Cayman Islands
on 25 August 2011 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law (2010
Revision) of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s
ordinary shares were listed on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK")
on 17 September 2013. The address of its registered
office is Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands.

The Company, an investment holding company, and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the manufacturing, distribution and trading of
beverages, food and snacks and others in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC" or “China”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“‘RMB”), unless otherwise stated. These
financial statements were approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 21 March 2017.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") and
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.



B 7% R 3R MY &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 EESHEREE®

21

2.2

fm LB (1)

AT B REENOI B RE
FREMAE THERSH AN - ENFEE
EEGERAASENSBRBIETT
S H FIE - BT A BRSNS E H BT sk
MBS - 0P MRE M RRNEAR
RAfEFT SIS o

B BENRENED

(a) AEBORANIFTACER R
]
THFE RESTRERR T
—ANE—A— BRG HREE R
R

BEg e
E15%(183])

BEgstEd
ERACCHD)

CER

nx  BERRE

B
F19% (B3T)
BBgER
E28% ({53T)
BEGER
3457 (1E3T)
B g
%335 (&3])
BEM KRS ER
E55% (183])

BAM KRS LR
E75(1&3])
BAMBRE LR
105 (1537)

EE=7

BENARE

PHMEERS

BVAE

BRI TR
FRBAE

SRTA:BE

RAMBRER

HE-_T—R"F+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Changes in accounting policy and

disclosures

(@) New and amended standards
adopted by the Group
The following new and amended
standards are mandatory for the first time
for the financial year beginning 1 January

2016:

HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative
(Amendment)

HKAS 16 Property, plant and
(Amendment) equipment

HKAS 19 Employee benefits
(Amendment)

HKAS 28 Investment in associates
(Amendment)

HKAS 34 Interim financial reporting
(Amendment)

HKAS 38 Intangible assets
(Amendment)

HKFRS 5 Non-current assets held
(Amendment) for sale and discontinued

operations

HKFRS7 Financial instruments:
(Amendment) Disclosures

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial
(Amendment) statements
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BE-T—AF+-A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016
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(b)
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152 XEERERERAR  Tenwow International Holdings Limited

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)
New and amended standards
adopted by the Group (Continued)
Amendments and interpretations as
mentioned above have no material effect
on the Group’s operating results, financial
position or comprehensive income.

(@

(b)

Standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards
effective in 2016 but not relevant to

the Group

HKAS 27
(Amendment)
HKAS 41
(Amendment)
HKFRS 11
(Amendment)
HKFRS 12
(Amendment)
HKFRS 14

Equity method in separate
financial statements
Agriculture

Joint operations
Disclosure of interests in

other entities
Regulatory Deferred Accounts
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BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)

() MHRFEMVFERFRE (c) New standards and interpretations

not yet adopted

The following new standards,

amendments and interpretations which

have been issued but are not effective for

the financial year beginning on 1 January

2016 and have not been early adopted by

2 EESHHERE®®) 2

22 BFBRENHKBENSEH(E)

MR =F—R"FE—A—BHRKBH
MBEREEBMAIETED - &
HRZFBRETRRERARE
X MASKE IR ARB AR -

the Group:
R Blisk 2%
BB FEERRER
Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after
ARG ERE 7% (BE]) HemER —ET—+F—H—H
HKAS 7 (Amendment) Statement of cash flows 1 January 2017
EXRSTEMNE 125 (BFT)  FTSH —E—+H—H—H
HKAS 12 (Amendment) Income taxes 1 January 2017
BRI BEMEERE IR SHMIA —Z-N\F—-H—H
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018
BN HRELERIE 1558 B & OWE —ET-N\F—H—H
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
BARMBHRELEDNFE 1658 GizkS) —T-NEFE—H—H
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
BEBGENE 05 (1BF]) HFeMBmEk rHEE
HKAS 10 (Amendment) Consolidated financial statements To be determined
BEAGTERE 285 (1B5]) REEARMNKE T

HKAS 28 (Amendment)

Investment in associates

To be determined

AEBIERHEZEER - BT RREEA
SEMBRENTE - REEZFHI - K
RERMBHREELFE 155 B AIFRHA T
SHARENYBRERELTEATE
AR - AEET MR R TERT AR A AR
BHZAIY T ERFEM -

The Group is in the process of assessing the
impact of these standards, amendments and
interpretations on the financial statements of
the Group. The adoption of HKFRS 15 is currently
not expected to have a material impact on the
financial statements of the Group other than
disclosure changes. And these standards,
amendments and interpretations are not
expected to apply until the respective effective
dates.
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E-RET_A=T—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016
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7] o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Consolidation
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

(@

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 cConsolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations (Continued)
The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of
liguidation are measured at either fair
value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their
acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to
fair value at the acquisition date; any gains
or losses arising from such re-
measurement are recognised in profit or
loss.
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BE-T—AF+-A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 cConsolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations (Continued)
Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of
the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39
either in profit or loss or as a change to
other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the
total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the income
Statement.
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HE-_ZT—XRF+-_A=1+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 cConsolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combinations (Continued)
Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset.
When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting
policies.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of
control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions —
that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 cConsolidation (Continued)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries
When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income (“OCI") in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in OCI are
reclassified to profit or 10ss.

2.3.1 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.



B %% o MY A
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_ZT—XRF+-_A=1+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

2 EESHEEBE®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 AT 2.4 Associates
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An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the
investor’s share of the profit or loss of the
investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group’s investments in associates include
goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an
associate, any difference between the cost of
the associate and the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or
loss is recognised in the income statement, and
its share of post-acquisition movements in OCI
is recognised in OCI with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group's share of losses in
an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Associates (Continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this is
the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to “share of profit of associates” in the
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group
and its associate are recognised in the Group's
financial statements only to the extent of
unrelated investor’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in
associates are recognised in the income
statement.
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2 EESHEEBE®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
25 EERH 2.5 Joint arrangements
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The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint
arrangements. Under HKFRS 11, investments in
joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual rights and obligations of each
investor. The Group has assessed the nature of
its joint arrangements and determined them to
be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting,
interests in joint ventures are initially recognised
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or
losses and movements in OCIl. When the
Group's share of losses in a joint venture equals
or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures
(which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint ventures), the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's interest in the joint
ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of the joint ventures have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

27

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive Directors that
makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group's entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Group’s
presentation currency. Other than the
Company and subsidiaries located outside
Mainland China, whose functional
currency is Hong Kong Dollar, all other
subsidiaries’ functional currency is RMB.



B 7% R 3R MY &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 EEETBERBE®

2.7 SNEREE)

(b)

R 5 R s

HINERZ SIS ANIAR EE AR
BEEFERINEER - R TIRTHE
mPATREMNAESREERNF
REEHI  BEMEINEZF P
EERE H 185 A R A F R ER K
INETHEEEEENBBINEME
AREH BRERSRER -

HBERMAE RN FEYMERD
B BaEsA 2R SR AR &
BUABKF ST 53R - FTA H At
EREmARA 2HmRaERARE
it (B5H), AN — F 88 5%,

HE-_T—R"F+-A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement,
except when deferred in equity as
qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying
net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that
relate to borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the
consolidated statements of
comprehensive income within “finance
income or cost”. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within “other
(losses)/gains — net”.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

() assets and liabilities for each
balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each
statement of comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rates on the
dates the transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation

differences are recognised in OCI.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation
differences arising are recognised in OCI.
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2 EESHEEBE®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Construction-in-progress (the “CIP”) represents
buildings, plant and machinery under
construction or pending installation and is
stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Cost includes the costs of
construction and acquisition and capitalised
borrowing costs. No depreciation is made on
CIP until such time as the relevant assets are
completed and ready for intended use. When
the assets concerned are available for use, the
costs are transferred to property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with
the policy as stated below.

Property, plant and equipment include buildings,
machinery and equipment, vehicles and other
equipments. All property, plant and equipment
are stated at historical cost less depreciation
and impairment (if any). Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset'’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they
are incurred.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

29

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to
their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

— Buildings 16-30 years
— Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
— Vehicles 3-10 years
— Other equipments 2-5years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.11).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised within “other
(losses)/gains — net” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Land use rights

All land in Mainland China is state-owned or
collectively-owned and no individual land
ownership right exists. The Group acquired the
rights to use certain land. The premiums paid
for such right are treated as prepayment for
operating lease and recorded as land use rights,
which are amortised over the lease periods of
20 to 50 years using the straight-line method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Intangible assets

(a)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of
subsidiaries, represents the excess of the
consideration transferred over the Group'’s
interest in net fair value of the net
identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree and
the fair value of the non-controlling
interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (“CGUS"), or groups
of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the
goodwill is allocated represents the lowest
level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is
monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are
undertaken annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of goodwill is compared to
the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value
less costs to sell. Any impairment is
recognised immediately as an expense
and is not subsequently reversed.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Intangible assets (Continued)

(b)

()

(d)

Computer software

Costs associated with maintaining
computer software programmes are
recognised as an expense as incurred.
Acquired computer software licences are
capitalised on the basis of costs incurred
to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. The cost are amortised over
their estimated useful lives of 10 years.

Trademark

Separately acquired trademark is shown
at historical cost. Trademark has finite
useful lives and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost of trademark over
their estimated useful lives of 5-10 years.

Mining licenses

Mining licenses acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. Mining licenses
have a finite useful life and are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of
mining rights over their estimated useful
lives.
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2 EESHEEBE®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

211 ESREERE 2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets
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Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for
example goodwill, are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of an impairment
at each reporting date.

2.12 Financial assets

(@) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in
the following categories: at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to maturity investments
and available for sale. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.
Financial assets held by the Group are
loans and receivables.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Classification (Continued)

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the balance sheet date.
These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables
comprise “trade and other receivables”,
“cash and cash equivalents” and
“restricted cash” in the balance sheet.

Recognition and measurement
Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Loans
and receivables are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet
date whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired.



B 7% R 3R MY &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 EEETBERBE®

212 SREE (8)
(b) WERMFEE)

BERENEREE TH—EEBHA
EREEAMBRE - BOHER
MEBHAE - AR ESEITEAD
MIEER  ARARBERBE NG
FHRRR SR E B A E AR
L BN E MR TR K
RBARREE o

HRERRERKIANS - BESHE
NEEEERNERREREERE
BRAM TR G RERASRET
BREAREENRREEERE)H
RENEZHENE ZEENKEE
BT LAHDR - MEBRSBEINES
Was kAR - MEFIZFBHN X
At RTEEMREBENTREX
REEHEBENREERMNE - &
EFREAT - NEE AT AER
AEEMENAREBEREEFE
HE -

HE-_ZT—XRF+-_A=1+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(b)

Recognition and measurement
(Continued)

Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation, and
where observable data indicate that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset's original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument’s fair value using
an observable market price.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(b) Recognition and measurement

(Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs
and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling
EXPENSES.

2.14 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
provided in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is
expected within one year, they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in
hand, deposits held at call with banks, and other
short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

2.16 Restricted cash
Restricted cash represents restricted term
deposit and amounts held by banks, which are
not available for the Group’s use, as securities
for issuance of letters of credit, letter of
guarantee, bank acceptance notes and bank
borrowings.

2.17 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.18 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less. If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

2.20 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.
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2 EZSTBEBEE®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

221 ERIEE RS 2.21 Current and deferred income tax
NEBE R BIE X B iR E BAAEE R - The tax expense for the period comprises
MIBEGS 2 ERAKRTER  EEEE current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
ST IE B AR IER AN - ITEZB the consolidated statement of comprehensive
T - ZBENEEEER TR - income, except to the extent that it relates to

items recognised directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is recognised in equity.

(@) EHFREH (@) Current income tax
EHMSHY HREEEARKE The current income tax charge is
K A FE R T UL A B P R B K R A calculated on the basis of the tax laws
HHEMMEE LB RMAEE enacted or substantively enacted at the
EHIETE - BIEEFE BT EHRB R balance sheet date in the countries where
BRI - AR IE A B A A I P AR BR the group companies operate and
WiEMR - WEBERA R TARETEH generate taxable income. Management
JB TR AR S M RO TR SRR B B o periodically evaluates positions taken in

tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.21 Current and deferred income tax

(Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

0]

(ii)

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised,
using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised
or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the
temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, except
where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2 EEETBERBE®

221 EHIRIEZLEFEH (8)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.21 Current and deferred income tax

(Continued)

()

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to
settle the balances on a net basis.

2.22 Employee benefits

(@

Pension obligations

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong
employees to join the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
"MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution
scheme managed by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the
Group and its Hong Kong employees make
monthly contributions to the scheme at 5%
of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation, subject to a cap of HK$1,500
per person per month and any excess
contributions are voluntary.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group entities in Mainland China
participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit plans organised by
relevant government authorities for its
employees in Mainland China and
contribute to these plans based on certain
percentage of the salaries of the
employees on a monthly basis, up to a
maximum fixed monetary amount, as
stipulated by the relevant government
authorities. The government authorities
undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations payable to all existing
and future retired employees under these
plans.

The Group has no further obligation for
post-retirement benefits beyond the
contributions made.

Housing benefits

Employees of the Group entities in
Mainland China are entitled to participate
in government-sponsored housing funds.
The Group contributes to these funds
based on certain percentages of the
salaries of the employees on a monthly
basis, up to a maximum fixed monetary
amount, as stipulated by the relevant
government authorities. The Group's
liability in respect of these funds is limited
to the contribution payable in each period.
Contributions to the funds are expensed
as incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.23 Share-based payments

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-
settled, share-based compensation plans,
under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for
equity instruments (options) of the Group.
The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted:

o including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity's
share price);

o excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period);
and

o including the impact of any non-
vesting conditions (for example, the
requirement for employees to save).

Non-market performance and service
conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which
is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.23 Share-based payments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

In addition, in some circumstances
employees may provide services in
advance of the grant date and therefore
the grant date fair value is estimated for
the purposes of recognising the expense
during the period between service
commencement period and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to vest based
on the non-marketing performance and
service conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the income statement,
with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

When the options are exercised, the
Company issues new shares. The
proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited
to share capital (and share premium).

Share-based payment transactions
among group entities

The grant by the Company of options over
its equity instruments to the employees of
subsidiary undertakings in the Group is
treated as a capital contribution. The fair
value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting
period as an increase to investment in
subsidiary undertakings, with a
corresponding credit to equity in the
parent entity accounts.
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2 EESHEEBE®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.24 &1E 2.24 Provisions
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Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to
passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

2.25 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivables for the
sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates
and discounts and after eliminating sales within
the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.25 Revenue recoghnition (Continued)
The Group recognises revenue when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it
is probable that future economic benefits will
A REBeREBEEFETEERF flow to the entity and when specific criteria
Al R SEERESELZENESER G have been met for each of the Group's activities
=t o as described below. The Group bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

2 EEETBERBE® 2

2.25 W ATERR (&
B AL EEREA N SEHIETE + RREER
=AAJRERATR  MALEETEEHH
FE Tl EERE  AEEFESERK

() HEERWBRARE DR EH (i)
BREEFHER BF¥EEEE
BREFPNEEREEFPEEME
mE R RS ERBAERER
IR A @R B B ER
EEFPEMERNAREITAEL

Revenue from the sales of goods is
recognised when the risks and rewards of
the goods have been transferred to the
customer, which is usually at the date
when a group entity has delivered
products to the customer and the
customer has accepted the products, the
collectability of the related receivables is
reasonably assumed and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products.

(il MEHEHBARZEHENEBARNZRE (i) Rental income from properties is
LRRTER o recognised on a straight-line basis over

the periods of the respective leases.
(i) F B YA LA B F 2R Sk 352 B RS 451 (i) Interest income is recognised on a time-

EERERR o fid FE WK IR 3R RI(E
AEEeRREERERTKRES
B AT R REERERTAMN
REBRA RS - WHER
BRAGRIERMBIRA - BREER
B B AR R B BRI R FERR o

(iv) DB A A Uk R S B8 ) 4 1 i 7 B
TR o

KIEEFEIZER AR AR * Tenwow International Holdings Limited

(iv)

proportion basis using the effective
interest method. When a receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount to its recoverable amount, being
the estimated future cash flow discounted
at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the
discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loans is recognised
using the original effective interest rate.

Dividend income is recognised when the
right to receive payment is established.
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2 EESHEEBE®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.26 BUN#BY 2.26 Government grants
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Grants from the government are recognised at
their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are
deferred and recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the
period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant
and equipment are included in non-current
liabilities as deferred government grants and are
credited to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.27 Operating Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

2.28 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors where appropriate.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
currency risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(@) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the
PRC with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in RMB.
However, the Group has certain
trade receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trade payables and
borrowings denominated in HK$ and
EUR, which is exposed to foreign
currency translation risk. Details of
the Group's trade and other
receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other
payables and borrowings are
disclosed in Notes 13, 14, 19 and 20
respectively.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@ Market risk (Continued)

0]

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
As at 31 December 2016, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 5%
against EUR with all other variables
held constant, the net profit for the
year ended 31 December 2016
would have been approximately
RMB4,051,000 higher/lower (2015:
RMB3,024,000 higher/lower), mainly
as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of EUR
denominated borrowings and cash
and bank balances. And as at 31
December 2016, the exposure of
HK$ exchange risk, after netting off
the assets and liabilities subject to
foreign exchange risk, is not
significant.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk

Except for cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash, the
Group has no other significant
interest-bearing assets. The Group's
income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.
Management does not anticipate
significant impact on interest-
bearing assets resulted from the
changes in interest rates because
the interest rates of cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash are
not expected to change significantly.

185
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk (Continued)

The Group's interest-rate risk mainly
arises from borrowings. Borrowings
obtained at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest-rate
risk. Borrowings obtained at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value
interest-rate risk. The Group does
not hedge its cash flow and fair
value interest rate risk. The interest
rates and terms of repayments of
borrowings are disclosed in Note 20.

At 31 December 2016, if interest
rates on bank borrowings had been
10% higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, the net
profit for the year would have been
approximately RMB7,186,000 lower/
higher respectively (31 December
2015: RMB7,419,000), as a result of
higher/lower interest expenses on
floating rate borrowings.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
Credit risk arises from cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, trade and
other receivables, as well as credit
exposures to customers, including
outstanding receivables and committed
transactions. Certain Group's sales are
settled in cash or by its customers on
delivery of goods. Credit sales are made
only to selected customers with good
credit history. The Group has policies in
place to ensure that trade receivables are
followed up on a timely basis.

As at 31 December 2016, trade
receivables of RMB587,781,000 were due
from Nanpu Food (Group) Co., Ltd.
(“Nanpu”), a joint venture of the Group (31
December 2015: RMB777,714,000). Nanpu
has a history of making profits and the
directors of the Group assessed there is
no credit risk in relation to the trade
receivables from Nanpu.

Other than the receivables from Nanpu,
the Group has no significant concentration
risk. The carrying amounts of cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade
and other receivables included in the
consolidated financial statements
represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to its financial
assets.

At 31 December 2016, all cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash were
placed in highly reputable and sizable
banks and financial institutions without
significant credit risk.
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3

FINANCI
(Continued)

AL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Cash flow is managed at group level by
head office finance department ("Group
Finance”). Group Finance monitors the
Group’s liquidity requirements to ensure
that it has sufficient cash to meet
operational needs at all times and does
not breach borrowing limits or covenants
on any of its borrowing facilities. Group
Finance usually takes into consideration
the Group’s debt financing plans,
covenant compliance and compliance
with internal balance sheet ratio targets.

Group Finance mainly invests surplus cash
in time deposits, with appropriate
maturities.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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3 HBERBRERE®) 3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
3.1 M¥EBEE (%) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) REMERER(E) (c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

— 57 @it
Within

1year 1-2years 2-5years Total
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETRT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R-ZE-—HF As at 31 December 2015
+=-A=+—H
fam Borrowings 1,491,612 177,612 181,273 1,850,497
RHEFFIE Interest payments on
borrowings 50,104 12,893 8,585 71,582
B NEMENIE Trade and other payables 1,397,599 - - 1,397,599
2,939,315 190,505 189,858 3,319,678
R-ZB—XRE As at 31 December 2016
+=A=t+—H
e Borrowings 2,024,650 230,856 49,524 2,305,030
S AHEFRF B Interest payments on
borrowings 61,115 7,648 520 69,283
B REMERNZIE  Trade and other payables 1,746,142 - - 1,746,142

3,831,907 238,504 50,044 4,120,455
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns
for equity holders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to equity holder, return capital to equity holders
or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the
Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total bank borrowings (including “current and
non-current borrowings” as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet) less cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash. Total capital is
calculated as "equity” as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet plus net debt.
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3 EBBERERE 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
3.2 BEAREAKREE (&) 3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)
R+=HA=+—8H
As at 31 December

—B—XfF —E-RfF

2016 2015

AR%T T ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

SRITIE KA E (I 3E20) Total borrowings (Note 20) 2,305,030 1,850,497

B RERIBSEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents

(Bi&E14G)) (Note 14(a)) (969,158) (448,653)
BRI & (H5E140) Restricted cash (Note 14(b)) (702,362) (364,411)

BB Net debt 633,510 1,037,433

EmiATa Total equity 3,250,822 2,899,568

RN Total capital 3,884,332 3,937,001

BfELE Gearing ratio 16% 26%
R-E—ARF+_A=+—"HRNFA®RE The decrease in net gearing ratio as at 31
HETHREHARBEBEEREEEURT December 2016 is mainly attributable to the
PR I ZR 38 0 o increase of cash and cash equivalent and

restricted cash.

3.3 AREEME 3.3 Fair value estimation
HARBEERERE  WAEESMEE The carrying amount of the Group’s financial
(BB S RHMEWKSZE  HEe KBS assets, including trade and other receivables,
ZEY TREIBL)EeHABE(EE cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash,
B 5 & H M FE T IE U RO B E ) B ER financial liabilities including trade and other
HEDNBXREEQAAEERE - REEN payables and current borrowings, are assumed
H—ERNE S RmEEN TG EE to approximate their fair values due to their
FAERASH N BEHNESIEILUE short-term maturities. The carrying values less

any estimated credit adjustments for financial
assets with a maturity of less than one year are
a reasonable approximation of their fair values.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experiences and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

(i) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment, in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 2.10. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use
of estimates (Note 8).

(ii) Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment
The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives and related depreciation
charges for its property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a
result of technical innovations and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(iit)

(iv)

Estimated write-downs of inventories
The Group writes down inventories to net
realisable value based on an assessment of the
realisability of inventories. Write-downs on
inventories are recorded where events or
changes in circumstances that the balances
may not be realised. The identification of write-
downs requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such difference will
impact carrying values of inventories and write-
downs of inventories in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

Impairment of trade and other
receivables

The Group’'s management estimates the
provision of impairment of trade and other
receivables by assessing their recoverability.
Provisions are applied to trade and other
receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible and require the use of
estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such difference will
impact carrying value of trade and other
receivables and impairment charge in the period
in which such estimate has been changed.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
(v) Current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC
and in Hong Kong. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are some transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
determined using tax rates that are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax
assets are realised or the deferred income tax
liabilities are settled. The expected applicable
tax rate is determined based on the enacted tax
laws and regulations and the actual situation of
the Group. The management of the Group will
revise the expectation where the intending tax
rate is different from the original expectation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been
identified as the executive Directors. The executive
Directors review the Group's internal reports in order
to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments
based on the internal reports provided for review by
the executive Directors. The executive Directors
consider the performance of the Group from a
product perspective. The executive Directors assess
the performance of the operating segments based on
a measure of gross profit for the year which is
consistent with that in the consolidated financial
Statements.

The Group's operations are mainly organised under
the following business segments: own brand products
and third party brand products, and each has the
segments of non-alcoholic beverages, alcoholic
beverages, food and snacks, and others.

The amounts provided to executive Directors with
respect to total assets, total liabilities and capital
expenditure are measured in a manner consistent
with that of consolidated financial statements. The
executive Directors review the total assets, total
liabilities and capital expenditure at Group level.
Therefore no segment information of total assets,
total liabilities and capital expenditure information
was presented.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting, the Group has determined that business
segments be presented as the primary and only
reporting format.
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5 SEER@E 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) &x# (@) Turnover
REBHUWA (BNEEE) T ¢ The Group's revenue which represents turnover
is as follows:

BE+t=-A=+—-HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E—XREF —E—RF
2016 2015
AR%T T ARET T
RMB'000 RMB’000
— BERBER — Own Brand Products

B ER Non-alcoholic beverages 712,590 728,205
B RE Alcoholic beverages 447,517 370,432
BEmEER Food and snacks 1,079,812 933,160
HAth Others 42,227 41,126
2,282,146 2,072,923

—B=LTREER — Third Party Brand Products
BB 5 ERE Non-alcoholic beverages 39,723 47,909
B EE Alcoholic beverages 2,225,717 1,962,807
BEmEZER Food and snacks 592,803 678,357
HAtb Others 78,260 146,026
2,936,503 2,835,099
“et Total 5,218,649 4,908,022
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DEBE R () 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) DEBEHR (b) Segment information
HEZ—R"FT+-_A=+—HLHFE The segment information for the year ended 31
D BERAT : December 2016 is as follows:

BERRER EZHRBER
Own Brand Products Third Party Brand Products

el FERRR

Non- EEEE RARER Non- EREH RRKSR
alcoholic ~ Alcoholic  Food and Hify Mt alcoholic  Alcoholic  Food and Hit Nt #st
beverages beverages  snacks  Others Sub-total beverages beverages  smacks  Others Sub-total Total
ARBTR ARMTR ARMTRE ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000

DEEE Segment sales 712,590 447,517 1,079,812 42,227 2,282,146 39,723 2,225,717 592,803 78,260 2,936,503 5,218,649

AHHERK Segment cost of sales (441,669)  (354,248)  (802,696) (29,403) (1,628,016) (35,912) (1,944,507)  (521,756) (70,220) (2,572,395) (4,200,411)

AEEF Segment gross profit 270,921 93,269 277,116 12,824 654,130 381 281,210 71,047 8,040 364,108 1,018,238

HE_Z—RAFEt+-_A=1+—HItFE The segment information for the year ended 31
Vo EERIAT December 2015 is as follows:

BAREER BE=HRIEER
Own Brand Products Third Party Brand Products
IR JEB AR
Non-  ERHH ARRRER Non- ERHE RERER

alcoholic  Alcoholic ~ Food and ot \gt alcoholic  Alcoholic  Food and Htt Nt @it
beverages beverages  snacks Others  Sub-total beverages beverages snacks Others  Sub-total Total
ARETE ARETT ARBTT ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETE ARETT AR%TT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

DEHE Segment sales 728,205 370,432 933,160 4,126 2,072,923 47,909 1,962,807 678,357 146,026 2,835099 4,908,022
DEHEMK Segment cost of sales (506,401)  (266,597)  (661,370) (29,081)  (1,463,449) (82,501) (1,721,959  (627,308)  (137,303) (2,529,071) (3,992,520)
AHER Segment gross profit 221,804 103,835 271,790 12,045 609,474 5,408 240,848 51,049 8723 306,028 915,502
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5 oHER@E 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) HIBER(E) (b) Segment information (Continued)
KBS AR S R AR M A SR ¢ Operating segments results are reconciled to

profit before income tax as follows:

BE+t=-A=+—-HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-AF —T-hF

2016 2015

AR¥T R ARET T

RMB'000 RMB’000

DEER Segment gross profit 1,018,238 915,502
U= | DN Distribution costs (439,154) (251,990)
TBRAX Administrative expenses (185,363) (172,148)

E A Other income 19,069 52,141

Htth (&), Wes — F58 Other (losses)/gains — net (37,459) 842

KBTI Operating profit 375,331 544,347

EUE LN Finance income 7,967 15,090
B Finance expenses (94,263) (99,039)
MBS — B8 Finance expenses — net (86,296) (83,949)

FE(LESEE R A= Share of profit of associates (22) 3

B —RE &R mF Share of profit of a joint venture 9,023 32,083

BANER] Profit before income tax 298,036 492,484
REBEE N REBD A EH B AT Most of the Group companies are domiciled in
BRHEHIERBEEHIMAFE - the PRC and majority of the non-current assets

are located in the PRC.

RBEE_ZE—AR"F+_A=1+—HBLF During the year ended 31 December 2016,

£ REAKEESEQFFEBEHNRAMLAER revenue derived from Nanpu, a joint venture of

SEKAN213% (BE_E—AF+= the Group, accounted for 21.3% (for the year

B=1+—HIFE : 29.4%) ° ended 31 December 2015: 29.4%) of the Group’s
revenue.
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M - BMERRE 6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HeER AR
Machinery Hittifs  HBIE
EF and BH Other Construction

Buildings equipment  Vehicles equipments in progress
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

BE-E-1F Year ended 31 December

+ZA=1+-HILEE 2015
“E-RE-R-HB  1lanuary2015 386,381 169,743 14,690 25,256 149,841 745911
0 Additions 20,454 22,09 5,115 18,345 259,949 325,959
e Transfer 23456 206923 = 9,114 (279,493) =
HE Disposals - (409) (410) 9) - (828)
WE (FiEE31) Depreciation (Note 31) (22,208) (22,015) 4,313) (13,950) - (62,486)
—T—FfF 31 December 2015

+-A=+-H 408,083 416,338 15,082 38,756 130297 1,008,556
R-2-1% At 31December 2015

t=A=t-H
A Cost 538,266 509,395 43472 89,293 130,297 1,310,723
ZErE Accumulated depreciation (130,183) (93,057) (28,390) (50,537) - (302,167)
ERFE Net book amount 408,083 416,338 15,082 38756 130297 1,008,556
BE-Z-—RE Year ended 31 December

+ZA=1+-HILFE 2016
“E-xE-A—H 1lanuary2016 408,083 416,338 15,082 38,756 130,297 1,008,556
WE—ZHELR Acquisition of a subsidiary

(F15E33) (Note 33) 2,545 - - - - 2,545
0 Additions 1,559 7,584 1,919 15,952 91,645 118,659
et Transfer 53,586 15,724 - 10,619 (79,929) -
HENBAR Disposals of subsidiaries - - (977) (274) - (1,251)
HeE Disposals - (990) (274) (98) - (1,362)
& (Ms31) Depreciation (Note 31) (24517)  (47,549) (3729)  (14,500) - (90,301)
“ERF 31 December 2016

+-A=1+-8B 441,256 391,107 12,021 50,449 142,013 1,036,846
R-IE-—RE At 31 December 2016

+ZA=1+-H
A Cost 595,956 529,805 41,025 114,355 142,013 1,423,154
2EHE Accumulated depreciation (154,700)  (138,698) (29,004) (63,906) - (386,308)
BEFE Net book amount 441,256 391,107 12,021 50,449 142,013 1,036,846
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6 Y% BRERZE® 6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
(@) MERIXERGEEZEKRERAZTE 5 (@) Depreciation expense has been charged to the
BT consolidated statement of comprehensive

income as follows:

BEt+t-HA=1T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—B-AEF e
2016 2015
ARET T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
SHE RN Cost of sales 66,508 40,814
ITHFAX Administrative expenses 18,803 21,424
HAb YA Other income 4,654 =
SoR = ID N Distribution costs 336 248
90,301 62,486
) HESHLEERAEEMIEAREE MG (K () The net book amount of buildings and
51 20) IR mEVAE F RS N R A IR EE machinery and equipments pledged as collateral
BEmT : of the Group’s borrowings (Note 20) as of

respective balance sheet dates were as follows:

R+=HA=+—H

As at 31 December
—R-AF —E-hfF
2016 2015
AR¥TR ARETIT
RMB'000 RMB'000
BF Buildings 407,414 393,674
W22 K 3R Machinery and equipments 171,147 102,223
578,561 495,897
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BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

7 LAND USE RIGHTS
Land use rights represent the net book amount of
prepaid operating lease payments. All the land use
rights of the Group are located in the PRC and are
held on leases from 20 to 50 years.

Movements in land use rights are as follows:

BE+t=-A=1t-HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-AF —T-hF

2016 2015

AR¥T T ARETIT

RMB'000 RMB’000

ER9BRE A Opening net book amount 141,418 93,290
Wi —REI B A R) (FizE33) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 33) 2,324 =
40 Additions - 50,368
RS (MIEE31) Amortisation charge (Note 31) (3,513) (2,240)
HASRBR T B Closing net book amount 140,229 141,418

BHBEENERA 2 ERERA [HERA]
THH

Amortisation expense has been charged to “cost of
sales” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

7 IiEREE)
BES#ERIEAEAREE MBS (M 20) K
¥R 0 o (3 FREBR S E M T

LAND USE RIGHTS (Continued)

The net book amount of land use rights pledged as
collateral of the Group’s borrowings (Note 20) as of
respective balance sheet dates was as follows:

Rt=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—EB-XF —T-hF

2016 2015
ARBFR ARETT

o P A A Land use rights

RMB'000 RMB'000

40,527 23,847

RZEBE—ARZE—RF+ZA=+—H0" ' &K
SEMEEFE T L AEE - AETE
FREMREFESD B A AR 1,110,000 7T %A
R%991,0007C - AEBE e BFEZSZ T
FRREAREETEMT MARZETHERE
EERDAEHEH S MZEADIEARAE
ERMIE361HHE

202 XEEEERARAT o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

As at 31 December 2015 and 2016, the Group is still in
the process of renewing certificates for certain land
use rights with net book value amounting to
RMB1,110,000 and RMB991,000 respectively. The
Group might incur certain obligations in connection
with such application of land use right certificates,
while since the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability, this obligation has
been disclosed as contingent liabilities in Note 36.
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BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

BEEE 8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

RwE
[ 5 ;] Mining i st

Goodwill  Trademark Licenses Software Total

AR®TRE  AR®TRE AR®TR ARBTR ARWTR
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000

BZ-E-1 Year ended 31 December 2015

TZA=t-HLEE
—Z-1F-f-A 1 January 2015 25,034 2,306 33,13 634 61,110
1 Additions - - - 1,148 1,148
BER (rE31) Amortisation charge (Note31) - (333) (1,103) 65) (1,501)
“Z-RE+-A=1+—H  31December 2015 25,034 1973 32033 1717 60,757

R-Z-7E+-A=+—H At31December 2015

A Cost 25,034 3,241 33,320 2,021 63,616
KETEH Accumulated amortisation = (1,268) (1,287) (304) (2.859)
EHFE Net book amount 25,034 1,973 32,033 1,717 60,757
HZ-2-AE Year ended 31 December 2016
T-AZ+-ALEE

“Z-75-f-H 1 January 2016 25,034 1973 32,033 1,717 60,757
WEE—Z B AR (Ff3E33)  Acquisition of a subsiciary (Note 33) 6,899 - 24,280 - 31,179
B0 Additions - - - 814 814
BRI (M7E31) Amortisation charge (Note 31) - (429) (1,508) (237) (2,174)
“Z—F+-A=1+—H  31December2016 31,933 1,544 54,805 2,294 90,576

R=B-AE+-A=1—-H8 At31December 2016

AR Cost 31,933 3.241 57,600 2,835 95,609
ZEHE Accumulated amortisation - (1,697) (2,795) (541) (5,033)
EaFE Net book amount 31,933 1,544 54,805 2,294 90,576
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HE-_T—"E+-_A=t—HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

8 ®\EEEW®) 8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
BHEAYERNGEEZEKERA [HEKAN] & Amortisation expense has been charged to “cost of
[FTE RS | TH TS 8H - sales” and “administrative expenses” in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

EEDHREEECERcELET((REEHE The goodwill is monitored by the management at cash

Jo ) BEEITERL - M TARRKRLEHHES generating units (“CGU") level. The following is a

BLEBEE - summary of goodwill allocation for each operating
segment:

BE+t-A=t+—-HLFE
Year ended 31 December
—B-XRE C—T—RF

2016 2015

AR®TR ARBTRT
RMB’000 RMB’000

RHZSWRARAG([€PR]) Changxinxian Jinshaguan Co., Ltd.

(“Jinshaquan”) 17,121 17,121
KRB E/KAR AR ([H#4]) Changxin Meilin Drinks Co., Ltd. (“Meilin”) 6,899 -
EHIEARRRER AR Shanghai Chuanxiang Flavouring and Food
(M38.1) Co., Ltd. (“Chuanxiang”) 4,500 4,500
LEERBRERAF Shanghai Royal Winery Co., Ltd.
(EXREE]) (“Royal Winery") 3,413 3,413
31,933 25,034
BETRENR BRI EZEERAR S For the purposes of impairment test, goodwill has
EXBE TR/ EE - IREEHE T KE been allocated to the smallest individual of CGU
SRDREABEASEFLIET - AHTERE identified. The recoverable amount of a CGU is
AEEUKEENRSRETER @ RIB2ER determined based on value-in-use calculations. The
EmEER BERKR—FEHA(TRH]) - % calculation uses cash flow projections based on
BHIINE S RIRU T EFEERGHE - R X financial budget made by the Directors, with reference
RBAZESELE THRL (BN ERTY to the prevailing market conditions, covering certain
BREK - future period (the “Period”). Cash flows beyond the

Period are extrapolated using the estimated growth
rates stated below. The growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the business in
which the CGU operates.
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BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
The key assumptions used for value-in-use
calculations in 2016 are as follows:

HEERE

£HI%

BB

BEMMENRL R
ERE

Sales growth rate

Gross profit margin

Pre-tax discount rate

Growth rate to extrapolate
cash flows beyond the
budget period

EREEEBNANGE R_2FT—-—R"E+=A

=t+—RAYEFHERE -

REBEQATNRE

9

L5k VR JIHE

Meilin  Jinshaquan Chuanxiang
10% 18% 5% 5%
25% 25% 25% 25%
14% 14% 12% 12%
0% 0% 3% 3%

Based on management’s assessment, there was no
impairment of goodwill as at 31 December 2016.

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

BE+t-A=+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—EB—xF —T—AF

2016 2015

AR¥ T ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

w—HA—H At 1 January 1,036 27,704
N — KB & A A Addition of an associate 1,750 =
HE—KEE QT Disposal of an associate - (26,671)
FEfE (E518), S5 F Share of (losses)/profits (22) 3
R+—-—A=+—8H At 31 December 2,764 1,036
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HE-_T—"E+-_A=t—HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

9 REEATNRE@)

RZZE—RE+-A=1+—H XREEHIE

MR AR MIREREDAARDT

ERER
Name of entity

LEBRENRRERATA( LEBEND)
Shanghai Daoxiangcun Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Daoxiangcun”)
RESAREERAF([EREE])
Changxin Jiamu Tea Co., Ltd.
("Jiamu Tea")

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
The particulars of the associates of the Group as at 31
December 2016, all of which are unlisted and equity
method is used to account for, are set out as follows:

EXEY AMRLEAR
Place of business/country

FRERERERE %
% of ownership interest
—E—RF —ET—EF
2016 2015

of incorporation

FE S
Shanghai, PRC

39% 39%
P B =
Changxin, PRC

35% =

BB A AR RS ERARE -

BEATREMBER

EEEENREAREREDEARNE R

BERT

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the
Group's interest in the associates.

Summarised financial information for
associates

Set out below are the summarised financial
information for Shanghai Daoxiangcun and Jiamu Tea
which are accounted for using the equity method.

206 FEEEERARAT e Tenwow International Holdings Limited



B %% o MY A
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

9 REZQATNKRE @) 9 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
EEEBREE Summarised balance sheet

LEREN BA%KXE )
Shanghai Daoxiangcun Jiamu Tea Total
Z2-Rf —T-IF ZB-XFf _—T-1F ZB-XFf _—T-1f

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

ARMTR ARMTT ARMTR ARETT ARMTR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000

piokd) Current
BeRHREZEY Cash and cash equivalents 229 135 4,560 - 4,789 135
Hine&E (BH S Other current assets
(excluding cash) 3,086 3812 431 - 3,517 3812

RBEEAR Total current assets 3,315 3947 4,991 - 8,306 3947
HEtnEaE Other current liabilities

(REE ZEMERDR) (including trade payables) (1,063) (1,633) (789) - (1,852) (1,633)
FBaEEE Total current liabilities (1,063) (1,633) (789) = (1,852) (1,633)
ERBEE Non-current Assets 321 342 577 - 898 342
FEE Net assets 2,573 2,656 4,779 - 7,352 2,656

201643% » Annual Report2016 207



LU
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T—"E+-_A=t—HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

9 REELATNREH 9 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
HERBEREE Summarised statement of comprehensive
income

LERER BEAZKE a@st
Shanghai Daoxiangcun Jiamu Tea Total
“Z-xE —ZT-HF ZB-XE —T-1f CZB-RE _—ZT-hF

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARE®TR ARETRT
RMB'000  RMBOO0 ~ RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB'000

A Revenue M 1,857 688 = 1,429 1,857
MEREH Depreciation and amortisation - (1 (9) - (9) (1

BEEL(58),/ %A (Losses)/profits from

continuing operations (84) 8 (222) - (306) 8
SRS Income tax expense - (1 - - - Y
FElmER Total comprehensive income (84) 7 (222) = (306) 7
A EER MRS AT BRERNZYN The information above reflects the amounts presented
S FE(WIEARNREFATEEEE) - I i A< 5= [F R B in the financial statements of the associates (and not
AR e e ERELEE - the Group's share of those amounts) adjusted for

differences in accounting policies between the Group
and the associates.

10 R—XEELTNKRE 10 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

BE+-A=+-HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—B-XRE C—T1F

2016 2015
AR%T T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
wn—A—H At 1 January 434,084 400,757
FEAE 5 ) (P52 27) Share of profit (Note 27) 12,140 33,453

B A EE AR REITIHE Movement of elimination of

B AR B3R o ) unrealised profits for sales to Nanpu
from the Group (6,337) (126)
HES LN a3 R AE Disposal of partial share in

the joint venture (15,465) -
R+=—A=+—~” At 31 December 424,422 434,084
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10

—E-RE+ZA=1+—8 AEEHFLE
MEERARNKREREDEARLT

B EMRLER
Place of business/country

Name of entity

of incorporation

O * B
Nanpu* China

R-ZTB—XNENA $%L‘A/\E?¥
20,000,000 7T ¥4 & H & R 2% HIAR 1D #E s T
BHEEER(EE)BRAR - HERE uﬁzﬁn
AR 4,534,000 5 A E A (B518), Mz —
SFRE(MI5E24) »

RIFFANKEFTRARERMAA - EHNES
ERERBALRRE  H7RESEX R
BE_T-R"FT-_A=1—H HEHh3%E
FHARRREE(CE-—RF+_HA=1+—8:
BHREFPHILHARAEME) - TEARME
PRV BB S MR ERR AR =02 — A
EEVESEHE -

SEHA L AR F AR EAGE KA

* BT R A RH 9% EmIN - AEBETRD RIFAE DER
REFXERERAT - LHHEBZHERABRMKE
R R M A B A )% R KB 2 B #920% - 10% K
30% A&t °

BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE
(Continued)

The joint venture of the Group as at 31 December
2016, which is unlisted and equity method is used to
account for, are set out as follows:

FrE R %
% of ownership interest
—ZB—XF “E-RF
2016 2015

49% 51%
In June 2016, the Group disposed 2% share of interest
in Nanpu to Shanghai Tangjiu (Group) Co., Ltd. at
consideration of RMB20,000,000. Gain of
RMB4,534,000 from the disposal has been recorded in
other (losses)/gains — net (Note 24).

Under articles of association of Nanpu, the Board of
Nanpu is the highest authority and decision-making
body, which was composed of 7 directors, of which 3
directors were appointed by the Company as at 31
December 2016 (31 December 2015: 3 of 8 directors
were appointed by the Company). All strategic
financial and operation decision relating to the
activities of Nanpu require the approvals of two thirds
or more of the directors and the Group shared control
of Nanpu with other joint venture party.

There are no commitments and contingent liabilities
related to the Group’s interest in the joint venture.

* In addition to 49% of ownership interest of Nanpu, the Group
also has shares in the subsidiaries of Nanpu, including 20%
shares in Shanghai Tiancheng Enterprise Development
Limited, 10% shares in Shanghai Puxing Trading Limited and
30% shares in Chengdu Nanpu Food Limited.
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HE-_T—"E+-_A=t—HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

10 R—REELTNRE @) 10 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

(Continued)

SELNTINREERBER Summarised financial information for joint
venture

AREEREARNBEYFEERNT - Set out below are the summarised financial
information for Nanpu which are accounted for using
the equity method.

EEEBEREE Summarised balance sheet

R+=A=+—AH
As at 31 December
—B-XE C—T—RF

2016 2015
AR¥ TR ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ED Current
He NS EEY Cash and cash equivalents 26,465 35,359
HinghEE (BRIEES) Other current assets (excluding cash) 5,304,538 5,528,913
MEEEMAEE Total current assets 5,331,003 5,564,272
HBEaE Financial liabilities
(BB S A BRFIN) (excluding trade payables) (2,168,000) (2,149,880)
HihmEhaE Other current liabilities
(BIEE S EMNER) (including trade payables) (2,416,744) (2,716,560)
REBAEEE Total current liabilities (4,584,744) (4,866,440)
EREEE Non-current assets 60,475 82,284
BEE Net assets 806,734 780,116
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BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

10 R—REELTNRE @) 10 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE
(Continued)
GENERBE Summarised statement of comprehensive
income

BE+t-A=+—-HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—EB-XE C"T-1F

2016 2015

AR¥ TR AREBTT

RMB’'000 RMB’000

A Revenue 4,666,454 5,591,267
P& K g Depreciation and amortisation (31,420) (29,534)

FEUMA Interest income 1,550 8,418
FEFX Interest expense (109,321) (130,671)

SERERT Profit from continuing operations 42,420 90,223
FriSfif Income tax expense (15,802) (26,256)

mEWEBE Total comprehensive income 26,618 63,967
A FBR RERES LN RN ISR E N 258 The information above reflects the amounts presented
YR (WIEREBEMEEE) IR AEEBES in the financial statements of the joint venture,
BATIZEEHBRENEZREHFAE - adjusted for differences in accounting policies

between the Group and the joint venture, and not the
Group's share of those amounts.
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HE-_T—"E+-_A=t—HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

11 REEEINERMIA 11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY

R+=—A=+-—H
As at 31 December
—F-R"% —T-HF

2016 2015
AR® T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRIEGEEEEBERNEE Assets as per consolidated balance sheet
B S5 RERFA K Trade and bill receivables (Note 13)
e (MI5E13) 2,025,808 2,235,268
o fth e Wz IE (B EE13) Other receivables (Note 13) 146,777 176,493
Re KA EEY (HIE14@) Cash and cash equivalents (Note 14(a)) 969,158 448,653
SRR HIZR € (FizE 14(0) Restricted cash (Note 14(b)) 702,362 364,411
3,844,105 3,224,825
BIEGEEERBERNARE Liabilities as per consolidated
balance sheet
2 5 HAb RE S 208 (H5E19) Trade and other payables (Note 19) 1,395,867 1,189,070
B (HizE20) Borrowings (Note 20) 2,305,030 1,850,497
3,700,897 3,039,567
R-_BE—RER-_ZET—AHF+_A=+—8" As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, financial assets
AEBMEEeMEERERRERGIE - K& held by the Group represent loans and receivables,
EFemaERRBERAAARNEHEE - and financial liabilities held by the Group represent

the financial liabilities at amortised costs.
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BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

12 FE& 12 INVENTORIES
R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—EB-XE C"T-1F
2016 2015
AR¥ TR AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
[EM L K B gt Raw materials and packaging materials 139,279 125,935
B Work in progress 31,244 26,029
BURN R Finished goods 701,047 696,058
871,570 848,022
W FEEE Less: inventory provision (2,168) (320)
869,402 847,702
HE_Z—XRFT-A=+—RHLEFE LA The cost of inventory recognised as “cost of sales”
R#3,982,726,000 THITF EX A (ZE—HF ¢ amounting to approximately RMB3,982,726,000 for
AR #3,798,137,000 7T ) B MR A& [ $HE KA the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
(Mi5E23) o RMB3,798,137,000) (Note 23).
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HE-_T—"E+-_A=t—HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

13 EFRHMEKRFE 13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
R+=A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—EB-XE C"T-1F
2016 2015
AR%ET R ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 WA K R EE () Trade and bill receivables (a) 2,034,771 2,241,423
—EWE=7 — due from third parties 1,446,977 1,463,709
— FEULREERE 5 (P aE 34(0)() — due from related parties (Note 34(c)(i)) 587,794 777,714
B E SRR E RS Less: provision for impairment of trade
receivables (8,963) (6,155)
B 5 IE R EWEYE — %58 Trade and bills receivables — net 2,025,808 2,235,268
KT BB B Prepayment for procurement of inventories 965,608 538,134
EEF S Deferred expenses 29,637 13,287
Hoh pE YRR - Other receivables: 146,994 176,856
— FE UL BN 5 B b 5k IE — Other amounts due from related
(B 3 34(c)(ii)) parties (Note 34(c)(ii)) 12,532 7,211
—He — Deposit 15,592 45,326
— EAth — Others 118,870 124,319
B B EBGRIE R B Less: provision for impairment of other
receivables (217) (363)
1,142,022 727,914
3,167,830 2,963,182
NE BN RS EERR A iR 5EmEI R The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
TR EEE(E © date is the carrying value of each class of receivable

mentioned above.

BE_Z—RNFT_A=+—HILFE ' BE Provision for impairment of trade receivables of
EEEGERTERERGBES ARK RMB2,808,000 was accrued for the year ended 31
2,808,000 (ZE—HF : ARKE757,0007T) ° December 2016 (2015: provision of RMB757,000), in
TWEBREELSEEEKEERN [THREX ]+ - accordance with management’s assessment, which

has been included in “administrative expenses” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)
(@) Trade and bill receivables
The majority of the Group’s sales are on open
account with credit terms ranging from 1 month
to 3 months. The ageing analysis of the trade

13 BESZREMEBWREG)

(@ EBZERWREREVRRE
REBARE D HEACIKRT NET - 5/
BNF—EAZ=EA - HERE Y
B 5 YR R IR R B BR ik o T 0

T and bills receivables based on invoice date was
as follows:
R+=—A=+-—H
As at 31 December
—ZB—XF —T—ARF
2016 2015
AR¥ET R ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
31E A LAR Within 3 months 1,883,548 2,100,983
32 61EA 3 to 6 months 85,474 108,310
621218 A 6 t0 12 months 47,762 28,116
1218 A A E Over 12 months 17,987 4,014
2,034,771 2,241,423

R-ZZE—ARF+-_A=+—8 &8AA
R % 151,223,000 7T ) B 5 FE WK IE B 8
HR-_E—AE+-_A=+—8: AR
#140,440,000) - HIERERERARE
8963000 L(—E—RAFE+_-_A=+—
H: AR¥6,155,0007T) < BB & L ER
FEERSEASRRRAES  BARE
PleRRBREBEL  NeBEMERT
MERIZRR MBS EBOXRBEIEEE
S o FHMETEHIR S EREIEE I R E -
BEEKRIBERABERRE -

As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables of
RMB151,223,000 were past due (31 December
2015: RMB140,440,000) and the amount of
respective provision for impairment was
RMB8,963,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB6,155,000). The impairment is firstly
assessed individually for individual significant or
long aged balances, and then the remaining
balances are grouped for collective assessment
according to their ageing and historical default
rates as these customers are of similar credit
risk characteristics. It was assessed that a
majority portion of the receivables was
expected to be recovered. No trade receivables
were past due but not impaired.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

13 EFRHMEWRIE(#) 13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)
(a) EZEWRERERERE (&) (@) Trade and bill receivables (Continued)
ZEB ZRUGIENRE ST ¢ The ageing analysis of these trade receivables

was as follows:

R+=—A=+-—H
As at 31 December
—F-R"% —T-AHF

2016 2015
AR¥ TR ARETT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
BmHAZME A AR Past due within 3 months 85,474 108,310
wHA3E A = 6@ A Past due in 3 months to 6 months 47,762 28,116
BHA6E A LA £ Past due over 6 months 17,987 4,014
151,223 140,440
B hHEMEWFRIENERERBERZTNIE The carrying amounts of the trade and other
BeoHE - receivables were denominated in the following
currencies:

R+=BA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E—REF —E—RfF

2016 2015

AR®TR ARBTRT

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR# RVB 3,165,465 2,959,914
BT HKS 2,365 3,268
3,167,830 2,963,182
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14 RERBSEBEYUARZRERE

(a)

(b)

RERREEEY
AEBERe MRS EFEYOREENAT
JIEHEHE

BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
RESTRICTED CASH
(@) cCash and cash equivalents
The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and
cash equivalents are denominated in the
following currencies:

R+=A=+-—8
As at 31 December
—E—RF —T—ARfF
2016 2015
AR¥ TR ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 585,320 438,648
BT HKS 309,458 9,549
BT EUR 70,005 301
Hih ek Other currencies 4,375 155
969,158 448,653
SRERE (b) Restricted cash
R+=A=+-—8
As at 31 December
—E—XF —T—AfF
2016 2015
AR¥ T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EHER Term deposit 572,350 132,710
RITEREZBRES Deposit for bank acceptance notes 115,664 105,451
ERE RIREHIRE T Deposit for issue of letter of credit
and letter of guarantee 14,348 126,250
702,362 364,411
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HE—

P AEF-AZ+—AILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

15

[ 15 SHARE CAPITAL
EERAEE
£
EEREE  Equivalent
EERR Nominal nhominal
Number value of value of RARE
of ordinary ordinary ordinary Share
shares shares shares Premium
BT ARETT ARETR
HK$ RMB'000 RMB'000
EE Authorised:
RZE—AK-F—R As at 1 January 2015 and 2016
—A—-BEk=Z-1% and 31 December 2015 and 2016
—E—RFt+-A=1T-H 10,000,000,000  1,000,000,000
BT : Issued:
RZE-h%—HA—H As at 1 January 2015 2,073,612,000 207,361,200 164,634 1,263,332
RE Dividends (i = = - (114,181)
“E-A&E+-A=1+—H Balanceat31December 2015
i 2,073,612,000 207,361,200 164,634 1,149,151
—T—E—F—H##%  Balanceat 1January 2016 2,073,612,000 207,361,200 164,634 1,149,151
BITERR Issue of ordinary shares (i 132,358,000 13,235,800 11,814 273,335
8 Dividends (i) - - - (128,599)
—E—RE+ZA=+—B Balance at 31 December 2016
e 2,205,970,000 220,597,000 176,448 1,293,887

(0} BB S S A AA (2003 FE5THR) £ 34 IERAA
RIMABERMA - AR R EHEERENAARRR
HEHBERMBNGAHRTE + BRI AR R BRI EER
BREHDE -BE_ZT—AF+-_A=1+—HILHF
S5 A b £ 58 5 A R ¥ 78,088,000 7T K Ak HA R 8. K 4
RS RBEZZT—AFRNA=THIEAERRF
h&FE A ARKS50,511,000 TR R R EEREE—
ERETZA=tBHLFEIFFARARARE -

(ii) RZZE—RETZATNE ' RARIAEAR2.41377%8
JLIA Market Genius Limited 277 132,358,000 % & J%
EBM0.1 TH LB - FEFTSRIEL 319,473,000
BT (SR O AR 285,149,0007T) + F itk AR A &
B BTN R BR 17 4 B 5 B34 i A R # 11,814,000 7T
K AR ¥ 273,335,000 7T °
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(ii)

Pursuant to Section 34 of the Cayman Companies Law (2003
Revision) and the Articles of Association of the Company,
share premium of the Company is available for distribution to
shareholders subject to a solvency test on the Company and
the provision of the Articles of Association of the Company.
Final dividend and special dividend totalling RMB78,088,000 in
relation to the profits for the year ended 31 December 2015
and interim dividends amounting to RMB50,511,000 in relation
to the profits for the six months ended 30 June 2016 were
paid to the Company's shareholders during the year ended 31
December 2016.

On 19 December 2016, the Company issued 132,358,000 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at HK$2.4137 per share to
Market Genius Limited and raised proceeds of approximately
HK$319,473,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB285,149,000), resulting in the increase in issued share
capital of the Company by RMB11,814,000 and the share
premium by RMB273,335,000.
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BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

16 RETAINED EARNINGS

BE+t-A=+—-HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—EB—XREF —E—REF
2016 2015
AR%T T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R—HA—BMREZF Retained earnings at 1 January 1,275,982 955,507
F & T Profit for the year 204,834 350,809
S L TR Appropriation to statutory reserve (19,267) (30,334)
RTZA=+—H8RBEF Retained earnings at 31 December 1,461,549 1,275,982
17 Hibf#EE 17 OTHER RESERVES
BRAH

BEMRH s

#Eral rE e

EXRE Pre-IP0  EEMMEG  Currency
Capital share award Statutory translation @t
reserve scheme  reserve()  reserve Total
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTn ARETET
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R-E—-1%—A—H At 1 January 2015 78,804 4481 129,654 (11,646) 201,293
NERE R Currency translation differences - = = 1,198 1,198
BRSLTEHE Appropriation to statutory reserve - - 30,334 - 30,334

BIRARZBERIRD B2 Pre-IPO share award scheme
—BHESMRBERG  — value of current employee
Services (i) = 1421 = - 1,421
R-ZE—RE+-A=+—H At31December2015 78,804 5,902 159,988 (10,448) 234,246
RZE—~E—A—A At 1 January 2016 78,804 5,902 159,988 (10,448) 234,246
NEREEE Currency translation differences - - - 3,054 3,054
BRI RE Appropriation to statutory reserve - - 19,267 - 19,267
BIRABEERRDEENE 2 Pre-PO share award scheme
—BHREEMRBEEW  — value of current employee

Services (ii) - 2,399 - - 2,399
RZE—~E+-A=1—H At31December 2016 78,804 8,301 179,255 (7,394) 258,966
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BE-T—AF+-A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

17 HtbF#E @)

220

(i)

(i)

REFBEEAMASEEE AN AAA
BERMAR - EDIRSFENFHANAT -
AREBERFEEMNEQRAREHR
EHEETEEENEENEM LE—F
ERHRR - 5 EF RO F i M #Y 10% 7
NEEBHRHERE - ARHENBHREDS
DA RANEY 50% B - AT IE 12T 7 AR B
A °

NEAREARDEBETE
RER-_Z—=F)\A—BOBRRRZ
ZANYNCTE ERE= NN R SR
([BRAMBENBRESTE]) - AR
ARBERABRETENENERESR
(BREF)ERSEAQRESEAR
- WHEEEABCERBELYE - [/
RiBHNEEES - PINAERMEARE
EnRPERLBNENZHEER -

BEERAFAREMNBERESEREAR
AEATEAMERTORNBER
37,083,334 % + (G ANA R H B E BT
RE1.79% ° L AFHENBRER -
—=FNA—HAETF-

HRETREENRD  AREARTRE
BHA RSB R AR ER LT KRS
FEENEFB A RFDARBRA
AR BEASIR-_ZE—=FhLA++t
H —E—MFAA++H  ZF—hF
NA+ER  ZE—XREAAT+LBEERZ
T—+tFhLhA+EBEDAMTEEBER
TE o

KIEEFEIZER AR AR * Tenwow International Holdings Limited

17 OTHER RESERVES (Continued)

)

(i)

In accordance with the PRC regulations and the
articles of association of the companies of the
Group, before distributing the net profit of each
year, companies of the Group registered in the
PRC are required to set aside 10% of its
statutory net profit for the year after offsetting
any prior year’'s losses as determined under
relevant PRC accounting standards to the
statutory surplus reserve fund. When the
balance of such reserve reaches 50% of each
company'’s share capital, any further
appropriation is optional.

Pre-IPO share award scheme

Pursuant to a resolution dated on 1 August
2013, the Company adopted a Pre-IPO share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”). The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is to give the employees
(including directors) an opportunity to acquire a
personal stake in our Company and help
motivating such employees to optimize their
performance and efficiency, and also to help
retaining the employees whose contributions
are important to the long-term growth and
profitability of our Group.

Total number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all options granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is 37,083,334
shares representing approximately 1.79% of the
enlarged issued share capital of the Company.
The Pre-IPO share options were granted on 1
August 2013.

For shares granted to the employees, subject to
the meeting of the criteria of the Company
being listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the
employee being still on service at the end of
each vesting period, the granted shares can be
vested in five tranches on 17 September 2013,
2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017, respectively.
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(i)

B 7% R 3R MY &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NEARERTR DR BT E (8)
BE_ZT—R"Ft-_A=1+—BAEA
ERRB AR T(E -

R-B—RET-A=1T—8 BARH
HERBRES NGB R RITEER
LN

BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

17 OTHER RESERVES (Continued)

Pre-IPO share award scheme (Continued)
No options had been exercised up to 31
December 2016.

The Pre-IPO share options outstanding as at 31
December 2016 have the following vesting dates
and exercise prices:

TRER
(BR)ER i Bk IR 42
Exercise prices Outstanding
Vesting Date (per share) HK$ shares
—E—=FhA++tAH 17 September 2013 1.8 3,708,334
—ET—mERATNR 18 September 2014 18 8,312,500
“E—RFhA+NB 18 September 2015 1.8 9,208,333
—E-RFNALAT+NB 18 September 2016 1.8 10,104,166
—T—tFhATNR 18 September 2017 1.8 5,750,001
37,083,334

RZZ—=F7\RF—H " B&RTAH RE
BRAMBEEHBREFIRE RN Z
NRABEA/ARKEG6799,8957T - 2 &H
BIYABERBEMRKAE AN GEERER
fhfE-

HE_T—R"F+-A=+—HBILFE -
REEERAARE 2399000 (ZF—H
F: AR¥1,421,00070) (75 25) BAR
AR E RO EEFX -

The fair value of the shares granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at 1 August
2013, the grant date, was RMB6,799,895, and
has been valued by an independent qualified
valuer using Binomial valuation model.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group recognised an expense of RMB2,399,000
(2015: RMB1,421,000) (Note 25) in relation to the
shares awarded by the Company to the
employees.
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HE-_T—"E+-_A=t—HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

18 BFMBIAVIEIEUR A 18 DEFERRED INCOME ON GOVERNMENT

GRANTS

BEt-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—E—XF

—T—HE
2015
ARETTT
RMB’000

2016

ARMTR
RMB'000

BT #6 BA RO IR FE M A Deferred income on government grants
— nEEo — Current portion 2,575 2,915
— ERBHD — Non-current portion 19,712 21,137
22,287 24,052

BEt-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—FB-R"F —FT-OF

2016 2015

AR¥ TR ARET T

RMB'000 RMB'000

Rn—H—H As at 1 January 24,052 26,157
e Amortisation (1,765) (2,105)
Rt+=-—A=+—H As at 31 December 22,287 24,052

ZEMP TR RTEETHET S THBFH
B EREAKEREEYE - BFE KR EHE
@J o

222 XREEERARAT e Tenwow International Holdings Limited

These mainly represent government grants received
from certain municipal governments of the PRC as an
encouragement for the Group’s construction of
property, plant and equipment.
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BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

19 EFRHEHMENIE 19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E—RF —E—RF
2016 2015
AR¥ TR ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B SN FIARENRIR Trade and bills payables
—ERE=F — due to third parties 1,108,327 951,988
— FEAHRERS 75 (B aE 34(c)ii) — due to related parties (Note 34(c)(iii)) 95,378 104,435
1,203,705 1,056,423
ME - R KRR ENIE Payables for property, plant and equipment 67,222 90,271
EANE &g =p1 Salary and social welfare payables 13,667 9,367
FEHSEF R E bR 1B Value-added tax and other taxes payables 174,655 101,447
B RIE Advance from customers 161,953 97,715
TEIRE A Accrued expenses 22,234 19,891
JE 1<) B BSe T Y L M FRIR Other amounts due to related parties
(FF5E34(0)(iv)) (Note 34(c)(iv)) 3,301 2,956
H At FRIE Other payables 99,405 19,529
542,437 341,176
1,746,142 1,397,599
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HE-_T—"E+-_A=t—HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

19 BEZREAMENREG
BB M0 E SR RA RN RN

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)
The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables

BRI T based on invoice date was as follows:
R+=A=+-—8H

As at 31 December
—ZB—XfF —T—AfF
2016 2015
AR¥ TR ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
2@ AR Up to 2 months 888,611 662,808
2B A=31EA 2 months to 3 months 119,618 161,287
3EAZE6MEA 3 months to 6 months 183,179 195,333
6REAZE1FE 6 months to 1 year 7,450 30,066
1FAE Over 1 year 4,847 6,929
1,203,705 1,056,423

AEENE 5 R EMENFRENREE T

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other

BHEEGHE - payables were denominated in the following
currencies:
R+=A=+—AH
As at 31 December
ZB-XRF —T—RF
2016 2015
ARMTR ARBTET
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 1,732,531 1,371,211
BT EUR 13,344 6,439
Hh B # Other currencies 267 19,949
1,746,142 1,397,599
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BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

20 &R 20 BORROWINGS
R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—EB-XE C"T-1F
2016 2015
AR¥ TR ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FERED Non-current
REAER Long-term borrowings 280,380 358,885
E Current
FEHRER Short-term borrowings 1,795,819 1,475,675
RAEERRRE D Current portion of long-term borrowings 228,831 15,937
2,024,650 1,491,612
B Mz Total borrowings 2,305,030 1,850,497
Hrep: Representing:
— | — Unsecured 1,397,694 854,253
— 5 (a) — Secured () 844,336 702,940
— BER (D) — Guaranteed (b) 63,000 293,304
2,305,030 1,850,497
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HE-_T—"E+-_A=t—HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

20 fEFR@E) 20 BORROWINGS (Continued)
(@) BEFPERHIFET : (@) Analyses of secured borrowings are as follows:

R+=—A=+-—H
As at 31 December
—F-R"% —T-AHF

2016 2015
ARMTFR ARBTE
RMB’000 RMB’000
IR Secured by:
— BF R A — Buildings and land use rights
(fisE6 K 7) (Notes 6 and 7) 728,294 609,812
— HEES RS (T 6) — Machinery and equipments
(Notes 6) 116,042 93,128
844,336 702,940
(b) BEREROITET : (b) Analyses of the guaranteed borrowings were as
follows:
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E—RF —T—hF
2016 2015
AR¥ TR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BATER : Guaranteed by:
— —BLHRR — A Shareholder of non-controlling
interests 63,000 178,000
—ERE — Letter of credits - 115,304

63,000 293,304
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BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

20 ER@E) 20 BORROWINGS (Continued)
(C) AEEHEREEEHMT (c) The Group's borrowings were repayable as
follows:

R+=A=+—A~
As at 31 December
—B-XRE C—T—RF

2016 2015
AR%T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1ER Within 1 year 2,024,650 1,491,612
122F Between 1 and 2 years 230,856 177,612
2E5F Between 2 and 5 years 49,524 181,273
2,305,030 1,850,497

(d) #ZEHONETHERFFNENAT (d) The weighted average effective interest rates

per annum at the balance sheet date were as

follows:

R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E—RE —E—REF

2016 2015

ARBTR ARETRT
RMB’000 RMB'000

SRITIER Bank borrowings 4.36% 5.68%
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HE-_T—"E+-_A=t—HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

20 faR@ 20
(e) MRUMBRMTEBALTEX  REERNHD
AEEEEREERS FRBEFRE

REAMEREERAABERT

Bank borrowings

BORROWINGS (Continued)

(e) The fair values of current borrowings
approximate their carrying amounts as the
impact of discounting is not significant. The
carrying amounts and fair values of non-current
borrowings as at each balance sheet date are
as follows:

REE
Carrying amount
R+=—HA=+—H

As at 31 December

—2-rF
2016
ARET
RMB’000

—T-hF
2015
ARBFT
RMB’000

280,380 358,885

Bank borrowings

AREE
Fair value
W+=HA=+—H
As at 31 December

—T—FH4E
2015
ARET T
RMB'000

—E—XF
2016
AR¥T
RMB’000

274,454 351,652

FRBERNDABEERKRAER
B BAKEREEARERTHISHE
R AR A BURR M & B T Afhat
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The fair values of non-current borrowings are
estimated based on discounted cash flow using
the prevailing market rate of interest allocated
to the Group for financial instrument with
substantially the same terms and characteristics
at the respective balance sheet dates.
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BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

20 B 20 BORROWINGS (Continued)
(f) AEEEROEREMEN T EETE : (f)  The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings
are denominated in the following currencies:

R+=A=+—A~
As at 31 December
—B-XRE C—T—RF

2016 2015

AR¥TR ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR RMB 1,933,648 1,660,679
BT EUR 163,965 74,514
ABIT HKD 147,593 115,304
HE Other currencies 59,824 =
2,305,030 1,850,497
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

21 EEMREHIE 21 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
R+=B=+-—H
As at 31 December
—EB—XRE —E—RF
2016 2015
AR¥ T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEEFE I A FE ¢ Deferred tax assets:
—BR12EAREERERN — Deferred tax asset to be recovered
RIETRIE & within 12 months 20,042 13,368
BERIEAE : Deferred tax liability:
— B 128 REER — Deferred tax liability to be settled
FEERIBEEE after 12 months 27,386 26,690
IRIEATSTER B MARRES T ¢ The gross movement on the deferred income tax
account is as follow:
BEMSBEE ! Deferred income tax assets:

&a5E
R  WERE

Taxloss  Provision RERRF  BREER

carried for Unrealised  Accrued @t
forward impairment profit  expenses Total

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 H00) RMB'000 RMB'000

R=E-H&—-A—-H At 1 January 2015 2,736 663 5,968 5712 15,079
NEAEERERA Credited/(charged) to the consolidated

FEA/ (1) statements of comprehensive income (2,115) 20 Y 312 1,711)
R=ZE-A&+=F=1+—H At31December 2015 621 683 6,010 6,054 13,368
BB R B 1 ml (FizE33) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 33) 1,495 - - - 1,495
MEA2ERERA Credited/(charged) to the consolidated

s/ () statements of comprehensive income (5) 2,154 2,746 284 5,179
R=Z-~E+=A=1+—H At31December 2016 2,111 2,837 8,756 6,338 20,042

230 XEEEERARAT e Tenwow International Holdings Limited



B %% o MY A
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

21 EEFSHRIEE)
EEMEHEAE !

21 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
Deferred income tax liabilities:

FE R

ARKEE

ERIKEINB

Withholding

BVEE BVEE tax on
ANREE ARERE  unremitted

Fair value of Fair value CEI
intangible  of tangible of PRC #st
assets assets  subsidiaries Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R-E-R&5-F—H At 1 January 2015 9,466 3,066 13,421 25,953
RRA 2 ERRRANR Charged to the consolidated statements

of comprehensive income (358) (355) 5517 4,304
SRR AT A Payment of withholding tax upon

declaration of dividends = = (4,067) 4,067)
RZZ-EF+=A=1-H At 31 December 2015 9,108 2,711 14,871 26,690
WBHE AR (F15E33) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 33) 6,529 192 - 6,721
ReraZERERANR Charged to the consolidated statements

of comprehensive income (765) (674) 3,602 2,163
BRI AERME Payment of withholding tax upon

declaration of dividends - - (8,188) (8,188)

R-B-AF+=A=1+-H At 31 December 2016

14,872 2,229 10,285 27,386

TEAB IR 25 7T B35 B R TR PR SR BRI B
MIERT - AR EEEREREER SHE
Eo

R-E—RF+_A=+—HBHE-_ZT—FF
+ZA=+—RH AEETERSEIANAEA
R ¥ 6,523,000 7T M A R #5 12,852,000 7T A9 i 18
EiEEREEY A AR 1,633,000t AR
3,213,000 THEEFTS TR EE - RIET B
AE  REMERBEE TSR -

BEEEeRE BE-_ZT—~F+-A
=+ — B IEFEF 5 F A 50% 15 5 A B K R 3R
NN ALEHBRE-_ZT—F+=-A
=+—HIEFEAEHARYS3,602,0007T (=
T—FF : AR¥S5,517,0007T) °

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
loss carried forward to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through future taxable
profits is probable.

The Group did not recognise deferred income tax
assets of RMB1,633,000 and RMB3,213,000 in respect
of the tax losses amounting to RMB6,523,000 and
RMB12,852,000 as at 31 December 2016 and 31
December 2015. The tax losses will not expire
according to Hong Kong tax law.

In accordance with the board resolution, 50% of the
net profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 will
be paid outside of Mainland China and accordingly
withholding tax of RMB3,602,000 was provided for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB5,517,000).
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HE-_T—"E+-_A=t—HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

22 HAA

22 OTHER INCOME

BE+t-A=+—-HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—E—RE —E—RF

2016 2015

AR®ET T ARBTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

BB (FE) Government grants (Note) 13,989 46,070
e WA Rental income 2,133 1,302
EAh Others 2,947 4,769
19,069 52,141

H: BEZZ-—AET-A=+—HLEE BABBE
EATEETHERG FTOBEHE) - (FAUEAEE
TR 77 45 PR B R TR B R A B B DA IR BT 47 B 3R S
A - BE_T—RF+-A=1+—BLEFE K
FI1E B B B IR IR ATAR LE AR S BT A B/ — B K At
ARMERTIE T K 5T AR K 23,680,000 ST HIES(E -

232 XREEERARAT e Tenwow International Holdings Limited

Note:

For the year ended 31 December 2016, government grants
mainly represent grants received from certain municipal
governments of the PRC as encouragement for the Group's
contributions to the development of the local economy and
amortisation of deferred income on government grants. For
the year ended 31 December 2015, government grants also
included a compensation of RMB23,680,000 from
governments for one Group's subsidiary early termination of a
long-term office lease.
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BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

23 BEMEEINEX 23 EXPENSES BY NATURE

BE+t-A=+—-HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—B-RE

—T-hF
2016 2015
ARBTR ARETR

B R R F R B an B B

Raw materials used and changes in

RMB’000

RMB'000

HIFEEE) inventories of finished goods and
work in progress 3,982,726 3,798,137
EERMAZ (KFE25) Employee benefit expenses (Note 25) 265,192 215,395
BEEREERAN Advertising and promotion costs 222,729 110,637
WEREHER (M6 7%8)  Depreciation and amortisation charges
(Notes 6, 7 & 8) 91,334 66,227
Eifx Transportation expenses 77,950 46,844
UNEE il Utility costs 38,482 38,630
eI R Machinery maintenance expenses 28,408 24,071
R I8 R B hnFR Taxes and surcharges 27,824 22,708
KEHE Operating leases 20,147 18,700
EIRE Travel expenses 14,044 11,050
MWARZ Office expenses 10,172 7,712
BEE Entertainment fee 9,307 8,745
B 5 K E A EUGRIE & Provision for impairment of trade and
FERERE other receivables and inventory 4,563 966
INELEF Outsourcing fee 1,159 10,666
EMAx Other expenses 30,891 36,170
4,824,928 4,416,658
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HE-_T—"E+-_A=t—HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

24. HiugsE (kE) — BE 24. OTHER LOSSES/(GAINS) — NET

BE+=—A=t+—BHLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E—-XfF —T—FRF

2016 2015
AR® TR ARET T
RMB'000 RMB’000
B HE (i) Donation (i) 30,612 27
HE—XRALAREMAEYZ.  Gain on disposal of partial shares

(Ff3E10) in a joint venture (Note 10) (4,534) -
HEWB R R EE Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 8,053 -
Hith Others 3,328 (869)
37,459 (842)

(0} REBR_T—NFEREE TREARE 30,598,000 (i) In 2016, the Group donated certain own products with value

THERERT LEZEEESS of RMB30,598,000 to Shanghai Charity Foundation.
25 EETEAMAX 25 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

BE+t-A=t+—-HLFE
Year ended 31 December
—B-XRE C—T—RF

2016 2015
AR¥BTR ARETE
RMB’'000 RMB'000
TERH® Wages and salaries 219,450 178,066
HERERX Social security costs 43,343 35,908
RS AR BT &l Pre-IPO share award scheme-value
— B ITRBERE MFE17) of employee services (Note 17) 2,399 1,421
265,192 215,395
(@ EEESFMAL (@) Five highest paid individuals
BE_ZT—AFTA=+—HLFE" For the year ended 31 December 2016, the five
AEEHeHENABATAARES individuals whose emoluments were the highest
E & 25 sE 35 FTE o 1T A o in the Group are 5 directors, whose emoluments

are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 35.

BHE-_Z—RAF+-_A=+—BEKER=% For the years ended 31 December 2015 and
—ANFTZA=1+—HLFE  AEEH 2016, no emoluments were paid by the Group
BRI ARG A T ZHERBE - 1E to the five highest individuals as inducement to
BREMNEAEBE SN INBEARAERER join or upon joining the Group or as
ReNIERBEBME - compensation for loss of office.
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BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

26 BAERA — R 26 FINANCE EXPENSES — NET

BE+t-A=+—-HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E—XRE —E—RF
2016 2015
AR%ET R ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Bz Finance expenses
— RITERH R B X — Interest expense on bank borrowings 99,363 99,039
B EBEBEENENE SR Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying
assets (5,100) -
BB S st (B93E31) Total financial expenses (Notes 31) 94,263 99,039
BAFEURA - Finance income:
— RITFRBIF A — Interest income on bank deposits
(KH=£31) (Note 31) (6,882) (13,883)
— EM BRI A — Other finance income (1,085) (1,207)
(7,967) (15,090)
BF 75 X AN 58 Net finance expenses 86,296 83,949
27 EH—REEQENER 27 SHARE OF PROFIT OF A JOINT VENTURE

BEt-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—E—RF —T—hF

2016 2015

AR®ET T AREETIT

RMB'000 RMB’000

FEAE = 1 (FTEE 10) Share of profit (Note 10) 12,140 33,453
EHRE R RASEEHEER Movement of elimination of unrealised

RE IR & profits for sales from Nanpu to
the Group (3,117) (1,370)
9,023 32,083
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HE-_T—"E+-_A=t—HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

28

Fiig

B

28

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

BE+t-A=+—-HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—EB-XE C"T-1F

2016 2015

AR%T T ARBTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

2 HIFTS Current income tax 87,107 118,159
NATFEEHEEHER Adjustments in respect of prior year’s

annual tax filing - 1,502

EIEFTIS T (FTEE21) Deferred income tax (Note 21) (3,016) 6,515

Fri8fiF Income tax expense 84,091 126,176

(i) BASEEFNEH (i) Ccayman Islands profits tax
AAREAHMENHESEHSESHRE The Company is not subject to any taxation of
I8 the Cayman Islands income tax.

(i) REEEREERNEH (ii) British Virgin Islands profits tax
BE(EBHRRFEEMELRRNE) R The subsidiary incorporated in the British Virgin
BB REEEMK K E QG ER Islands under the International Business
REMEBERRESFTEM o Companies Acts of the British Virgin Islands is

exempted from payment of the British Virgin
Islands income tax.

(iii) BFBAFEH (iii) Hong Kong profits tax
EBNEH DT R M 12 16.5% Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at
BB R o the rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable

profits.

(iv) PEIREMREH (iv) PRC Corporate income tax

RIBFBEBREERIOER - £ BEFEMK
THKBARENEEERN - WHET
BARRIRRAFHAWIAR ETT
HER FEEEAEHILEERSE
Bil) o RIECFEARKMBLEMSH
) ([REREBELD  MERLUNER
MRS EGE—525%
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The Corporate income tax (“CIT") is calculated
based on the statutory profit of subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC in accordance with the
PRC tax laws and regulations, after adjustments
on certain income and expense items, which
are not assessable or deductible for income tax
purposes. Pursuant to the PRC Corporate
Income Tax Law (“the CIT Law"), the CIT is
unified at 25% for all type of entities.
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FRr8HBX ()

REITRHI TS B

RIBERMEVAERTBEAEEREN
WIS ERA) - AR BIABERSZ B0 F B 2 A 1A
AR EIRAIBE EEUL 5% B -

LR BIRR B A B A BB BB A B R
RESUE RGN ER I FYH R

AERERSENT

28
(v)

BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

PRC withholding income tax

Pursuant to the CIT Law and tax treaty between
Mainland China and Hong Kong, a 5%
withholding tax will be levied on the dividends

declared from the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the Mainland China to Hong Kong.

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise

using the weighted average tax rate applicable
to profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

BE+T-A=t+—-HLHFE
Year ended 31 December

—E-—RE —E—RF
2016 2015
ARETR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
B ETS B R &= Profit before income tax 298,036 492,484
BB a @AM Tax calculated at domestic tax rates
WX T ERFIE applicable to profits in the respective
countries 74,292 123,121
R Adjusted by:
AR A 2 Expenses not deductible for tax
purposes 7,333 845
RIERELEHEEENTIEEE  Tax losses for which no deferred tax
asset was recognised 1,633 3,213
JERARERELERIBEEDN Utilisation of tax losses which was not
HIAEE recognised as deferred tax assets (519) -
B AR E OME R B R (5T Withholding tax on the profits
Sk attributable to the investors
outside of China Mainland 3,602 5,517
EREE R AR —REE AR Share of profits of associates and a joint
kel sr TR Sing] venture, which are not subject to tax (2,250) (8,022)
A FEEEEHEE Adjustments in respect of prior year's
annual tax filing - 1,502
FTiS B Income tax expenses 84,091 126,176

237
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HE-_T—"E+-_A=t—HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

29 BREFN 29 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@ EX (@

Basic

BE+t-A=1T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—E—XE —E—FRF

2016 2015
RRRIEERA AR Net profit attributable to the equity
(ARBTT) holders of the Company (RMB'000) 204,834 350,809
BRITEBRERERRT G Weighted average number of ordinary
e (Fi&) shares in issue for basic earnings
per share (thousands) 2,078,326 2,073,612
FREAREF(ARES) Basic earnings per share (RMB cents) 9.86 16.92

SIREARFITIRAD A RSB AR
ERFBABRE=E— R FR-F—H
F+=A=t-ALFEEHTEER
AP BGHE -
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Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing the net profit attributable to the
Company’s equity holders by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year ended 31 December 2016 and
2015.
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29 BREF(®)

(b) #F

BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

29 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)
(b) Diluted

BE+t-A=1T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—E—XE —E—FF

2016 2015
AR%T T ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
RARIER R A ARG R Net profits attributable to the equity
(ANRETTT) holders of the Company (RMB'000) 204,834 350,809

BEITEERERERET G Weighted average number of ordinary

miEFEHE (TR shares in issue for basic earnings
per share (thousands) 2,078,326 2,073,612
KEREAE (TR Adjusted for share options (thousands) 10,114 8,374
EETEBAREREERTN Weighted average number of ordinary
AR 8 (FA%) shares for diluted earnings per share
(thousands) 2,088,440 2,081,986
EREBERF(ARES) Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents) 9.81 16.85

SRESRNBREMENEENEREE
BRI R ARR - RIBE BT E BV INGE
FARHSFE - KRR AIHENEEL A
P e EAREAEAK - S0 EARE - RIBRTTES
RFHRBERNEREE  BERAR
EBE(EESANRRRNNFHFETRE)
ABARRMNEE LA LS XEFERR
P8R - EERBRTEMNEDS ETHR
BB EHILLER

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The Company's dilutive potential
ordinary shares comprised share options. For
the share options, a calculation is done to
determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average annual market share price of the
company’s shares) based on the monetary
value of the subscription rights attached to
outstanding share options. The number of
shares calculated as above is compared with
the number of shares that would have been
issued assuming the exercise of the share
options.
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BE_Z—RFTA=t+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

30 RE

RZE-—AFEINHBRBEAARK
1%wmwﬁﬂ:%—£¢'AE%ﬂmwom
) BEEE-Z—AFt+=_A=1+— Eut
Eﬁ%%&%%%EAEMBO%mmE<
—RF : REARB AR 66,391,0007T) &%ﬂz
=T —RENA=ZTHIEANEARERKRER
AR 50,511,000 (ZE—R % : FHKREA
R#47,790,0007T) - REIR = —tFH A
THERITHRREFAE L - BEZBIREE
BT AE+-A=Z+—RALEERHERS
FRROS7BIL(ZT—RF : 3.4181L) k&5
BB EIR 21281 (ZE— 1 F - 1.047810l) -
& #£59,348,0007% 7t (48 & 1 A K % 51,907,000
L) (ZZE—F 4 : 92,220,000 7T * HERA
R¥74,993,0007T) ° AN #5 Rk I AR R BLEZ R
RS - BEZE-—R"ET-A=T—HILF
EEZREAXLETRSMBIN(ZE—RF:
7.1674L) o

30 DIVIDENDS

The dividends paid in 2016 were RMB128,599,000
(2015: RMB114,181,000), including final dividend and
special dividend totalling RMB78,088,000 (2015: final
dividend of RMB66,391,000) in relation to the profits
for the year ended 31 December 2015 and interim
dividend amounting to RMB50,511,000 (2015: interim
dividend of RMB47,790,000) in relation to the profits
for the six months ended 30 June 2016. A special
dividend of HK2.12 cents per share (2015: HK1.04
cents) in addition to a final dividend of HK0.57 cents
per share (2015: HK3.41 cents), amounting to a total
dividend of HK$59,348,000 (equivalent to
RMB51,907,000) (2015: HK$92,220,000, equivalent to
RMB74,993,000), will be proposed at the Company'’s
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 19
May 2017. These financial statements do not reflect
this final dividend payable. Total proposed dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2016 is HK5.40 cents
per share (2015: HK7.16 cents).

BEt-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—F-R"§ —T-AHF

2016 2015
ARBTRE ARETRT

AR B SRR B AR 2.71 8L
ZT—FE : 2715840)

RMB'000 RMB’000

Interim dividend paid of HK2.71 cents
(2015: HK2.71 cents) per ordinary share 50,511 47,790

EiE EEHJ?H& SRR A% 0.57 78l Proposed final dividend of HK0.57 cents

(ZZ=—F%F: 341 B

(2015: HK3.41 cents) per ordinary share 10,940 57,453

EEERIR B ERREEAZ 2,128l Proposed special dividend of HK2.12 cents

(ZZ—A%F : 1.04781l)

(2015: HK1.04 cents) per ordinary share 40,967 17,540

102,418 122,783
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BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

31 RETHELENRE 31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

BEt-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-RE —T—hF
2016 2015
AR¥BTR ARETT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
Bk BT 1S5 Bl A Profit before income tax 298,036 492,484
KR Adjustments for:
— I E (fisE6) — Depreciation (Note 6) 90,301 62,486
— BH (517 & 8) — Amortisation (Notes 7 and 8) 5,687 3,741
—HEME - BER — Losses/(gains) on disposal of property,
ZAEEE S (UES) plant and equipment 23 (68)
— HEHE N FEE (KiiE24) — Loss on disposal of subsidiaries
(Note 24) 8,053 -
— HE—REE QA2 ALHE — Gain on disposal of partial shares in
Fy Wz (P 24) a joint venture (Note 24) (4,534) =
— HERE A RIEE — Loss on disposal of associate - 79
— FEUA (FF5E26) — Interest income (Note 26) (6,882) (13,883)
— F BRI (M 5E26) — Interest expense (Note 26) 94,263 99,039
— EBE AR R —KE&® A" — Share of profit of associates and a
gl joint venture (9,001) (33,456)
— B IE R BRI ERE — Provision for impairment of
(FfF5E23) receivables and inventory (Note 23) 4,563 966
EEESEH Change in working capital:
— FEEmM — Increase in inventories (33,674) (139,881)
— B 5 RHE M EGRIFIE N — Increase in trade and other
receivables (271,752) (571,675)
— B 5 R E M E RIEIE N — Increase in trade and other payables 380,571 76,427
ETEBIRSARA(RE)FE  Cash inflow/(outflow) from
operating activities 555,654 (23,741)
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HE-_T—"E+-_A=t—HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

32 E#®
(@) BEAREFE
REZEBENERAEENELRFH
SYUNNE

STATEMENTS

32 COMMITMENTS
(@) Capital commitments
Capital expenditure contracted for at each
balance sheet date but not yet incurred is as
follows:

R+=—A=+-—H
As at 31 December
—F-R"% —T-AHF

2016 2015
ARBTRE ARETRT

RMB'000 RMB’000

T E R - M - BE &R Land use rights, property,
plant and equipment 203,745 189,350

(b) ReHEHR®E —FKENERER
AEA
AEERETABHEEEHREERT -
REBEZFTAIREHEEHE - AEERK
REMEFRBELT

(b) Operating lease commitments — the
Group’s entities as lessee
The Group lease buildings under non-
cancellable lease agreements. The Group’s
future aggregate minimum lease payments
under these non-cancellable operating leases
were as follows:

BE+-—A=t+—-HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—B-XE _—_T—HF

2016 2015

AR®T T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

BB 1 F No later than 1 year 15,696 23,700
1F A EETHBIBESF Later than 1 year and no later

than 5 years 11,442 18,471

B 55 Later than 5 years 3,279 -

30,417 42,171
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33. EXKE6 — WEEM

RZEBE-—RFLtA-H A&EBUARK
30,000,000 7T ¥¥ B M) 55 = 757 Wi R AR R K &
BE X BIHAREY 100% A

AEEERRE B MEERRERKOTS
HAE AEERBRBRBLBEREXS -
ZWEELNEHEBAARK 68990007 T8
RAKBEIGHA FHEE PR R RIREE -
BRI ER R BT R RIS ©

TREBTRUBEMBEENMAZEREND
SfEE -

33.

BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

BUSINESS COMBINATION —
ACQUISITION OF MEILIN

Oon 1 July 2016, the Group acquired 100% shares of
Meilin, a natural mineral water production company,
from a third party at the consideration of
RMB30,000,000.

As a result of the acquisition, the Group is expected
to increase its presence in natural mineral water
market. It also expects to reduce costs through
economies of scale. The goodwill of RMB6,899,000
arising from the acquisition is attributable to
economies of scale expected from combining the
operations of the Group and Meilin. None of the
goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.

The following table summarises the fair value of
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the
acquisition date.

R=—~EtA—H ARE T
At 1 July 2016 RMB’000
Re kB EEY Cash and cash equivalents 20
b {5 A (P E7) Land use rights (Note 7) 2,324
YE - BB KR (FsEs) Property, plant and equipment (Note 6) 2,545
g (REEREE)(HFES) Mining licenses (included in intangible assets) (Note 8) 24,280
RER B A 2= (FsE21) Deferred tax assets (Note 21) 1,495
B 5 R H b WA Trade and other receivables 10,243
B 5 REMERFRE Trade and other payables (11,085)
RERTBA = (FsE21) Deferred tax liabilities (Note 21) 6,721)
AR FEERLE Total identifiable net assets 23,101

g2 (fzE8) Goodwill (Note 8) 6,899
MEE— RS (BER=-Z=—REXH) Total consideration — cash (paid in 2015) 30,000

R-Z—R"FLtA—HB EFSRBBEIUMGE
R BB EENABEETHRE  FHER=
T—R"FtA— BB AR E EMARE
MBEENDRER-

The fair value of identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed of Meilin as at 1 July 2016 were
estimated by the Board through a valuation conducted
by an independent valuer in respect of these acquired
assets and liabilities as at 1 July 2016.
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BHEZ

E-RE+A=tHLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

34

244

BB X3
m—ARENEREMEEG ST - KREE
B3 — T REFERI R EERERE %Tjj Vil

INEAFE  AIEHRESEMEN - e
TR IR S - IRAR S PR T
BRARESEEREIN UTRBZE_Z—1F

R_TE—RE+-_A=1t— E¢¢E$§%liﬁi
HEABOIR —REBERTMETEARZH

BME  UER - E—RAFN_ZT—RF+_A
=t HEMAERSEENE

(@) #E&KEEESNVER

(i) EERERX
MRERLE

(i) MBEXLENEFRFX
BEPLL  MEFEERMEELL
(iii) XEEEBAE
FEBEAE

(iv) ZIKEE’JH%&"‘zl

EEREN  BARE
V) AEEHLEA

MR
(vi) EREERR R RIZ S

EBREARERAQT]

(vii) BHMREFELEENZFIES
FEXERmMERAAE*
@ ZABER=_ZE—AF+—ALET
E=F R-ZE—HF+-A=+—
AR=F—A"F+=ZA=1+—8" %
NCIENEVEYN S o] a)id
KIEEFEIZER AR AR * Tenwow International Holdings Limited

34 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has
the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other
party, has joint control over the party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operation decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to
common control.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, the
following is a summary of the significant transactions
carried out between the Group and its related parties
in the ordinary course of business during the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2016, and balances
arising from related party transactions as at 31
December 2015 and 2016.

(@) Name and relationship with related
parties
(i) Controlling Shareholder
Mr. Lin Jianhua

(ii) wife and children of Mr. Lin Jianhua
Ms. Yan Yuzheng, Mr. Lin Qi, Ms. Lin Liping

(iii) Key management personnel
Mr. Wang Juewei

(iv) Associates of the Group
Shanghai Daoxiang Cun, Jiamu Tea

(v) Joint venture of the Group
Nanpu

(vi) Controlled by the Controlling
Shareholder
Shanghai Tiansheng Warehouse Co., Ltd.
(vii) Controlled by the wife of Mr. Lin
Jianhua
Shanghai Tianpu Food Co., Ltd.*

* The company is no longer a related party of
the Group as at 31 December 2015 and 2016
as it has been disposed to a third party in
November 2015.
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BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

3 BHMARS (%) 34 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(b) T3R5 HBIM S ET : (b) The following transactions were
carried out with related parties:
() HEBRRREE (i) Sales of goods and services

BEt-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—E—-XfF —E—AF

2016 2015
ARBTRT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HHE R m Sales of goods:
— FH — Nanpu 1,110,557 1,441,106
— EBREAERABMRAT  — Shanghai Tiansheng
Warehouse Co., Ltd. 31 -
— FEXBARERABRAT  — Shanghai Tianpu Food Co., Ltd. - 120
1,110,588 1,441,226
R A RS Provision of warehousing services
— A — Nanpu 4,043 762
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HE-_T—"E+-_A=t—HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

3 BHMARS (%) 34 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(b) THXZHEEAET  (8) (b) The following transactions were
carried out with related parties:
(Continued)
(i) BEERRRSE (ii) Purchases of goods and services

BE+t-A=t+—-HLFE
Year ended 31 December
—B-XRE C—T—RF

2016 2015
AR¥T T AREBTT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
BEMMm Purchase of goods
— A — Nanpu 997,328 835,903
— EBRBEEFAMRAR  — Shanghai Tiansheng
Warehouse Co., Ltd. 2 9
— EBRBEERRAR~AT  — Shanghai Tianpu Food Co., Ltd. - 74,069
997,330 909,981
BB R R RE Receipts of warehousing and
logistics services:
— MEELA — Mr. Lin Jianhua 840 720
iR ETHEB R S iR The above sale and purchase transactions
BT EMRSHBRET with related parties are carried out based

on mutually agreed prices between
respective parties.
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BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

3 BHMARS (%) 34 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(c) EAEEI&ER (c) Balances with related parties

R+-—A=+—HLEE
As at 31 December
—E—REF —E-RfF

2016 2015
AR¥T ARET T
RMB'000 RMB'000
() BHREKRIE : () Trade receivables:
— A — Nanpu 587,781 777,714
— PBRERFAERAR] — Shanghai Tiansheng
Warehouse Co., Ltd. 13 -
587,794 777,714
(i) EfbmEWGRIA (i) Other receivables:
—FH — Nanpu 12,532 7,211
(i) B S ENFIEA - (iii) Trade payables:
— A — Nanpu 95,378 104,424
— FBREAERAERAR] — Shanghai Tiansheng
Warehouse Co., Ltd. - 11
95,378 104,435
(iv) Efth ERTFRIA - (iv) Other payables:
—FH — Nanpu 3,301 2,956
EL Al /R U5 78 ek 75 BRI 3 2 45 e K B Other receivables from related parties mainly
RIHE S o HithfE{TRAR 5 RIEE 1R represented rental fees due from the related
BH AARERSZ A - parties. Other payables to related parties mainly

represented the expenses paid by the related
parties on behalf of the Group.
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HE-_T—"E+-_A=t—HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

34 BEBAERS (E) 34 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(d FEEEASHM (d) Key management compensation
FEEBABBREES (WMITRIERTT) Key management includes Directors (executive
KR EEE - gtEERBKEN RENE and non-executive) and senior management.
EERABNFHMIITAT The compensation paid or payable to key

management for employee services is shown
below:
R+=—A=+—AH
As at 31 December
—E—XRE —T—AfF
2016 2015
AR%T T ARET T
RMB'000 RMB'000
TERHAMESRT Salaries and other employee benefits 5,099 4,037
35 EEFEFEFZE 35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS

(@) E=FS (@) Directors emoluments
HE—_ZE—NE+-_A=+—BHItEE - The remuneration of each director of the
AEEEN, EAARATSESNEHH Company paid/payable by the Group for year
S NE ended 31 December 2016 are set out as follows:
EERE Name of Director

BRARE

RERA

b4 R

Pre-IPO

HiiEF share

¢ Al Other award @t
Salary Bonus  benefits  scheme Total

ARBTR ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB000

HiTES Executive Directors

MEERA() Mr. Lin Jianhua (i) 1,633 - 16 - 1,649

BB ke Mr. Yeung Yue Ming 496 - 12 38 546

TEERE Mr. Wang Juewei 480 - 69 38 587

ML Mr. Lam Hang Boris 935 - 16 9% 1,047

EEELL Ms. AU Lai Hang 773 - 16 38 827

FHTES Non-executive Director

B181 % £ () Mr. Liu Zhao (i) - - - - -

BUFHTES Independent non-executive Directors

ElERS Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong 260 - - - 260

TEREE Mr. Wang Longgen 260 - - - 260

REERE Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren 260 - - - 260
5,097 - 129 210 5,436
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BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

35 ESEMRF=EE) 35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

(a) EEHFH2 (B (a) Directors emoluments (Continued)
HE_ZT—RF+-_A=+—"HILFE " The remuneration of each director of the
AEEER EBARARSESNFHE Company paid/payable by the Group for year
FaAR ended 31 December 2015 are set out as follows:
EEgE Name of Director

BRAH
REARR
4]
Pre-IPO

Hit g share
e fE4 Other award @it
Salary Bonus benefits scheme Total
ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARBTRT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

HITES Executive Directors

WEZE R () Mr. Lin Jianhua (i) 550 - 15 - 565
BEs e Mr. Yeung Yue Ming 538 - 1 66 615
TEERE Mr. Wang Juewei 479 - 67 66 612
MBS Mr. Lam Hang Boris 809 - 15 164 983
ERELL Ms. AU Lai Hang 691 - 15 66 772
FHTES Non-executive Director

Bk 2 (i) Ms. Chen Shiyou (ii - - - _ _

BUERTES Independent non-executive Directors

ElER Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong 244 - - - om
FEREE Mr. Wang Longgen 204 - = = 204
REERE Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren 244 - - - 244
3,799 = 123 362 4,284

0} ZEFEAEEREHEL LSREEFER 0) The director received emoluments from both the

RAFEE T BB S - HhIs B ER Group and the related parties, Nanpu and Shanghai

RRABRENRBEEH - AR ZEERR/E Tiansheng Warehouse Co., Ltd., part of which are in

[ AR 2 &) K [r) B Bk 77 42 it AR 75 1S AT Ak FR 78 relation to their services to the Company. No

o WA T EELEAES - apportionment has been made in respect of

emoluments from related parties as the director
considers that it is impractical to apportion the amount
between his services to the Company and his service
to the related parties.

(ii) HE=-Z—XR"F+=-A=+—HAEK=Z2—H (ii) No emolument was paid to non-executive Director for
F+ZA=+—HLFE BMEFHIST the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.
HHNTES -
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BE-T—AF+-A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

35 EERARAE @

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

BEEHFH)

HE-_ZT—X"F+-A=+—AHAK=ZF
—HFE+-_A=+—HLFE  HESES
BARSBEWEEAME - EREEMER
SRR MBREBRNES RIEARE
B(E o WAEE FBE N R B METAM

P2
i e

EERAKER

METRNEFTABEBEEARARRNEN
JB X B %75 4 B A0 L At BR 75 17 2 S AN 3K
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35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors emolument (Continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015, no directors received emoluments from
the Group as inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
No directors waived or had agreed to waive any
emoluments.

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or
receivable by any directors in respect of their
other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company or
its subsidiary undertaking (2015: Nil).

Directors’ termination payments or
benefits

No payment was made or benefit provided to
directors as compensation for the early
termination of the appointment or in respect of
termination of the services of directors during
the year (2015: Nil).

Consideration provided to third
parties for making available directors’
services

No consideration was provided to or receivable
by any third party for making available the
services of a person as a director of a company,
or in any other capacity while as a director
(2015: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate
by and connected entities with such
directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors during the year (2015: Nil).
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35 EEREAMRAE (&) 35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)
(f) BTRHRESARS ZHIEHNPNE (f) Directors’ material interests in

K= transactions, arrangements or
contracts

ARARIMELEARREEREFE No significant transactions, arrangements and

EEEEAEAERAMNERINRF contracts in relation to the Group’s business to

NEREEDAGTERAEBEEEH which the Company was a party and in which a

MEARS  THEEH(ZE—FRF: director of the Company had a material interest,

) o whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year
(2015: Nil).

36 IAREE 36 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
R-E—RAF+_A=+—"BER-_ZE—XF As at 31 December 2015 and 2016, the Group is still in
+ZA=+—8 AEBNEEFEEFES the process of renewing certificates for certain land
Al A AR 1,110,000 7T & A K # 991,000 7T 89 use rights with net book value amounting to
ET T ERERE  AEERRERRFEZSE LT RMB1,110,000 and RMB991,000 respectively. The
HEREZEEETER  MARZEENS Group might incur certain obligations in connection
mEAF oAt E - M ERNER S B ER with such application of land use right certificates,
R AT B - while since the amount of the obligation cannot be

measured with sufficient reliability, no provision was
made in the consolidated financial statements.
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37 RKRREEEBRERBESRE 37 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

BR+=HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—EB-Xf —T—AfF
2016 2015
MIsE AR T ARET T
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
R—RHBRARIMNKE Investments in a subsidiary 572,312 572,312
mftBRARNER Loan to subsidiaries 1,520,297 1,377,024
2,092,609 1,949,336
REBEE Current assets
m—EHERRRER Loan to a subsidiary 265,854 143,268
H Afth U GRIA Other receivables 88 36
Re kFeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 515 2,031
266,457 145,385
BEHE Total assets 2,359,066 2,094,721
= EQUITY
(&N Share capital 176,448 164,634
e AR (B Share premium 1,293,887 1,149,151
HAtb & Other reserves @) 745,946 648,414
REBEF(RFHER) Retained earnings/(accumulated losses)  (a) 84,732 (36,623)
R Total equity 2,301,013 1,925,576
REaE Current liabilities
B Borrowings - 115,304
FEAT BB A B FIE Amount due to subsidiaries 58,053 53,841
BEAE Total liabilities 58,053 169,145
EEREEER Total equity and liabilities 2,359,066 2,094,721
rEERBBERERESFER =T —tF=H The balance sheet of the Company was approved by
“+— Bt YRRESEEE - the Board of Directors of on 21 March 2017 and was
signed on its behalf.
3 E
Director Director
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37 ARRAEERBERERFEBEED (9

(@ ARRARBED

BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

37 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(@) Reserve movement of the Company

RtoikeE
Other Reserves
REER/ BRAR
2itER MeRE  EHRG
Retained fife  RmBia

eamings/ B&  currency Pre-IPO
accumulated Capital  translation share award b
losses reserve reserve scheme Total
ARETT  ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R-E-15-A—-H At 1 January 2015 (29,076) 572,312 (15,043) 4,431 561,745
EEREHE Employee share options scheme - - - 1421 1421
EEER Loss for the year (7,547) - - - _
INEHEER Currency translation differences - - 85,248 - 85,248
R-ZB-RF+=-A=1—H At31December 2015 (36,623) 572,312 70,200 5902 643414
R-E-x&-A—-H At 1 January 2016 (36,623) 572,312 70,200 5,902 648,414
EEREHE Employee share options scheme - - - 2,399 2,399
FERA Profit for the year 121,355 - - - -
INEHEER Currency translation differences - - 95,133 - 95,133
R=B-xE+=-A=1—-H At31December 2016 84,732 572,312 165,333 8,301 745,946

201643% o Annual Report2016 253



B %% & MY A
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-_T—"E+-_A=t—HILEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

38 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries comprising the
Group as at 31 December 2015 and 2016 are as

38 FEMBMATFE

RZE—RERE—RF+-_A=+—8"
AREEBRTNESHBARGEBUOT

follows:
FREREREDL
Effective interests held %
EMRIEAR/ H & BE/EMER B-XE “T-hf

DR ER Country/place Registered +=A=+-H +ZA=1+-B TE#EK
Company name of incorporation capital/paid Up 31 December 2016 31 December 2015 Principal activities
BRER:
Directly Owned:
RRERAA RERREE = 100 100 RE#&RHSRALRR
Praise Sheen Limited BVI Investment holding in BVI
RS :
Indirectly Owned:
BEREREARBRAR(BARR) BA 68,000,000/ 7 100 100 EEADHRREFHARERE
Nan Pu International Limited HK HK$68,000,000 Distribution of food and beverages

(Hong Kong Company) and Investment in HK
LBRERR(ER)ERAR HE 990,000,000 7T 100 100 EHREISERHHRRERE
Shanghai Tenwow Foods (Group) ~ PRC HK$990,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution

Co., Ltd. of food and beverages in PRC
DS FREMHERAR HE AR 25,000,0007C 65.65 6565 TEREIZHER D HRMAHNH
Shanghai Dingshang Packing PRC RMB25,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution of

Material Co., Ltd. food and beverages in PRC
FBRELZRERAR HE AR2,000,0007T 52.5 525 FEREEER A HE LR
Shanghai Tenwow Paper PRC RMB2,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution

Products Co. Ltd. of packing materials in PRC
REEEEERAR HE AR #50,000,00070 100 100 EHE#TRAESHES
Shenzhen Nanpu Industrial PRC RMB50,000,000 Trading of food and

Co., Ltd. beverages in PRC
RETARRMEREERR  FH AR H76,000,0007C 100 100 ERESERDHERRERE
Wuhan Nanpu Co., Ltd. PRC RMB76,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution

of food and beverages in PRC

LBRERRAEEERAR e AR H1,000,0007C 95 95 EFESERD HRmERK
Shanghai Tenwow Food PRC RMB1,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution

Production Co., Ltd.

254 XREEERARAT e Tenwow International Holdings Limited

of food and beverages in PRC



B %% o MY A
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_T—"F+-A=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

38 FEMBEAAFE @) 38

FERBRERAS L
Effective interests held %
B-XE “E-nf
+=A=+-H TZR=+—-H TE£E

EMARLER/ B2
Country/place

B/ HREA

ATEH Registered

Company name

HERRERRARAA
Shanghai Mornflake Food Co., Ltd.

RNE(REE) RmEBRAR
Tenwow (Inner Mongolia)
Food Co., Ltd.

RE(B2) RmABRAR
Tenwow (Fujian) Food Co., Ltd.

HBEFBEBRAR
Shanghai Royal Winery Co., Ltd.

BERBREFHERAR
Fujian Tenwow Drinks Co., Ltd.

FBRBEXERAR
Shanghai Tiansheng Wines and
Spirits Co,, Ltd.

LRI RRARAR
Shanghai Chuanxiang Flavouring
and Food Co,, Ltd.

HBIERRBRAR
Shanghai Chuanxiang Food Factory

LEERBEERAR
Shanghai Royal Wines and
Spirits Co.,Ltd.

BREABRMRERAR
Fujian Tiansheng Logistics
Co., Lta.

of incorporation

hE
PRC

Tz
PRC

I
PRC

hE
PRC

HE
PRC

i
PRC

T
PRC

o
PRC

i
PRC

R
PRC

capital/paid Up

AR 13,000,0007C
RMB13,000,000

AR #30,000,0007C
RMB30,000,000

A 100,000,00070
RMB100,000,000

A 12,000,000 7
RMB12,000,000

AR 15,000,000 70
RMB15,000,000

AR 130,000,000 70
RMB130,000,000

AK#1,350,0007C
RMB1,350,000

AR 800,007
RMBB300,000

AR H10,000,0007C
RMB10,000,000

AR 5,000,007
RMB5,000,000

31 December 2016

65.5

100

100

51

100

100

75

75

100

31 December 2015

65.5

100

100

51

100

100

75

75

100

100

201653 o

Principal activities

EHREIZE RS HRMEHRK
Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC

EREE RS HAmERE
Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC

EHREEER D HE MR
Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC

EFREEER D HE mERE
Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC

EREERD HA mERE
Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC

EHREETRRESKES
Trading of food and beverages
inPRC

EHRBEEER D HR MR
Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC

EPERER A HER mERE
Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC

EREETRMESRE S
Trading of food and
beverages in PRC

EnEREAREDRRSE
Warehousing and logistics
distribution services in PRC
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38 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

38 FEMBAAFR @

FERBERAS L
Effective interests held %
Z2-KF —T-1f
+=A=t+-H TZR=+—-H TE£E

EMARLER/ B2
Country/place

B/ HREA

ATEH Registered

Company name

ERTRAREERZERAA
Ningbo Contemporary Trading
Co., Ltd.

MMREREEERAR
Hangzhou Lin's Wines and
Spirits Co., Ltd.

LBERREBRAR
Shanghai Huasheng Wines and
Spirits Co., Ltd.

HHE LOEMEERAR
Putian Dingshang Packing
Material Co., Ltd.

RE(HE) RMERAR
Tenwow (Wuhan) Food Co., Ltd.

HERBRESRHARAR
Shanghai Tenwow Drinks Co., Ltd.

REXERERRAERAT
Wuhan Tenwow Drinks Co., Ltd.

BEEMARRMARAA
Tenwow (Chongging) Food
Co., Ltd.

EETEARRERALAR

Xiangyang Nanpu Co., Ltd.

RE (B #) RmBRAT
Tenwow (Chengdu) Food Co., Ltd.

of incorporation

e
PRC

hE
PRC

hE
PRC

I
PRC

I
PRC

I
PRC

i
PRC

i
PRC

el
PRC

hE
PRC

capital/paid Up 31 December 2016

A H#25,000,000 7
RMB25,000,000

A 15,000,000 7
RMB15,000,000

A 120,000,007
RMB120,000,000

AR 5,000,007
RMB5,000,000

A #220,000,00070
RMB220,000,000

AR 80,000,0007C
RMB80,000,000

AR 15,000,000 70
RMB15,000,000

AR 10,000,000 70
RMB10,000,000

AR 50000070
RMB500,000

31,800,000 T
US$31,800,000
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100

60

100

72.5

100

100

100

100

100

100

31 December 2015

100

60

100

725

100

100

100

100

100

100

Principal activities

EHREETRMERRE S
Trading of food and beverages in
PRC

EREETRRERNES
Trading of food and beverages
in PRC

EHEETRRESHES
Trading of food and beverages
in PRC

EHRESERDHE MR
Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC

TEHREERD HRE RERK
Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC

EMESSE RS HRmERE
Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC

EREE RS HARERE
Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC

ERERERD HARERE
Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC

EHEETRMESHE S
Trading of food and beverages
in PRC

EHREIRERD HR MEHRK
Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

38 FEMEBATFHE®) 38

FERBERASL
Effective interests held %
BE/EMER ZB-RF “T-1F
Registered +=A=t+-H +=A=+-H TE£K
capital/paid Up 31 December 2016 31 December 2015 Principal activities

EMARLER/ 2
Country/place
of incorporation

ARER
Company name

REREEXERAF
Fujian Tenwow Shiye Co., Ltd.

RE(R2)RMERAH
Tenwow (Tianjin) Food Co., Ltd.

REGEDRBERAR
Changxinxian Jinshaguan Co., Ltd.

BERESERERAR
Nanpu Fine Wine&Spirits
International Company Limited

LARERAEE HERAR
Shanxi Tenwow Kanghongda
trading Co., Ltd.

REFERBEBRERAR
Tenwow Beverage International
Company Limited

RERMEE(HE)EHERA
Tenwow Food Group (Shanghai)
Sale Co., Ltd.

RBRERERRHBRAF

Chengdu Tenwow Drinks Co., Ltd.

RE(KR)ERERAHA
Tenwow (Tai Yuan) Food Co., Ltd.

B
PRC

i
PRC

I
PRC

BA
HK

I
PRC

U

BE

i
PRC

i
PRC

i
PRC

A 200,000,007
RMB200,000,000

A 10,000,000 7
RMB10,000,000

A 104,300,000 70
RMB104,300,000

20,000,0007% 7T
HK$20,000,000

AR H50,000,0007C
RMB50,000,000

10,0007 7T
HK$10,000

AR %200,000,0007C
RMB200,000,000

AR 50,000,000 70
RMB50,000,000

AR 13,000,00070
RMB13,000,000

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

60

100

100

100

100

201653 o

EREETRMESRE S
Trading of food and beverages
in PRC

ERRRER D ERMERR
Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC

EREISER D HRMERH
Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC

EERETRRESRKNES
Trading of food and beverages
in HK

EMESSE RS HRmERE
Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC

EERETRRERHES
Trading of food and beverages
inHK

TEHRES HE R ERH
Distribution of food and
beverages in PRC

EREZERD HARERE
Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC

EHRE S HR RELE
Distribution of food and
beverages in PRC
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38 FEMEBARFE &) 38 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

FERBESZES L
Effective interests held %
EMALER/ 2 B8/ BmEL —E-RE —T-hf

ATEH Country/place Registered +=A=t+-H t-A=t-B FE£%
Company hame of incorporation capital/paid Up 31 December 2016 31 December 2015 Principal activities
ABRENRBERERAA BA AR 16,667,000 70 - EEAENRMESHES
Redew Bio-Technology International HK RMB16,667,000 Trading of food and beverages

Co., Ltd in HK
TBAREMRERERDR HE AR#3,0000007C 100 - ERESERMERE
Shanghai Redew Bio-Technology ~ PRC RMB3,000,000 Distribution of food and

Co., Ltd. beverages in PRC
REGHRAKERRA HE AR 13,050,000 7 100 - ERERERAHR MEE
Changxing Meilin Drinks Co., Ltd. ~ PRC RMB13,050,000 Manufacturing and distribution

of food and beverages in PRC

A B A &) 37 ok I S S 238 - Ak The English names of the PRC companies referred to

MEMREEMNEXEBAEEEHEEATR above in this Note represent management’s best

XA RERRE - efforts in translating the Chinese names of those
companies as no English names have been registered
or available.
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

BE+=A=t-ALEE
Year ended 31 December

—¥-X"f —T-nf —F-mF —B-=Ff "F--F
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
WA Revenue 5,218,649 4,908,022 5,084,012 4,724,888 4,252,031
HERAR Cost of sales (4,200,411) (3,992,520) (4,230,150) (3,988,435) (3,708,888)
E Gross profit 1,018,238 915,502 853,862 736,453 543,193
DR Distribution costs (439,154) (251,990) (211,439) (156,411) (121,635)
TBEY Administrative expenses (185,363) (172,148) (143,046) (140,300) (93,815)
HA Other income 19,069 52,141 19,469 23,139 9,550
Hindezs,/(F518) — % Other gains/(losses) — net (37,459) 842 2,314) (8,556) 2,817)
BT Operating profit 375,331 544,347 516,532 454,325 334,476
B Finance income 7,967 15,090 20,931 8,871 7,655
BIIS R AR Finance costs (94,263) (99,039) (96,635) (91,334) (67,374)
MERAR— T Finance costs — net (86,296) (83,949) (75,704) (82,463) (59,719)
NGl Share of profit of associates (22) 3 514 565 1,057
eI —FIA 4 ARER  Share of profit of a joint venture 9,023 32,083 29,736 30,459 25,613
BRETBHATER Profit before income tax 298,036 492,484 471,078 402,886 301,427
FrEfEY Income tax expense (84,091) (126,176) (113,797) (105,501) (71,082
FERR Profit for the year 213,945 366,308 357,281 297,385 230,345
Htt2mEUEA Other comprehensive income
HitmeeegnEs ltems that may be subsequently
BmMIEE reclassified to profit or loss
—INEITEEE — Currency translation differences 3,238 1,198 (1,783) (11,927) (3,112)
FEEAWALSE Total comprehensive income
for the year 217,183 367,506 355,498 285,458 227,233
EERANEER Total profit attributable to:
ARAERBEEA Equity holders of the Company 204,834 350,809 345,335 286,304 220,758
EIS ) g Non-controlling interests 9,111 15,499 11,946 11,081 9,587
213,945 366,308 357,281 297,385 230,345
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BZt-A=1-HLEE
Year ended 31 December
“E-xf TR ZEWmE = CZB-C=f

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®ETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BEBARBR . Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
AREEREREA Equity holders of the Company 207,888 352,007 343,552 274,377 217,646
b % Non-controlling interests 9,295 15,499 11,946 11,081 9,587
217,183 367,506 355,498 285,458 227,233
AATERBEAEL  Earnings per share for
BAHEREN profit attributable to
equity holders of the
Company
—EARREEERAT  —Basicand diluted earnings
(AERARES per share (expressed in
FIER) RMB cents per share) 10 17 17 17 15
RE Dividends 102,418 122,783 103,601 242,891 114,240
HeEEEHEE CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
W+=B=1+—-H
As at 31 December
“E-AF  ZF-RF  ZF-mF ZF-=Ff ZT--F
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®ET:R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
*rBLERTE Total non-current assets 1,714,879 1,659,219 1,343,851 1,024,842 963,873
B EELE Total current assets 5,708,752 4,623,948 4,221,023 3,854,820 2,369,781
BEE Total assets 7,423,631 6,283,167 5,564,874 4,879,662 3,333,654
FRBaELEE Total non-current liabilities 327,478 406,712 95,366 125,391 139,838
B A EEE Total current liabilities 3,845,331 2,976,887 2,835,582 2,347,229 2,269,830
BELR Total liabilities 4,172,809 3,383,599 2,930,948 2,472,620 2,409,668
L gt Total equity 3,250,822 2,899,568 2,633,926 2,407,042 923,986
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